
 

                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                     
 

City of Port Orchard Council Meeting Agenda 
October 10, 2023 

 6:30 p.m. 
 

Pursuant to the Open Public Meetings Act, the City Council is conducting its public 
meeting in the Council Chambers at City Hall. Members of the public may view and 
provide public comment during the meeting in person at City Hall, via the online 
platform zoom (link below), or via telephone (number below). The public may also view 
the meeting live on the City’s YouTube channel. 
 

Remote access 
Link: https://us02web.zoom.us/J/81343070969 

Zoom Webinar ID: 813 4307 0969 
Zoom Call-In: 1 253 215 8782 

 
Guiding Principles 

• Are we raising the bar? 
• Are we honoring the past, but not living in the past? 
• Are we building connections with outside partners? 
• Is the decision-making process positively impacting diversity, equity, and 

inclusion? 
 
1. CALL TO ORDER 

A. Pledge of Allegiance 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
3. CITIZENS COMMENTS  
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for items listed on the Agenda and that are not for a 
Public Hearing. Please keep your comments respectful and no personal attacks. This is a 
comment period and not a question-and-answer session. When recognized by the Mayor, please 
state your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 
from your keypad to raise your hand.  
 
4. CONSENT AGENDA 
(Approval of Consent Agenda passes all routine items listed below, which have been distributed 
to each Councilmember for reading and study. Consent Agenda items are not considered 
separately unless a Councilmember so requests. In the event of such a request, the item is 
returned to Business Items.) 

A. Approval of Vouchers and Electronic Payments 
B. Approval of Payroll and Direct Deposits 
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Amending Ordinance No. 013-23, Delaying the 

Effective Date for the 2021 Building Codes (Bond) Page 4 
D. Adoption of a Resolution Approving an Amended Memorandum of 

Agreement with the Port of Bremerton for Waterfront Parking (Archer) 
Page 14 

E. Adoption of a Resolution Approving Two Nonexclusive Perpetual 
Easements with Puget Sound Energy for a Portion of City Owned 
Property (Ryan) Page 33 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
Mayor: 
Rob Putaansuu 
Administrative Official 
 

Councilmembers: 
Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore) 
E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair   
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Transportation Committee 
KRCC-alt 

 
 

Shawn Cucciardi  
Finance Committee 
E/D & Tourism Committee 
Lodging Tax, Chair  

 

Fred Chang 
Economic Development & Tourism Committee 
Land Use Committee 
Transportation Committee 
 

Jay Rosapepe  
Finance Committee,  
Land Use Committee 
KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-
alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,  
 

John Clauson 
Finance Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee 
Kitsap Public Health District-alt 

 

Cindy Lucarelli  
Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair 
Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair 
Kitsap Economic Development Alliance 

 

Scott Diener 
Land Use Committee, Chair 
Transportation Committee 

 

Department Directors: 
Nicholas Bond, AICP  
Development Director 

 

Denis Ryan 
Public Works Director 
 

Tim Drury 
Municipal Court Judge 
 

Noah Crocker, M.B.A.  
Finance Director 
 

Matt Brown 
Police Chief 

 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO  
City Clerk 

 
 

Meeting Location: 
Council Chambers, 3rd Floor 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 
 
 

Contact us: 
(360) 876-4407 
cityhall@portorchardwa.gov 
 

 

https://us02web.zoom.us/J/81343070969


Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 
The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 

Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 
October 10, 2023, Meeting Agenda      Page 2 of 3 

F. Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Contract with Public Safety Testing for Entry Level Police Officer
Testing (Lund) Page 51

G. Approval of Road Closures for a Special Event: 2023 Festival of Chimes and Lights (Wallace) Page 60
H. Approval of a Memorandum of Understanding with Teamsters Local 589 Representing Police Support

Employees Re: Closure of City Hall (Lund) Page 84
I. Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract No. 004-23 with Kitsap County Prosecuting Attorney for

Prosecution of Municipal Criminal Complaints and Civil Infractions (Wallace) Page 85
J. Approval of the September 19, 2023, City Council Work Study Session Meeting Minutes Page 97
K. Excusal of Councilmember Clauson for Business Reasons

5. PRESENTATION

6. PUBLIC HEARING
A. Ordinance Approving the Diaz Meadows Development Agreement (Bond) Page 100

7. BUSINESS ITEMS
A. Adoption of an Ordinance Approving the Diaz Meadows Development Agreement (Bond) Page 102
B. Adoption of an Ordinance Repealing POMC 3.48 Concerning the City’s Multifamily Tax Exemption

Policy (Bond) Page 132
C. Adoption of an Ordinance Adopting POMC Section 2.04.235, Regarding Endorsements by the City

Council (Archer) Page 136

8. DISCUSSION ITEMS (No Action to be Taken)

9. REPORTS OF COUNCIL COMMITTEES

10. REPORT OF MAYOR

11. REPORT OF DEPARTMENT HEADS

12. CITIZEN COMMENTS
(Please limit your comments to 3 minutes for any items not up for Public Hearing. When recognized by the Mayor, please state
your name for the official record. If you are attending remotely via telephone, enter *9 from your keypad to raise your hand.)

13. EXECUTIVE SESSION: Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110, the City Council may hold an executive session. The topic(s) and the
session duration will be announced prior to the executive session.

14. CITY COUNCIL GOOD OF THE ORDER

15. ADJOURNMENT

COMMITTEE MEETINGS Date & Time Location 

Economic Development and Tourism TBD 2023; 9:30am Remote Access 

Utilities  November 14, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Finance October 17, 2023; 5:00pm Remote Access 

Transportation October 24, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


     
Please turn off cell phones during meeting and hold your questions for staff until the meeting has been adjourned. 

The Council may consider other ordinances and matters not listed on the Agenda, unless specific notification period is required. 
Meeting materials are available on the City’s website at: www.portorchardwa.gov or by contacting the City Clerk’s office at (360) 876-4407. 

October 10, 2023, Meeting Agenda                                                                    Page 3 of 3 

Festival of Chimes & Lights October 16, 2023; 3:30pm Remote Access 

Land Use  October 18, 2023; 4:30pm Remote Access 

Lodging Tax Advisory  October 11, 2023; 10:00am In person and Remote 
Access 

Sewer Advisory  November 1, 2023; 6:30pm WSUD 

Outside Agency Committees Varies Varies 

*WEST SOUND UTILITY DISTRICT, 2924 SE Lund Ave. Port Orchard 

http://www.portorchardwa.gov/


City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4C Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Amending  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond, AICP 

 Ordinance No. 013-23, Delaying the   DCD Director 
 Effective Date for the 2021 Building Codes     Atty Routing No.: Development-Matter 11 
  Atty Review Date: October 5, 2023 

 
Summary:  The Washington State Building Code Council has delayed the effective date for the 2021 building 
codes for a second time.  The City of Port Orchard approved Ordinance 013-23 adopting the 2023 
Washington State Building codes in May 2023 and subsequently delayed the effective date of this ordinance 
by passing Ordinance 015-23 in June of 2023.  Last month, the Washington State Building Code Council 
unexpectedly voted to delay the effective date of the new building codes again until March 15, 2024.  As 
such, City staff has prepared an ordinance to delay the effective date of the new codes and ordinances as 
recently approved. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Recommendation: City staff recommends adoption of an ordinance delaying the effective date of the 2021 
building codes as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an ordinance amending ordinance number 013-23 and 015-23 
delaying the effective date of the 2021 building codes as presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: None foreseen.   
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the contract as presented. 
 
Attachments: Ordinance, Ordinance 013-23, Ordinance 015-23 

     
 

Page 4 of 138



 
 

               
     

ORDINANCE NO. ____ 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 013-23, AS PREVOIUSLY AMENDED BY 
ORDINANCE NO. 015-23, AMENDING CHAPTER 20.200, CITY 
CONSTRUCTION CODE, OF THE PORT ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE TO 
CONFORM WITH UPDATES TO THE STATE BUILDING CODE UNDER 
CHAPTER 19.27 OF THE REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON AND THE REVISED 
WASHINGTON STATE BUILDING CODE ACT; ADOPTING THE CURRENT 
STATE BUILDING CODES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 
CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.   
  

 WHEREAS, the Washington State Building Code Council (Code Council) periodically 
recommends and adopts uniform codes of statewide applicability, collectively referred to as the 
State Building Code; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington state legislature has updated Chapter 19.27 of the Revised Code 
of Washington (RCW), the Washington State Building Code Act, to adopt the 2021 versions of the 
State Building Code; and  

 
WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 013-23, the City of Port Orchard adopted by reference the 

State Building Codes as required by state law, to locally enforce said rules for the health, safety, 
and welfare of the public, with an effective date of July 1, 2023, consistent with state direction at 
the time of adoption; and 

 
WHEREAS, following the adoption of Ordinance No. 013-23, the State Building Code Council 

exercised its delegated authority to delay the implementation of the State Building Code, and 
accordingly the City Council authorized Ordinance No. 015-23, setting a new effective date of 
October 29, 2023, consistent with state direction at that time; and  

 
WHEREAS, since the adoption of Ordinance No. 015-23, the State Building Code Council has 

again delayed the implementation of the State Building Code by an additional 1390 days, until 
March 15, 2024; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend Ordinance No. 013-23, as amended by 

Ordinance No. 015-23, to further extend the effective date concurrent with the action by the State 
Building Code Council; and 
 

WHEREAS, the SEPA Responsible Official for the City determined that adoption of this 
ordinance is categorically exempt from environmental review as a procedural action under WAC 
197-11-800(20); now therefore, 

 
 

Page 5 of 138



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 
 SECTION 1.  Amendment. Section 5 of Ordinance No. 013-23, as previously amended by 
Ordinance No. 015-23, is hereby amended to read as follows:  
 

This ordinance shall be in full force five days after posting and publication, provided 
following publication the amendments to the POMC set forth herein shall be effective 
March 15, 2024.  
 
SECTION 2. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should 

be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 
clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 3. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and the codifiers 

of this ordinance are authorized to make necessary technical corrections to this ordinance, 
including, without limitation, the correction of clerical errors; references to other local, state, or 
federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or section/subsection numbering. 

 
SECTION 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force five days after posting and 

publication. A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the ordinance in its 
entirety. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor Pro-Tem 

and attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 
              
 ____________________________ 

Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 
ATTEST: 
 
      
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY:   SPONSOR:   
 
 
       ____________________________  

Page 6 of 138



Ordinance No. ____ 
Page 3 of 3 

 
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney   Scott Diener, Councilmember  
 
 
PUBLISHED DATE: 
EFFECTIVE DATE:   

Page 7 of 138



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1736A03F- CA9E- 4BF4- 87D5- FBC512300C49

ORDINANCE NO. 015- 23

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 

AMENDING ORDINANCE NO. 013- 23, AMENDING CHAPTER 20. 200, CITY

CONSTRUCTION CODE, OF THE PORT ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE TO

CONFORM WITH UPDATES TO THE STATE BUILDING CODE UNDER

CHAPTER 19. 27 OF THE REVISED CODE OF WASHINGTON AND THE REVISED

WASHINGTON STATE BUILDING CODE ACT; ADOPTING THE CURRENT

STATE BUILDING CODES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND

CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Building Code Council ( Code Council) periodically

recommends and adopts uniform codes of statewide applicability, collectively referred to as the
State Building Code; and

WHEREAS, the Washington state legislature has updated Chapter 19. 27 of the Revised

Code of Washington ( RCW), the Washington State Building Code Act, to adopt the 2021

versions of the State Building Code; and

WHEREAS, by Ordinance No. 013- 23, the City of Port Orchard adopted by reference the

State Building Codes as required by state law, to locally enforce said rules for the health, safety, 

and welfare of the public, with an effective date of July 1, 2023, consistent with state direction
at the time of adoption; and

WHEREAS, since the adoption of Ordinance No. 013- 23, the State Building Code Council
exercised its delegated authority to delay the implementation of the State Building Code by 120
days, until October 29, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to amend Ordinance No. 013- 23 to extend the

effective date concurrent with the action by the State Building Code Council; and

WHEREAS, the SEPA Responsible Official for the City determined that adoption of this
ordinance is categorically exempt from environmental review as a procedural action under
WAC 197- 11- 800( 20); now therefore, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Amendment. Section 5 of Ordinance No. 013- 23 is hereby amended to read as
follows: 

Page 8 of 138



DocuSign Envelope ID: 1736A03F- CA9E- 4BF4- 87D5- FBC512300C49

Ordinance No. 015- 23

Page 2 of 2

This ordinance shall be in full force five days after posting and publication, provided
following publication the amendments to the POMC set forth herein shall be effective
October 29, 2023. 

SECTION 2. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should

be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or

unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

SECTION 3. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and the

codifiers of this ordinance are authorized to make necessary technical corrections to this

ordinance, including, without limitation, the correction of clerical errors; references to other
local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or section/ subsection numbering. 

SECTION 4. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force five days after posting

and publication. A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the
ordinance in its entirety. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and
attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 13th day of June 2023. 

ATTEST: 
DocuSigned by: 

Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

D/ocuSigned by: 

Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney

PUBLISHED DATE: June 16, 2023

EFFECTIVE DATE: June 21, 2023

DocuSigned by: 

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor

SPONSOR: 

Page 9 of 138



DocuSign Envelope ID: 06BOOD4B- A5D6- 4A80- AE06- 9E1377532C85

ORDINANCE NO. 013- 23

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 

AMENDING CHAPTER 20. 200, CITY CONSTRUCTION CODE, OF THE PORT

ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE TO CONFORM WITH UPDATES TO THE STATE

BUILDING CODE UNDER CHAPTER 19. 27 OF THE REVISED CODE OF

WASHINGTON AND THE REVISED WASHINGTON STATE BUILDING CODE

ACT; ADOPTING THE CURRENT STATE BUILDING CODES; PROVIDING FOR

SEVERABILITY AND CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE

DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Building Code Council ( Code Council) periodically

recommends and adopts uniform codes of statewide applicability, collectively referred to as the

State Building Code; and

WHEREAS, the Washington state legislature has updated Chapter 19. 27 of the Revised

Code of Washington ( RCW), the Washington State Building Code Act, to adopt the 2021

versions of the State Building Code, effective July 1, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard ( the " City") has adopted by reference the State

Building Codes as required by state law, to locally enforce said rules for the health, safety, and
welfare of the public; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 20. 200 City Construction Code of the Port Orchard Municipal Code

POMC) will not conform to the State Building Code and RCW 19. 27 after July 1, 2023 without
amendment; and

WHEREAS, the City Council wishes to update sections in Chapter 20. 200 of the POMC so

that Title 20 of the POMC is consistent with the State Building Code and RCW 19. 27, as updated

effective July 1, 2023; and

WHEREAS, the SEPA Responsible Official for the City determined that adoption of this

ordinance is categorically exempt from environmental review as a procedural action under
WAC 197- 11- 800( 20); now therefore

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DOES ORDAIN AS

FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1. Amendment of POMC 20. 200. 008 State Building Code, Adopted. Port Orchard
Municipal Code Section 20. 200. 008 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Page 10 of 138



DocuSign Envelope ID: 06BOOD4B- A5D6- 4A80- AE06- 9E1377532C85

Ordinance No. 013- 23

Page 2 of 4

Pursuant to RCW 35A. 12. 140, the city of Port Orchard hereby adopts the following codes of

technical compliance by reference, which are incorporated herein; provided, that the amendments, 

deletions, and additions thereto as provided in this chapter shall govern over the published

provisions of the respective adopted code: 

1) The 2021 Edition of the International Building Code as published bythe International Code
Council ( ICC), including Appendix E, as adopted and amended by the Washington State Building

Code Council ( WSBCC) in WAC 51- 50- 003, is hereby adopted by reference. Additionally, Appendix B
of the 2021 International Building Code is adopted by reference by the city of Port Orchard; 

2) The 2021 Edition of the International Residential Code as published by the ICC and as

adopted and amended by the WSBCC in WAC 51- 51- 003. Additionally, Appendix M of the

International Residential Code is adopted by reference by the city of Port Orchard; 

3) The 2021 Edition of the International Mechanical Code, as published by the ICC, as adopted

and amended by the WSBCC in WAC 51- 52- 003, is hereby adopted by reference by the city of Port
Orchard; 

4) The 2021 Edition of the International Fire Code, as published by the ICC, as adopted by the

WSBCC in Chapter 51- 54A WAC, is hereby adopted by reference. Additionally, Appendix B of the

International Fire Code is adopted by reference by the city of Port Orchard and portions of
Appendix D are adopted as shown in POMC 20. 200. 0161

5) The 2021 Edition of the Wildland Urban -Interface Code as published bythe ICC, as adopted

by the WSBCC in Chapter 51- 55 WAC, is hereby adopted by reference. 

6) The 2021 Edition of the Uniform Plumbing Code, as published by the International

Association of Plumbing and Mechanical Officials, and as adopted and amended by the WSBCC in

WAC 51- 56- 003, is hereby adopted by reference; 

7) The 2021 Edition of the International Energy Conservation Code, Commercial, as adopted

and amended by the Washington State Building Code Council in Chapter 51- 11C WAC; 

8) The 2021 Edition of the International Energy Conservation Code, Residential, as adopted and

amended by the Washington State Building Code Council in Chapter 51- 11R WAC; 

9) The 2021 edition of the International Property Maintenance Code, as published bythe ICC; 
and

10) The 1997 Edition of the Uniform Code forthe Abatement of Dangerous Buildings together

with the appendices, as published by the International Conference of Building Officials, is hereby

Page 11 of 138



DocuSign Envelope ID: 06BOOD4B- A5D6- 4A80- AE06- 9E1377532C85

Ordinance No. 013- 23

Page 3 of 4

adopted, except that references to the uniform codes shall be replaced with the appropriate

technical codes and sections as adopted by the city. 

A copy of the codes referenced herein shall be kept on file with the city clerk. 

SECTION 2. Amendment of POMC 20. 200. 018, Appeals. Port Orchard Municipal Code

Section 20. 200.018 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Whenever the fire code authority shall disapprove an application or refuse to grant a permit

applied for, or when it is claimed that the provisions of the codes do not apply or that the true

intent and meaning of the codes have been misconstrued or wrongly interpreted, the applicant

may appeal from the decision within 30 days from the date of the decision in accordance with
Section 113 of the 2021 Edition of the International Fire Code, as adopted herein. 

SECTION 3. Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance should

be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or

unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other section, sentence, 

clause or phrase of this ordinance. 

SECTION 4. Corrections. Upon approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and the

codifiers of this ordinance are authorized to make necessary technical corrections to this

ordinance, including, without limitation, the correction of clerical errors; references to other

local, state, or federal laws, codes, rules, or regulations; or section/ subsection numbering. 

SECTION 5. Effective Date. This ordinance shall be in full force five days after posting

and publication, provided following publication the amendments to the POMC set forth herein

shall be effective July 1, 2023. A summary of this ordinance may be published in lieu of
publishing the ordinance in its entirety. 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor and

attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 23rd day of May 2023. 

DocuSigned by: 

je6btY - u vain suu

Robert Putaansuu, Mayor

ATTEST: 

EDocuSigned
by: 

46ASA54 P h'dy Rinearson, MMC, City Clerk

Page 12 of 138



DocuSign Envelope ID: 06BOOD4B- A5D6- 4A80- AE06- 9E1377532C85

Ordinance No. 013- 23

APPROVED AS TO FORM ONLY: 

EDocuSigned
by: 

Qv rl Z

fl.otte A. Archer, City Attorney

PUBLISHED: May 26, 2023

EFFECTIVE: July 1, 2023

SPONSOR: 

Scott Diener, Councilmember

Page 4 of 4

Page 13 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4D Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving Prepared by: Charlotte Archer, Atty  

 an Amended Memorandum of     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0009 – PW 
 Agreement with the Port of Atty Review Date: October 4, 2023 
 Bremerton for Waterfront Parking   

 
Summary: The City’s owns and operates an existing sewerage pump station located within the Port 
Orchard Harbor Area in Sinclair Inlet.  The Port of Bremerton owns and operates the Port Orchard 
Marina adjacent to the City’s sewerage pump station. The City has designed the Marina Pump Station 
project to replace the existing sewerage pump station (the “Project”), and the Project will temporarily 
and permanently impact the Port’s property as well as adjacent waterfront parking.  
 
In 1996, the City and Port executed a Memorandum of Understanding to set forth parking assignments 
and responsibilities for the parking area (the “1996 MOU”). This MOU focused on the Port’s property, 
including Kitsap County Parcels Nos. 4053-013-007-0103, 4028-001-001-0007, and 4028-001-011-0005, 
commonly known as Lots 3 and 4, which are used for water dependent uses and waterfront parking, as 
well as the City’s rights of way and associated public parking. Due to the configuration of the waterfront, 
and community events and business operations impacting parking in the area, in 2011, the City and the 
Port entered into a new Memorandum of Agreement (the “2011 MOA”) to supersede the 1996 MOU, 
setting forth terms to govern the City and Port’s use, management, and revenue collection for the 
parking areas.  
 
Because the City’s Marina Pump Station project to serve the residents of Port Orchard will impact the 
parking areas covered by the 2011 MOA, the City provided notice to the Port of the proposal in January 
2023. In response, in February 2023, the Port provided notice to the City of its intent to withdraw from 
the 2011 MOA effective June 1, 2023. The City and Port negotiated the terms of a Memorandum of 
Agreement to set forth the terms and conditions by which the Port will withdraw effective July 1, 2023, 
and to establish the use, management, and operation of the waterfront parking areas. The City Council 
Approved the MOA on July 11, 2023.  
 
Following Council approval, the Port requested additional modifications regarding the transition 
timeline. In response, the City requested additional modifications to the agreement pertaining to code 
enforcement and the Port’s future choice of a parking ticketing system. The Port’s Board of 
Commissioner’s approved the revised version of the Agreement at its meeting on August 22, 2023, and 
requested the City approve the revised version.  
 

Page 14 of 138



Consent Agenda 4D 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends the City Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor 
Pro-Tem to execute a revised Memorandum of Agreement with the Port of Bremerton for 
waterfront parking.  

 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: Utilities 

 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor Pro-Tem to 
execute a revised Memorandum of Agreement with the Port of Bremerton for waterfront parking.” 

 
Fiscal Impact: None  

 
Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance, however this is tied to the Marina 
Pump Station project.  

 
Attachments:  Resolution 

   [Revised] Memorandum of Agreement with the Port of Bremerton 
   Courtesy Copy of 2011 MOA 

Page 15 of 138



RESOLUTION NO. ___ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AMENDING 
RESOLUTION NO. 066-23, AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR PRO-TEM TO EXECUTE A 
MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT WITH THE PORT OF BREMERTON 
CONCERNING WATERFRONT PARKING. 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard Marina is owned and operated by the Port of Bremerton 

(the “Port”), including Kitsap County Parcels Nos. 4053-013-007-0103, 4028-001-001-0007, and 
4028-001-011-0005, commonly known as Lots 3 and 4, which are used for water dependent 
uses and waterfront parking; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard owns and controls rights of way providing access to 

the aforementioned parking spaces, and has historically provided parking enforcement and 
associated services for these public parking lots; and  

 
WHEREAS, in 1996, the City and the Port entered into a Memorandum of Understanding 

to set forth parking assignments and responsibilities for the area (the “1996 MOU”); and  
 
WHEREAS, due to the configuration of the waterfront, and community events and 

business operations impacting parking in the area, in 2011, the City and the Port entered into a 
new Memorandum of Agreement (the “2011 MOA”) to supersede the 1996 MOU, setting forth 
terms to govern the City and Port’s use, management, and revenue collection for the parking 
areas; and  
 

WHEREAS, the City’s proposal to construct the Marina Pump Station project to serve the 
residents of Port Orchard will impact the parking areas covered by the 2011 MOA, and 
accordingly, the City provided notice to the Port of the proposal in January 2023; and  

 
WHEREAS, in February 2023, the Port provided notice to the City of its intent to 

withdraw from the 2011 MOA effective June 1, 2023; and  
 
WHEREAS, the City and Port negotiated the terms of a Memorandum of Agreement to 

set forth the terms and conditions by which the Port will withdraw effective July 1, 2023, and to 
establish the use, management, and operation of the waterfront parking areas; and 

 
WHEREAS, the proposed Memorandum of Agreement provides, among other terms, 

that the City and Port will work collaboratively to ensure public events continue in the area and 
that the City will provide parking enforcement to benefit the public that utilize these parking 
lots in exchange for compensation; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council approved the Memorandum of Agreement by Resolution 

No. 066-23 on June 27, 2023, and following approval the Port requested additional 
modifications to the Memorandum of Agreement which are reflected in the version attached as 
Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference;  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds it in the best interest of the City and its residents to 

Page 16 of 138



Resolution No. ___ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
authorized the Mayor Pro-Tem to execute the revised Memorandum of Agreement with the 
Port for waterfront parking; now, therefore,  

 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above 
are hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 

 
THAT:  Resolution No. 066-23 is amended to substitute Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein with this reference.  The Mayor Pro-Tem is authorized to execute 
the Memorandum of Agreement attached hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein 
with this reference. The Mayor is further authorized to take all actions necessary to 
effectuate the terms of the Memorandum of Agreement.  

 
THAT:  The Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor Pro-Tem and 

attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 
 
         
  Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
     
Brandy Wallace, City Clerk, MMC  

Page 17 of 138



10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Memorandum of Agreement 
 

for 
 

Allocation and Control of Parking on Waterfront 
Property 

 
Between 

 
City of Port Orchard 

 
and 

 
Port of Bremerton 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
2023 

Page 18 of 138



10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
 
 
 
 

Contents 
1. RECITALS .................................................................................................................................... 2 

2. PURPOSE .................................................................................................................................... 2 

3. PREMISES ................................................................................................................................... 2 

4. EFFECTIVE DATE ......................................................................................................................... 2 

5. TERM .......................................................................................................................................... 2 

6. AGREEMENT .............................................................................................................................. 2 

7. COMPENSATION ........................................................................................................................ 3 

8. RESTRICTIONS ON USE ............................................................................................................... 4 

9. EVENTS COORDINATION ............................................................................................................ 4 

10. RECIPROCAL INDEMNIFICATION................................................................................................ 5 

11. DEFAULT BY CITY OF PORT ORCHARD ....................................................................................... 5 

12. NOTICE ....................................................................................................................................... 5 

13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT .................................................................................................................. 6 
 
 
  Exhibit A:  DNR Lease No. 20-A09891  
 
  Exhibit   B:  Map of Premises 

Page 19 of 138



Page | 1  
10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT 
 

THIS MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT (“MOA”) is effective on the day of the last signature on this MOA, 
by and between the Port of Bremerton (“Port”), a public port district, and the City of Port Orchard 
(“City”), a Washington State municipal corporation. 

 
RECITALS 

 

A. The Port Orchard Marina is owned and operated by the Port of Bremerton, which has a Port 
Management Agreement (PMA) no. 22-080016 with Department of Natural Resources (“DNR”) 
for use of State-owned aquatics lands for port purposes. It is located within the Port Orchard 
Harbor Area in Sinclair Inlet, in Kitsap County, Washington. 

 
B. The Port of Bremerton is in ownership of property including Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 4053-

013-007-0103, commonly known as “Lot 3” and has been used for water dependent uses and 
waterfront parking.   
 

C. The Port of Bremerton is in ownership of property including Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 4028-
001-001-0007, commonly known as “Lot 4” and has been used for water dependent uses and 
waterfront parking.   
 

D. The Port of Bremerton also has a lease no. 20-A09891 with DNR for use of State-owned aquatic 
lands including Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 4028-001-011-0005, that has been used for 
water dependent uses and waterfront parking, commonly known as the east end of the Port 
Orchard waterfront “Lot #4”.   

 
E. The City of Port Orchard is in ownership of the Harrison Avenue Right-of-Way, that has been 

used for water dependent uses and waterfront parking and includes portions of parking spaces 
within both “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”, this area is referred to as the “City’s Right-of-Way”.   

 
F. The 2011 existing MOA between the City of Port Orchard and Port of Bremerton previously 

provided the City of Port Orchard use, management, and revenue collection for the parking areas 
identified as “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”, with allocation of spaces for Port of Bremerton use at 707 
Sidney Parkway, in the area commonly known as “Lot 1”. 

 
G. On January 9, 2023, The City of Port Orchard provided notice to the Port of Bremerton that 

the 2011 existing MOA between the City of Port Orchard and Port of Bremerton would be 
impacted by the Marina Pump Station project. 

 
H. On February 6, 2023, the Port of Bremerton provided notice to the City of Port Orchard with the 

intent to withdraw from the 2011 MOA effective June 1, 2023, however the Port extended that date 
while the parties negotiated the terms of a successor MOA. 

Page 20 of 138



Page | 2  
10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED AS FOLLOWS: 

 
AGREEMENT 

 
1. RECITALS 
 
The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
2. PURPOSE 
 

2.1 The purpose of this Memorandum of Agreement is to set forth the terms and 
conditions by which the Port will withdraw from the 2011 MOA for waterfront parking, and by July 1, 
2023, will vacate the allocated parking spaces for Port of Bremerton located at 707 Sidney Parkway, 
in the area commonly known as “Lot 1”.   

 
2.2 The purpose of this Memorandum of AGREEMENT is also to set forth the means by 

which the Port will withdraw from the 2011 MOA for waterfront parking, and by July 1, 2023, will 
establish the Port of Bremerton use, management, and operation of the areas commonly known as 
Port Orchard East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 

 
2.3 The purpose of this MOA is to also replace and rescind the existing 2011 MOA 

between the City of Port Orchard and the Port of Bremerton regarding waterfront parking. 
 

3. PREMISES 
 
The "Premises" include Kitsap Assessor Parcel Number # 4053-013-007-0103, # 4028-001-011-0005, 
Parcel Number # 4028-001-001-0007, including DNR aquatic lease No. 20-A09891 and including 15 
partial parking spaces located within the Harrison Avenue right-of-way, of the areas commonly 
known as Port Orchard East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”.   
 
4. EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
The "Effective Date" of this MOA shall be the date this MOA has been fully executed. 
 
5. TERM 
 
The term of this agreement shall be ongoing unless terminated by written agreement or with 180-
day written notification. 
 
6. AGREEMENT 
 

6.1 The Port shall withdraw from the 2011 Memorandum of Agreement for waterfront 
parking with the City of Port Orchard on July 1, 2023, and will vacate the allocated parking spaces for 
Port of Bremerton located at 707 Sidney Parkway, in the area commonly known as “Lot 1” upon 
execution of this agreement.  

 
6.2 The Port of Bremerton will establish the use, management, operation, maintenance, 

and revenue collection of the premises, commonly known as Port Orchard East waterfront parking 

Page 21 of 138



Page | 3  
10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4” upon execution of this agreement. 
 

6.3 Upon execution of this agreement, the Port of Bremerton will begin to manage 
community event permits and event usage of the premises, commonly known as Port Orchard East 
waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”.    The Port of Bremerton will endeavor to honor existing 
approved 2023 City event permits as much as practicable and will coordinate with stakeholders.  

 
6.4 The City of Port Orchard has agreed to provide parking enforcement for premises, 

commonly known as Port Orchard East waterfront parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”.  Enforcement 
shall include Marina Tenant parking passes and interaction with the Port regarding implementation 
of Port parking rules and requirements.  Parking enforcement shall commence upon notice to 
proceed issued to the City by the Port, which may or may not occur simultaneously with the effective 
date of this MOA. Parking enforcement shall be compensated pursuant to compensation identified 
in Section 7.   

 
6.5 The Port of Bremerton will manage, control, and be responsible for all maintenance, 

striping, landscaping, curbs, surfacing, lighting, signage, and all capital projects for premises, 
commonly known as parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 

 
6.6 The Port of Bremerton will manage, control, and be responsible for parking fare 

collection and any electronic parking kiosks for premises, commonly known as parking areas “Lot 3” 
and “Lot 4”. 

 
6.7 The City of Port Orchard agrees to remove the existing parking kiosks and signage 

upon the execution of this agreement, provided the kiosks and signage shall be removed by 
September 30, 2023.  

 
6.8 The City of Port Orchard agrees to coordinate with the Port of Bremerton regarding 

plans, permits, and approvals pertaining to the construction of the Bay Street Pedestrian Path 
Segment 1, located on the premises, commonly known as parking areas “Lot 3” and “Lot 4”. 

 
6.9 With regards to any parking stalls or spaces not covered by this Agreement but which 

are located on the Premises described herein, the City shall be responsible for any such spaces in Lot 
1, and the Port shall be responsible for any such spaces in Lots 3 and 4, including all necessary 
maintenance, striping, pavement repair, thermoplastics, sweeping, and landscaping.  
 
7. COMPENSATION 
 

7.1 Parking Enforcement:  The Port shall provide compensation and payment to the City 
each year by June 30th for Parking Enforcement services provided by the City for Lot 3 and Lot 4.  

 
7.2 Annual parking enforcement compensation shall be in the amount of $12,000 each 

year. 
 

7.3 The annual parking enforcement compensation may be increased each year beginning 
January 1, 2025.  The compensation shall increase annually per CPI-U (All Urban Consumers Index) 
(1982-1984=100), not seasonally adjusted, for the Seattle-Tacoma-Bellevue area for that 12-month 
period from January 1st to December 31st indexed as the annual average, as is specified by the Bureau 

Page 22 of 138



Page | 4  
10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

of Labor Statistics, United States Department of Labor. Increases based on CPI-U shall take effect on 
January 1st of the following year.  However, the increase shall be no more than 5% or no less than 1%.  

 
7.4 In addition to the increase set out in Section 1.3 herein, the City shall be authorized to 

increase parking enforcement compensation upon six (6) months written notice to the Port if the City’s 
costs associated with parking enforcement increase due to the Port’s selection of a new 
permitting/ticketing method or vendor, including but not limited to a selection that triggers the City’s 
purchase of necessary software or equipment at the request of the Port, or increased staff time 
dedicated to enforcement efforts due to the Port’s choice of permitting method/vendor.  

 
7.5 Initial parking enforcement compensation shall be prorated based on the number of 

days remaining in 2023 upon commencement of parking enforcement at the direction of the Port (see 
Section 6.4).  

 
7.6 Compensation payment to the City shall be provided on or before June 30 of each year, 

with the initial prorated parking enforcement payment due to the City by December 31, 2023. 
 

7.7 Termination of Parking Enforcement Services:  Upon six (6) months of written notice, 
either party may terminate the agreement for parking enforcement.  Termination of parking 
enforcement shall not impact or affect other sections of this agreement.  
 
8. RESTRICTIONS ON USE 
 
The Port shall maintain a total of 20 spaces located within Lot # 3, available to the public for 2-hour 
parking free of charge for the parking space.  Those spaces shall not be exempt from enforcement 
due to a marina parking pass. 
 
9. EVENTS COORDINATION 

 
9.1 The Port of Bremerton and the City of Port Orchard agree to coordinate efforts 

related to community events occurring on the premises identified herein (for example, 4th of July, 
Cruz Car Show, Chimes & Lights), in relation to road closures, public works needs, police and first 
responder safety, transit operations, and similar use of public spaces. Community events located in 
areas controlled by the Port that do not involve the closure of or impact in any way Harrison Avenue 
shall be the primary responsibility of the Port, utilizing the Port’s application process, provided the 
City shall be provided the opportunity to comment on the application. Community events involving 
Harrison Avenue shall be the primary responsibility of the City, utilizing the City’s application process, 
provided the application shall be submitted to the Port for review and approval for events that 
propose to utilize property controlled by the Port.   

 
9.2 The Port and the City agree to work together on a case-by-case basis to assist with 

temporary event parking for marina tenants where needed, related to specific community events (for 
example, 4th of July, Cruz Car Show, Chimes & Lights). 

 
9.3 The Port of Bremerton and the City of Port Orchard agree to review and provide 

communication in relation to each other’s Event permits and applications that may impact spaces or 
needs related to the premises.  

 

Page 23 of 138



Page | 5  
10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

9.4 For 2023, City event permits already approved by the City shall continue to be 
honored by the Port for 2023.   
 
 
10. RECIPROCAL INDEMNIFICATION 
 
To the maximum extent permitted by law, each Party shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless the 
other Party and all of its officials, Board Members, employees, principals, and agents from all claims, 
demands, suits, actions, and liability of any kind, including injuries to persons or damages to property 
(“Claims”), which arise out of, are connected with, or are due to the negligent acts or omissions of the 
indemnifying Party, its contractors, and/or employees, agents and representatives in performing its 
obligations under this Agreement, provided each Party’s obligation under this section applies only to 
the extent of the negligence of that Party or its contractors, employees, agents, or representatives. 
 
Each of the Parties agrees that its obligations under this section extend to any claim, demand, cause 
of action and judgment brought by, or on behalf of, any of its employees or agents. For this purpose, 
both Parties, by mutual negotiation, hereby waive, regarding the other Party only, any immunity that 
would otherwise be available against such claims under the industrial insurance provisions of Title 51 
RCW. 
 
11. DEFAULT  
 
Failure to perform any provision of this MOA shall constitute a default by the party failing to perform, 
unless such default is cured by the party failing to perform within 90 days after receiving written 
notice from the other party.  Exceptions: If there is any delay or stoppage due to strikes, lockouts, 
labor disputes, acts of God, inability to obtain labor or materials or reasonable substitutes therefor, 
governmental restrictions, regulations or controls, enemy or hostile governmental action, riot, civil 
commotion, fire or other casualty, and other causes beyond the reasonable control of the party 
obligated to perform, such causes shall excuse the performance. If the default cannot reasonably be 
cured within 90 days, the non-performing party shall not be in default of this MOA if that party 
commences to cure the default within such ninety (90) day period and diligently and in good faith 
continues to cure the default. 
 
12. NOTICE 
 
Any notice given under this MOA shall be effective only if in writing and given by delivering the notice 
in person or by sending it first-class mail or certified mail with a return receipt requested or by 
overnight courier return receipt requested, with postage prepaid, at the following addresses, or at 
such other addresses as either the Port or City of Port Orchard may designate by notice as its new 
address: 
 

Address for Port of Bremerton: Chief Executive Officer 
Port of Bremerton  
8850 SW State Hwy 3 
Bremerton, WA 98312 

Telephone No: (360) 674-2381 
Fax No: (360) 674-2807 

Page 24 of 138



Page | 6  
10734716.1 - 366922 - 0001 

Email: jimr@portofbremerton.org 
 

Address for City of Port Orchard: Mayor 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard, WA 98366 

Telephone No: (360) 876-4407 
Fax No: (360) 895-9029 
Email: rputaansuu@portorchardwa.gov  

 

Any notice hereunder shall be deemed to have been given two (2) days after the date when it is 
mailed if sent by first-class or certified mail, one day after the date it is mailed, if sent by overnight 
courier, or upon the date personal delivery is made. For convenience of the parties, copies of notices 
may also be given by email, facsimile or telephone to the address or numbers set forth above or such 
other address or number as may be provided from time to time; however, neither the Port nor City 
of Port Orchard may give official or binding notice by email, telephone or facsimile. 
 
13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT 
 
This MOA (including attached exhibits, if any) contains the entire AGREEMENT between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter hereof. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this MOA to be executed as of the date written below. 

City of Port Orchard Resolution No.    
Port of Bremerton Resolution No.    

 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, a public municipality 
 
 

PORT OF BREMERTON, a public port district 
 
 
 
By:   

Robert Putaansuu 
Mayor 
City of Port Orchard 

 
 

Date Signed:    

 
By:   

Jim Rothlin 
Chief Executive Officer 
Port of Bremerton 

 
 

Date Signed:    

Page 25 of 138

mailto:jimr@portofbremerton.org
mailto:rputaansuu@portorchardwa.gov


Page 26 of 138



Page 27 of 138



Page 28 of 138



Page 29 of 138



Page 30 of 138



Page 31 of 138



Page 32 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4E  Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of a Resolution Approving Two Prepared by: Jacki Brown 

 Nonexclusive Perpetual Easements with  Interim Public Works 
 Puget Sound Energy for a Portion of  Director 
 City Owned Property Atty Routing No: 366922-0009 
  Atty Review Date: October 4, 2023 

 
Summary: The City of Port Orchard owns two parcels of land parallel and adjacent to Old Clifton Road and 
Lloyd Parkway, Kitsap County Tax Parcel Nos. 342401-3-015-2004 (Parcel Address: 1292-1290 Lloyd 
Parkway) and 342401-3-035-2000 (Parcel Address:  1260, 1270 and 1272 Lloyd Parkway) (hereinafter the 
“Properties”). Puget Sound Energy (PSE) has requested from the City of Port Orchard a nonexclusive 
perpetual easement over, along, across and through an area of the Properties (known as the “Easement 
Area”) for utility purposes. For context, PSE's rights to the Properties will be limited to the following 
activities:   

 
• to construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, improve, remove or upgrade one or more guy 

wires, anchor poles and anchors together with any and all necessary or convenient 
appurtenances thereto; and  

• to cut, remove and dispose of any and all brush, trees or other vegetation in the Easement 
Area; and  

• to control, on a continuing basis and by any prudent and reasonable means, the establishment 
and growth of brush, trees or other vegetation in the Easement Area; and 

• to construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, improve, remove, upgrade and extend one or 
more utility systems for the purposes of transmission, distribution and sale of electricity, 
provided that following the initial construction of all or a portion of its systems, PSE may, from 
time to time, construct such additional facilities as it may require for such systems.   

 
The grant of easements over and across City-owned property requires authorization by the City 
Council. Staff recommends the grant of the requested Easement as serving the interests of the 
residents of Port Orchard.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan:  Chapter 7.3- Non-City Managed Utilities 
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor 
to execute two Nonexclusive Perpetual Easements with Puget Sound Energy for portions of Kitsap 
County Parcel No. 342401-3-015-2004 and Parcel No. 342401-3-035-2000, lying parallel and adjacent 
to Old Clifton Road and Lloyd Parkway. 

Page 33 of 138



Consent Agenda 4E 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
Motion for Consideration: I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute two 
Nonexclusive Perpetual Easements with Puget Sound Energy. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  The City will receive $1,500 for each easement from PSE.   
 
Alternatives:  Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 

 Attachments: Resolution 
 PSE Easements 

Page 34 of 138



RESOLUTION NO.  _______ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE TWO NONEXCLUSIVE PERPETUAL EASEMENTS WITH 
PUGET SOUND ENERGY (PSE) FOR A PORTION OF CITY-OWNED PROPERTY, 
KITSAP COUNTY TAX PARCEL NO. 342401-3-015-2004 AND KITSAP COUNTY TAX 
PARCEL NO. 342401-3-035-2000, LYING PARALLEL WITH AND ADJACENT TO 
OLD CLIFTON ROAD AND LLOYD PARKWAY 

 
 WHEREAS, the City of Port Orchard owns two parcels of land parallel and adjacent to Old 
Clifton Road and Lloyd Parkway, Kitsap County Tax Parcel Nos. 342401-3-015-2004 (Parcel 
Address: 1292-1290 Lloyd Parkway) and 342401-3-035-2000 (Parcel Address: 1260,1270 and 1272 
Lloyd Parkway) (hereinafter the “Properties”); and 
  
 WHEREAS, Puget Sound Energy has requested from the City of Port Orchard 
nonexclusive perpetual easements over, along, across and through that portion of the 
Properties as described in the proposed Easements, attached hereto as Exhibit A and 
incorporated herein by this reference; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Easements would provide Puget Sound Energy the right to use the 
identified area to construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, improve, remove or upgrade 
one or more guy wires, anchor poles and anchors together with any and all necessary or 
convenient appurtenances thereto, construct, operate, maintain, repair, replace, improve, 
remove, upgrade and extend one or more utility systems for the purposes of transmission, 
distribution and sale of electricity; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the Easements are needed to ensure access to enable PSE to provide 
efficient power for the residents of the City of Port Orchard; and 
  
 WHEREAS, the grant of Easements over and across City-owned property requires 
authorization by the City Council; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the City Council desires to grant the Easements to Puget Sound Energy under 
the terms and conditions contained therein; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council finds that the grant of the requested Easements are in the best 
interests of the residents of Port Orchard; now, therefore, 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES 
AS FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT:   It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are 
hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of the Resolution.  

 

Page 35 of 138



Resolution No. _______ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

THAT:  The Port Orchard City Council approves of and authorizes the Mayor to execute 
two nonexclusive perpetual Easements with Puget Sound Energy for portions of Kitsap 
County Parcel No. 342401-3-015-2004 and Parcel No. 342401-3-035-2000, lying parallel 
and adjacent to Old Clifton Road and Lloyd Parkway, attached hereto as Exhibit A and in 
a form acceptable to the City Attorney. 
 
THAT: This Resolution shall take full force and effect upon passage and signatures 
hereon. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor Pro-Tem and 

attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 
 

 
   ___     
  Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 
 

Page 36 of 138



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

August 22, 2023         Via Email: kchammer@portorchardwa.gov

     

 

 

City of Port Orchard 

Attn: Chris Hammer 

216 Prospect Street  

Port Orchard, WA 98366-5326 

 

 

RE: Puget Sound Energy – EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD FDR TW_ #101097687 / 153004468  

        Kitsap County Assessor’s Tax Parcel No.: 342401-3-015-2004 

        Project No.:   # 15 / Parcel Address: 1292 - 1290 Lloyd Pkwy, Port Orchard, WA  

 

Dear Mr. Hammer,   

 

Puget Sound Energy (PSE) has designed a system improvement project of the existing electrical facilities along 

SW Old Clifton Road. The purpose of this project is to improve electric system reliability by reducing power 

outages for PSE customers. The project will replace existing overhead wire with specially coated Tree Wire that 

repels tree branches and prevents shorts in the electric circuit, replace aging power poles that need to meet Kitsap 

County Clear Zone requirements and install down guy tension wires as needed. Tree Wire has reduced power 

outages by over 90% where already installed.  Although PSE normally installs utility facilities within the public 

right-of-way, sometimes conditions along the project route make it necessary for electric facilities to be placed on 

private property within easements.   

 

Enclosed please find a standard PSE easement for the portion of facilities affecting your private property. PSE 

will compensate you fair market value for the described easement area in the amount of $500.00.  PSE is offering 

an additional $1,000.00 as an incentive bonus to sign and return the easement by October 6, 2023. 

 

If you find this offer acceptable, please sign the documents in the presence of a Notary Public. Upon receipt and 

approval of the original fully executed easement, real property voucher and completed W-9 form (enclosed), PSE 

will provide compensation as follows: 

 

 If signed easement is returned before October 6, 2023: $1,500.00 

 If signed easement is returned on or after October 6, 2023: $500.00 

 

If you have any questions, or would like to meet to discuss further, please contact me directly. If I do not hear 

from you, I plan to follow-up with a call in a few days. I appreciate your time and consideration of this easement 

offer and look forward to hearing from you.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Pam Haukeli - HDR Consultant 

Real Estate Representative for PSE 

425-616-5245 /pamela.haukeli@hdrinc.com  

 

Enclosures: Easement, W-9 Form, Real Property Voucher, Work Sketch 

Page 37 of 138



2 

 

 

Receipt of this letter is hereby acknowledged: 

 

    

City of Port Orchard                                                      Date 

(Signature above does not mean acceptance of offer.)

 

Page 38 of 138



EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD FDR TW 

Work Order #101097687 / 153004468 

Parcel #342401-3-015-2004 

Proposed Easement Area 
 

 

 

 

NOTE:  This map is not intended to represent the precise location or the extent of Puget Sound Energy’s present or 

future facilities. 

Page 39 of 138



Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Real Property Voucher Form 

 

AGENCY NAME: 

Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Attn: Real Estate, R/W Dept. 
3130 S. 38th Street 
Tacoma, WA  98409 
 

 

City of Port Orchard,  WA, a Political 

Subdivision of the State of Washington  

 

By:_____________________________ 

      Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

 

Date__________________________  

 

Phone: ________________________ 

 

 

GRANTOR OR CLAIMANT: 

City of Port Orchard 
Attn: Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
216 Prospect Street  
Port Orchard, WA 98366-5326 
 

PROJECT NAME:                              PUGET SOUND ENERGY – EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD FDR TW 

WORK ORDER #:                              101097687 / 153004468 

ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER: 342401-3-015-2004 / 1292-1290 Lloyd Parkway, Pt Orchard 

PSE PROJECT PARCEL:                  #15 

   

 

In Full and Final Payment for the title or interest conveyed or released, as fully set forth in the attached 
document: 
 

Permanent Easement: $         500.00 
 

Incentive for signing before October 6, 2023 $       1,000.00 

 

Total of Final Settlement: $       1,500.00 

 
Acquisition Agent: 

 
 
 
  
Pam Haukeli 
HDR, Inc. 

      

 
 
 
                
Date 

 

 
Puget Sound Energy, Inc: 

 
 
 
  
Connie Corpuz, SR/WA  
Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 

 
 

 
 
 
                
Date 

 

 

Page 40 of 138



EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD TW (P18S) 
WO #101097687 / #153004468 / RW-094304 / NOT-11211420   Page 1 of 3 
 
 

RETURN ADDRESS: 
Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Real Estate / ROW Department  
Attn:  Connie Corpuz 
3130 South 38th Street 
Tacoma, WA 98409 
 
 

 
EASEMENT 

 
 

REFERENCE #:  
GRANTOR:    CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
GRANTEE:  PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC. 
SHORT LEGAL: LOT A, SP-1062 R-1, AF #9404240164; SW 34-24N-01E 
ASSESSOR’S TAX #: 342401-3-015-2004 
 
 
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, CITY 
OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, a Political Subdivision of the State of Washington (“Owner"), 
hereby grants and conveys to PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC., a Washington corporation ("PSE"), for the 
purposes hereinafter set forth, a nonexclusive perpetual easement over, along, across and through the 
following described real property in Kitsap County, Washington (the "Property"): 

 
LOT A OF CITY OF PORT ORCHARD SHORT PLAT NO. 1062R-1, RECORDED UNDER 
AUDITOR’S FILE NO. 9504240164, WHICH IS AN AMENDMENT OF AUDITOR’S FILE 
NO. 9108050015 (PO-56R-1).  
 
SITUATE IN KITSAP COUNTY, STATE OF WASHINGTON.  

 
 

Except as may be otherwise set forth herein, PSE's rights shall be exercised upon that portion of the 
Property the ("Easement Area") described as follows: 

 
AN EASEMENT AREA TEN (10) FEET IN WIDTH HAVING FIVE (5) FEET ON EACH 
SIDE OF A CENTERLINE OF GRANTEE’S FACILITIES LOCATED AS CONSTRUCTED 
OR TO BE CONSTRUCTED, EXTENDED OR RELOCATED, LYING WITHIN THE 
SOUTH FIFTY (50) FEET OF THE HEREIN DESCRIBED REAL PROPERTY.  

 
 

1. Purpose.  PSE shall have the right to use the Easement Area to construct, operate, maintain, 
repair, replace, improve, remove or upgrade one or more guy wires, anchor poles and anchors together 
with any and all necessary or convenient appurtenances thereto. 
 

2.  Access.  PSE shall have a reasonable right of access to the Easement Area over and across 
the Property to enable PSE to exercise its rights granted in this easement. 

 
3.  Easement Area Clearing and Maintenance.  PSE shall have the right to cut, remove and 

dispose of any and all brush, trees or other vegetation in the Easement Area.  PSE shall also have the right 
to control, on a continuing basis and by any prudent and reasonable means, the establishment and growth 
of brush, trees or other vegetation in the Easement Area. 

 

Page 41 of 138



EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD TW (P18S) 
WO #101097687 / #153004468 / RW-094304 / NOT-11211420   Page 2 of 3 
 
 

4.  Restoration.  Following the initial installation, repair or extension of its facilities, PSE shall, to 
the extent reasonably practicable, restore landscaping and surfaces and portions of the Property affected 
by PSE’s work to the condition existing immediately prior to such work.  PSE shall use good faith efforts to 
perform its restoration obligations under this paragraph as soon as reasonably possible after the completion 
of PSE’s work. 

 
5.  Owner’s Use of Easement Area.  Owner reserves the right to use the Easement Area for any 

purpose not inconsistent with the rights herein granted, provided, however, Owner shall not perform the 
following activities without PSE’s prior written consent: (1) excavate within or otherwise change the grade 
of the Easement Area; (2) construct or maintain any buildings, structures or other objects on the Easement 
Area; and/or (3) conduct any blasting within 300 feet of PSE's facilities. 

 
6.  Indemnity.  PSE agrees to indemnify Owner from and against liability incurred by Owner as a 

result of PSE’s negligence, or the negligence of PSE’s employees, agents or contractors in the exercise of 
the rights herein granted to PSE, but nothing herein shall require PSE to indemnify Owner for that portion 
of any such liability attributable to the negligence of Owner, its employees, agents or contractors or the 
negligence of third parties. 

 
7.  Attorneys’ Fees.  The prevailing party in any lawsuit brought to enforce or interpret the terms 

of this Easement shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in said suit, 
including on appeal. 

 
8.  Successors and Assigns.  This Easement is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the 

successors and permitted assigns of the parties.  PSE may not assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights, 
obligations or interest under this Easement without the prior written consent of Owner, which consent may 
not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, PSE may assign this Easement to an affiliate 
or in connection with a merger, acquisition, corporate reorganization, sale of assets or other change in 
control. 

 
9. Complete Agreement; Amendment; Counterparts.  This Easement contains the entire 

agreement of the parties with respect to this subject matter and supersedes all prior writings or discussions 
relating to the Easement.  This Easement may not be amended except by a written document executed by 
the authorized representatives of Owner and PSE.  This Easement may be executed in counterparts, each 
of which shall be treated as an original for all purposes and all executed counterparts shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.  Warranty and Representation of Authority.  The Owner represents to PSE that the person 
or persons executing this Easement have authority to do so and to bind the Owner hereunder.  All consents, 
permissions and approvals related to this Easement, and the obligations hereunder, have been obtained.  
Owner further warrants to PSE that it has the necessary right, title and interests in the Property to grant the 
easement rights set forth herein. 

11. Severability.  Invalidation of any of the provisions contained in this Easement, or of the 
application thereof to any person, by judgment or court order, shall in no way affect any of the other 
provisions thereof or the application thereof to any other person and the same shall remain in full force and 
effect.  If a provision is found to be unenforceable or invalid, that provision shall be modified or partially 
enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law to effectuate the purpose of this agreement. 

12.  Non-Waiver.  The failure of any party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms, 
covenants or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights or remedies which that party 
may have hereunder or at law or equity and shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or 
default in any of such terms, covenants or conditions. 

 
 
 

Page 42 of 138



EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD TW (P18S) 
WO #101097687 / #153004468 / RW-094304 / NOT-11211420   Page 3 of 3 
 
 

 
DATED this ______ day of_______________________, 2023. 
 
 
 
 
OWNER: 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, a Political Subdivision of the State of Washington 
 
 
 
By  
     Robert Putaanssuu, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
         ) ss 
COUNTY OF         ) 
 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ROBERT PUTAANSSUU, is the person who 
appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated the 
he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as Mayor of CITY OF PORT 
ORCHARD, WASHIGNTON , a Political Subdivision of the State of Washington, to be the free and voluntary 
act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 
Dated: ___________________________  2023 
 
 
 _______________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Washington,  
  
  My Appointment Expires: __________________  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Notary seal, text and all notations must not be placed within 1” margins 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

Page 43 of 138



1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

September 6, 2023          

        Via Email: kchammer@portorchardwa.gov 

 

City of Port Orchard 

Attn:  Chris Hammer 

216 Prospect Street  

Port Orchard, WA 98366-5326 

 

 

RE: Puget Sound Energy – EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD FDR TW #101097687 / 153004468  

        Kitsap County Assessor’s Tax Parcel No.: 342401-3-035-2000 

        Project No.:   # 16 / Parcel Address: 1260, 1270 & 1272 Lloyd Pkwy, Port Orchard, WA  

 

 

Dear Mr. Hammer,   

 

Puget Sound Energy (PSE) has designed a system improvement project of the existing electrical facilities along 

SW Old Clifton Road. The purpose of this project is to improve electric system reliability by reducing power 

outages for PSE customers. The project will replace existing overhead wire with specially coated Tree Wire that 

repels tree branches and prevents shorts in the electric circuit, replace aging power poles that need to meet Kitsap 

County Clear Zone requirements and install down guy tension wires as needed.  Tree Wire has reduced power 

outages by over 90% where already installed. Although PSE normally installs utility facilities within the public 

right-of-way, sometimes conditions along the project route make it necessary for electric facilities to be placed on 

private property within easements.   

 

Enclosed please find a standard PSE easement for the portion of facilities affecting your private property. PSE 

will compensate you fair market value for the described easement area in the amount of $500.00.  PSE is offering 

an additional $1,000.00 as an incentive bonus to sign and return the easement by October 6, 2023. 

 

If you find this offer acceptable, please sign the documents in the presence of a Notary Public.  Upon receipt and 

approval of the original fully executed easement, real property voucher and completed W-9 form (enclosed), PSE 

will provide compensation as follows: 

 

 If signed easement is returned before October 6, 2023: $1,500.00 

 If signed easement is returned on or after October 6, 2023: $500.00 

 

If you have any questions, or would like to meet to discuss further, please contact me directly. If I do not hear 

from you, I plan to follow-up with a call in a few days. I appreciate your time and consideration of this easement 

offer and look forward to hearing from you.  

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Pam Haukeli - HDR Consultant 

Real Estate Representative for PSE 

425-616-5245 /pamela.haukeli@hdrinc.com  

 

Enclosures: Easement, W-9 Form, Real Property Voucher, Work Sketch  

Page 44 of 138



2 

 

 

Receipt of this letter is hereby acknowledged: 

 

    

City of Port Orchard                                                      Date 

(Signature above does not mean acceptance of offer.)

 

Page 45 of 138



EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD FDR TW 

Work Order #101097687 / 153004468 

Parcel #342401-3-035-2000 

Overhead, Pole and Anchor Easement Area 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

NOTE:  This map is not intended to represent the precise location or the extent of Puget Sound Energy’s present or 

future facilities. 

Page 46 of 138



Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Real Property Voucher Form 

 

AGENCY NAME: 

Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Attn: Real Estate, R/W Dept. 
3130 S. 38th Street 
Tacoma, WA  98409 
 

 

City of Port Orchard, Washington, a 

Political Subdivison of the State of 

Washington  

 

By:_____________________________ 

       Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

 

 

Date__________________________  

 

Phone: ________________________ 

 

 

GRANTOR OR CLAIMANT: 

City of Port Orchard 
Attn: Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
216 Prospect Street  
Port Orchard, WA 98366-5326 

PROJECT NAME:                              PUGET SOUND ENERGY – EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD FDR TW 

WORK ORDER #:                              #101097687 / 153004468 

ASSESSOR PARCEL NUMBER: 342401-3-035-2000 / 1260, 1270 & 1272 Lloyd Parkway, Pt Orchard 

PSE PARCEL NUMBER:                   #16 

   

 

In Full and Final Payment for the title or interest conveyed or released, as fully set forth in the attached 
document: 
 

Permanent Easement: $         500.00 
 

Incentive for signing before October 6, 2023 $       1,000.00 

 

Total of Final Settlement: $       1,500.00 

 
Acquisition Agent: 

 
 
  
Pam Haukeli 
HDR, Inc. 

      

 
 
                
Date 

 

 
Puget Sound Energy, Inc: 

 
 
  
Connie Corpuz, SR/WA  
Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 

 

 
 
                
Date 

 

 

Page 47 of 138



 

EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD TW (P21) 
WO #101097687 / #153004468 / RW-094304 / NOT-11211420   Page 1 of 3 
 

RETURN ADDRESS: 
Puget Sound Energy, Inc. 
Real Estate / ROW Department  
Attn:  Connie Corpuz 
3130 South 38th Street 
Tacoma, WA 98409 
 
 

 
EASEMENT 

 
 

REFERENCE #:  
GRANTOR:    CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
GRANTEE:  PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC. 
SHORT LEGAL: LOT B, SP S-1062-R1, AF# 9504240164; SW 34-24N-01E 
ASSESSOR’S TAX #: 342401-3-035-2000 
 
 
For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby acknowledged, CITY 
OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, a Political Subdivision of the State of Washington (“Owner"), 
hereby grants and conveys to PUGET SOUND ENERGY, INC., a Washington corporation ("PSE"), for the 
purposes hereinafter set forth, a nonexclusive perpetual easement over, along, across and through the 
following described real property in Kitsap County, Washington (the "Property"): 

 
LOT B, CITY OF PORT ORCHARD SHORT PLAT S-1062-R1, RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR’S 
FILE NO. 9504240164, WHICH IS AN AMENDMENT OF KITSAP COUNTY AUDITOR’S FILE 
NO. 9108050015 (PO-56R-1), RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, 
 
EXCEPT THAT PORTION OF LYING NORTHERLY OF SW OLD CLIFTON ROAD, (FORMERLY 
KNOWN AS ALDER ROAD) AND LYING EASTERLY OF LLOYD PARKWAY AS DESCRIBED 
IN AN INSTRUMENT RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR’S FILE NO. 9306180103, RECORDS OF 
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON.  

 
 

Except as may be otherwise set forth herein, PSE's rights shall be exercised upon that portion of the 
Property the ("Easement Area") described as follows: 
 

COMMENCING AT THE INTERSECTION OF THE SOUTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY MARGIN 
OF LLOYD PARKWAY AND THE NORTHWESTERLY RIGHT OF WAY MARGIN OF OLD 
CLIFTON ROAD, SAID POINT BEING THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING FOR THIS 
DESCRIPTION;  THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY SEVENTY (70) FEET ALONG THE NORTHWEST 
RIGHT OF WAY MARGIN OF OLD CLIFTON ROAD; THENCE NORTHWEST AT 90 DEGREES, 
THIRTY (30) FEET; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY TO A POINT ON THE WEST ROW MARGIN 
OF LLOYD PARKWAY, SAID POINT BEING 30 FEET NORTH OF THE POINT OF BEGINNING;   
THENCE SOUTH THIRTY (30) FEET TO TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;  

 
 

1.  Purpose.  PSE shall have the right to use the Easement Area to construct, operate, maintain, 
repair, replace, improve, remove, upgrade and extend one or more utility systems for the purposes of 
transmission, distribution and sale of electricity.  Such systems may include: 

 
Overhead facilities. Poles and other support structures with crossarms, braces, guys and 
anchors; electric transmission and distribution lines; fiber optic cable and other lines, cables and 

Page 48 of 138



 

EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD TW (P21) 
WO #101097687 / #153004468 / RW-094304 / NOT-11211420   Page 2 of 3 
 

facilities for communications; transformers, street lights, meters, fixtures, attachments and any 
and all other facilities or appurtenances necessary or convenient to any or all of the foregoing.  

 
Following the initial construction of all or a portion of its systems, PSE may, from time to time, 

construct such additional facilities as it may require for such systems. 
 
2.  Access.  PSE shall have a reasonable right of access to the Easement Area over and across 

the Property to enable PSE to exercise its rights granted in this easement. 
 
3.  Easement Area Clearing and Maintenance.  PSE shall have the right to cut, remove and 

dispose of any and all brush, trees or other vegetation in the Easement Area.  PSE shall also have the right 
to control, on a continuing basis and by any prudent and reasonable means, the establishment and growth 
of brush, trees or other vegetation in the Easement Area. 

 
4.  Restoration.  Following the initial installation, repair or extension of its facilities, PSE shall, to 

the extent reasonably practicable, restore landscaping and surfaces and portions of the Property affected 
by PSE’s work to the condition existing immediately prior to such work.  PSE shall use good faith efforts to 
perform its restoration obligations under this paragraph as soon as reasonably possible after the completion 
of PSE’s work. 

 
5.  Owner’s Use of Easement Area.  Owner reserves the right to use the Easement Area for any 

purpose not inconsistent with the rights herein granted, provided, however, Owner shall not perform the 
following activities without PSE’s prior written consent: (1) excavate within or otherwise change the grade 
of the Easement Area; (2) construct or maintain any buildings, structures or other objects on the Easement 
Area; and/or (3) conduct any blasting within 300 feet of PSE's facilities. 

 
6.  Indemnity.  PSE agrees to indemnify Owner from and against liability incurred by Owner as a 

result of PSE’s negligence, or the negligence of PSE’s employees, agents or contractors in the exercise of 
the rights herein granted to PSE, but nothing herein shall require PSE to indemnify Owner for that portion 
of any such liability attributable to the negligence of Owner, its employees, agents or contractors or the 
negligence of third parties. 

 
7.  Attorneys’ Fees.  The prevailing party in any lawsuit brought to enforce or interpret the terms 

of this Easement shall be entitled to recover its reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs incurred in said suit, 
including on appeal. 

 
8.  Successors and Assigns.  This Easement is binding upon and will inure to the benefit of the 

successors and permitted assigns of the parties.  PSE may not assign or otherwise transfer any of its rights, 
obligations or interest under this Easement without the prior written consent of Owner, which consent may 
not be unreasonably withheld.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, PSE may assign this Easement to an affiliate 
or in connection with a merger, acquisition, corporate reorganization, sale of assets or other change in 
control. 

 
9. Complete Agreement; Amendment; Counterparts.  This Easement contains the entire 

agreement of the parties with respect to this subject matter and supersedes all prior writings or discussions 
relating to the Easement.  This Easement may not be amended except by a written document executed by 
the authorized representatives of Owner and PSE.  This Easement may be executed in counterparts, each 
of which shall be treated as an original for all purposes and all executed counterparts shall constitute one 
agreement. 

10.  Warranty and Representation of Authority.  The parties each represent to the other that the 
person or persons executing this Easement have authority to do so and to bind the parties hereunder.  All 
consents, permissions and approvals related to this Easement, and the obligations hereunder, have been 
obtained.  Owner further warrants to PSE that it has the necessary right, title and interests in the Property 
to grant the easement rights set forth herein. 

Page 49 of 138



 

EPO-12 CLIFTON RD RBLD TW (P21) 
WO #101097687 / #153004468 / RW-094304 / NOT-11211420   Page 3 of 3 
 

11. Severability.  Invalidation of any of the provisions contained in this Easement, or of the 
application thereof to any person, by judgment or court order, shall in no way affect any of the other 
provisions thereof or the application thereof to any other person and the same shall remain in full force and 
effect.  If a provision is found to be unenforceable or invalid, that provision shall be modified or partially 
enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law to effectuate the purpose of this agreement. 

12.  Non-Waiver.  The failure of any party to insist upon strict performance of any of the terms, 
covenants or conditions hereof shall not be deemed a waiver of any rights or remedies which that party 
may have hereunder or at law or equity and shall not be deemed a waiver of any subsequent breach or 
default in any of such terms, covenants or conditions. 

 
 

 
DATED this ______ day of_______________________, 2023. 

 
 
OWNER: 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, a Political Subdivision of the State of Washington 
 
 
 
By:   
       Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 
 
 
 
STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
         ) ss 
COUNTY OF         ) 
 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that ROBERT PUTAANSSUU is the person who 
appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated the 
he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as Mayor of CITY OF PORT 
ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, a Political Subdivision of the State of Washington, to be the free and voluntary 
act of such party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 
Dated:      , 2023  
 
  
 _______________________________________ 
 NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the State of Washington,  
  
  My Appointment Expires: __________________  
 
 
 
 
Notary seal, text and all notations must not be placed within 1” margins 

Page 50 of 138



 

 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4F Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
 Adoption of a Resolution Approving a Prepared by: Debbie Lund 
 Contract with Public Safety Testing for  HR Director 
 Entry Level Police Officer Testing     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City of Port Orchard has utilized the services of Public Safety Testing since 2000 to 
conduct entry level police officer written and physical agility testing in accordance with Port Orchard’s 
Civil Service Rules. The contract routinely expires and needs renewal and approval every one to three 
years. Public Safety Testing is moving to a continuous contract model, providing for established and 
known pricing for future services. The contract allows either party to terminate the contract upon 60 
days written notice to the other party.  
 
Due to the extended nature of this contract, it is possible that the total expenditure could exceed the 
limit the Mayor is authorized to expend without council approval. Therefore, staff is requesting that 
Council authorize the Mayor to sign the contract, which is provided as an exhibit to the attached 
resolution.  
 
Recommendation: Staff recommends approval of the attached resolution. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt a Resolution authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
contract with Public Safety Testing for entry level police officer testing as presented.”  
 
Fiscal Impact: Included in the 2023-24 budget. 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the resolution and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments: Resolution  

Page 51 of 138



 
 

RESOLUTION NO.  _____ 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING 
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A CONTRACT WITH PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING FOR ENTRY 
LEVEL POLICE OFFICER TESTING. 

 WHEREAS; the City of Port Orchard has utilized the services of Public Safety Testing since 
2000 to conduct entry level police officer written and physical agility testing in accordance with 
Port Orchard’s Civil Service Rules, and 
 
 WHEREAS; the City desires to renew its contract with Public Safety Testing after the 
current contract expires on December 31, 2023, and 
 
 WHEREAS; the new proposed contract would exist until terminated by either 
party per the provisions of the contract, and 
 
 WHEREAS, the total expenditure for a long term contract with Public Safety Testing may 
eventually exceed the amount the Mayor may authorize without council authorization; now, 
therefore, 
 
 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, HEREBY RESOLVES AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

THAT: It is the intent of the Port Orchard City Council that the recitals set forth above are 
hereby adopted and incorporated as findings in support of this Resolution. 
 
THAT: The City Council hereby approves the Contract attached hereto as Exhibit A and by 
this reference incorporated herein.  
 
THAT: The Mayor is authorized to execute, on behalf of the City, the contract with Public 
Safety Testing for Entry-level Police Officer testing.  

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, SIGNED by the Mayor Pro-Tem and 

attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 
 

 
         
  Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST: 
 
    
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk  
 
 
 

Page 52 of 138



SUBSCRIBER AGREEMENT 

WHEREAS, Public Safety Testing, Inc. is a skilled provider of pre-employment 
testing services to police, fire, and other public safety agencies, and 

WHEREAS, the subscriber public agency, either directly or through a civil service 
commission, tests, evaluates, ranks and hires law enforcement and/or firefighters and/or 
other public safety positions in the performance of its public safety functions, and  

WHEREAS, the subscribing public entity desires to join in a Subscriber 
Agreement, NOW, THEREFORE,  

Public Safety Testing, Inc. (the “Contractor”) and the City of Port Orchard, a 
municipal corporation of the state of Washington (hereinafter “Subscriber”) do enter into 
this Subscriber Agreement under the terms and conditions set forth herein.  

SUBSCRIBER: City of Port Orchard, WA 

POSITIONS: The following positions are included in the fee structure in 
Attachment A (Subscriber may post any or all positions in a 
category at no additional charge):  

• Law Enforcement Officer (entry-level and/or BLEA
certified and/or lateral)

COMMENCEMENT DATE: January 1, 2024 

PROFESSIONAL FEES: Professional fees are described in Attachment A, which 
are incorporated herein by this reference.  

Each annual renewal beyond the initial term includes a 
4% increase in fees described in Attachment A.  

TERMINATION: This agreement is for an initial one-year term and will 
automatically renew annually unless either party 
provides a 60-day notice as outlined in Section 7. 

1. Description of Basic Services. This Agreement begins on the date as noted on page
one (1) of this Agreement. The Contractor will provide the following services to the
Subscriber:

1.1 Outreach and recruitment support, application intake processing, and
administration of pre-employment written examinations and/or physical ability 
tests for those positions noted on Page One (1) of this Agreement. 

Exhibit A

Page 53 of 138



 

Subscriber Agreement          Page 2 of 7 Public Safety Testing, Inc. 

City of Port Orchard, WA 2023   2023.01.v1 Form 

1.1.1 Written examinations are administered in-person at Contractor’s test 
events, including those conducted by Subscribing agencies; remotely 
through a network of certified college testing facilities; and, through the 
Contractor’s online, virtual in-home testing program. 

 
1.1.2 Physical ability tests for law enforcement and corrections applicants are 

administered at Contractor’s test events, including those conducted by 
Subscribing agencies, through a network of partner gym and fitness 
facilities, and through the Contractor’s online, virtual in-home testing 
program (V-PAT). 

 
1.2 Report to the Subscriber the scores of applicants, with all information 

necessary for the Subscriber to place passing applicants upon its eligibility list 
and rank them relative to other candidates on appropriately constituted 
continuous testing eligibility lists. Contractor will report “raw” test scores to the 
Subscriber – no preference points will be factored into applicant scores and it is 
the Subscriber’s responsibility to factor veteran’s preference points in 
accordance with applicable federal and state laws. Written examination scores 
will be reported to the Subscriber as a percentage score (based on 100%) and 
physical ability test scores will be reported as “Pass” or “Fail”. The passing 
score for written examinations is set by the test developer at 70%.  
 

1.3 Appear in any administrative or civil service proceeding in order to testify to and 
provide any and all necessary information to document the validity of the testing 
process, to participate in the defense of any testing process conducted by the 
Contractor pursuant to this Agreement and to otherwise provide any information 
necessary to the Subscriber to evaluate challenges to or appeals from the 
testing process. The Contractor shall appear without additional charge. The 
Subscriber shall pay the reasonable cost of travel and appearance for any 
expert witness deemed necessary by the Subscriber to validate the testing 
process, including but not limited to, representatives of any company which 
holds the copyright to any testing material and whose testimony or appearance 
is deemed necessary to validate the process.   
 
Provided, however, Contractor shall not be required to appear at its cost nor to 
defend in any administrative or court proceeding arising from or out of a claim 
or challenge relating to Subscriber's use of other testing process(es) or out of 
Subscriber's attempt to establish multiple or blended eligibility lists for the same 
position based in whole or in part on other testing process(es). “Other testing 
process(es)” means any test or testing process other than those provided by 
the Contractor under this Agreement. 
 

1.4 Term & Fees. The term of this agreement and the related professional fees are 
noted on page one (1) of this Agreement.  

 
1.5 Payment. Subscriber shall pay an amount equal to twenty-five percent (25%) 

of the annual fee set forth above quarterly for services rendered in the 
previous quarter and for basic services including but not limited to, software 
relating to online application, advertising formats, previously advertised 
scheduling of test dates, model civil service rules, testing systems, as well as 

Page 54 of 138



 

Subscriber Agreement          Page 3 of 7 Public Safety Testing, Inc. 

City of Port Orchard, WA 2023   2023.01.v1 Form 

ongoing testing and recruitment, and any and all other work developed at the 
cost of the Contractor prior to or contemporaneous with the execution of this 
Agreement. Payment due within 30 days of receipt of invoice. 

 
1.5.1 Direct Deposit (ACH Enrollment). Subscribers are encouraged to 
set up direct deposit (ACH enrollment) for their payments. There will be no 
additional fee for payments made using direct deposit (ACH enrollment). 

 
1.5.2 Credit Card. A three percent (3%) fee will be added at the time of 
payment to each payment made using a credit card. The purpose of such 
fee is to cover Contractor’s credit card processing fees. 

 
2. Additional Services. In addition to the services provided under this Agreement, the 

Subscriber may, at its sole discretion, elect to purchase additional services from the 
Contractor. Such services shall be requested by and contracted for pursuant to 
separate written agreement.   

 
3. Acknowledgements of Subscriber. The Subscriber understands and acknowledges, 

and specifically consents to the following stipulations and provisions:  
  
3.1 Because applicable civil service law prohibits having multiple eligibility lists for 

the same class of hire, this Agreement is an exclusive agreement for these 
services. 

 
3.2 The written and physical agility scores of any applicant shall be valid for 18 

months from the date of certification by the Contractor or 12 months from the 
date of placement upon the Subscriber’s eligibility list, whichever first occurs, 
following the report of the Contractor, and rules compatible with continuous 
testing shall be adopted. The Subscriber shall review its applicable hiring 
processes, advertisements, personnel policies and civil service rules (as 
applicable) to ensure compliance with the provisions of this Agreement.   

 
3.3 An applicant may, in addition to the Subscriber’s eligibility list, elect to have 

his/her score reported to and subject to placement on the eligibility list of any 
other Subscriber. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted to prohibit the 
use of an applicants’ score for consideration in or processing through any other 
subscriber’s hiring and/or civil service eligibility process. The Subscriber agrees 
that if an applicant is hired by another agency through this service, the 
applicant’s name shall be removed from Subscriber’s eligibility list. 

 
3.4 The Subscriber specifically understands and acknowledges that the Contractor 

may charge a reasonable testing fee from any and all applicants.  
 
3.5 The Subscriber is encouraged to conduct advertising as it deems necessary to 

support/enhance recruiting efforts. The Subscriber shall link 
PublicSafetyTesting.com on its agency’s website, if it so maintains one. 

 
3.6 Public Safety Testing views recruiting as a partnership with the Subscriber.  

The Subscriber agrees to actively participate in recruiting efforts for positions 
within the Subscriber agency. 

Page 55 of 138



 

Subscriber Agreement          Page 4 of 7 Public Safety Testing, Inc. 

City of Port Orchard, WA 2023   2023.01.v1 Form 

 
3.7 The Subscriber agrees to keep the Contractor up-to-date as to the agency’s 

hiring status, minimum and special requirements, all information appearing on 
the agency’s PST website profile and the names of any candidates hired 
through these services.  

 
3.8 Subscriber understands and acknowledges that a candidate’s PST Personal 

History Statement (PHS) will be stored electronically by PST for 24 months 
from the date the candidate uploads the PHS to the PST website. Any PHS 
stored more than 24 months will automatically be deleted and will no longer be 
available to the Subscriber from the PST server. 

 
4. Testing Standard and Warranty of Fitness for Use. All testing services conducted 

under this Agreement shall be undertaken in accordance with the provisions of the 
Washington State Civil Service Statutes, Chapter 41.08 and/or 41.12 and/or 41.14 
RCW, or the terms of other applicable statute as the Subscriber shall notify the 
Contractor that the Subscriber must meet. Tests shall also be conducted in 
accordance with the general standards established by the Subscriber; the 
Subscriber shall be responsible for notifying the Contractor of any unusual or special 
process or limitation. The test utilized, the proctoring of the test and any and all other 
services attendant to or necessary to provide a valid passing or failing score to the 
Subscriber shall be conducted in accordance with generally accepted practice in the 
human resources, Civil Service and Public Safety Testing community. The 
Subscriber may monitor the actions and operations of the Contractor at any time. 
The Contractor shall maintain complete written records of its procedures and the 
Subscriber may, on reasonable request, review such records during regular 
business hours. The Contractor expressly agrees and warrants that all tests and 
written materials utilized have been acquired by the Contractor in accordance with 
the appropriate copyright agreements and laws and that it has a valid right to use 
and administer any written materials and tests in accordance with such agreements 
and laws. If Subscriber uses or authorizes the use of other testing process(es) this 
warranty shall be null and void.  

 
5. Independent Contractor. The Contractor is an independent contractor. Any and all 

agents, employees or contractors of the Contractor, shall have such relation only 
with the Contractor.  Nothing herein shall be interpreted to create an employment, 
agency or contractual relationship between the Subscriber and any employee, agent 
or sub-contractor of the Contractor.   

 
6. Indemnity and Hold Harmless. The parties agree and hold harmless each other, their 

officers, agents and employees in accordance with the following provisions:  
 

6.1 The Contractor shall indemnify and hold harmless the Subscriber, its 
employees and agents from any and all costs, claims or liability arising from:  

 
6.1.1 Violation of any copyright agreement or statute relating to the use and 

administration of the tests or other written materials herein provided for;  
 
6.1.2 Any cost, claim or liability arising from or out of the claims of an 

employee, agent or sub-contractor to the end that the Contractor shall be 

Page 56 of 138



 

Subscriber Agreement          Page 5 of 7 Public Safety Testing, Inc. 

City of Port Orchard, WA 2023   2023.01.v1 Form 

an independent Contractor and the Subscriber shall be relieved of any 
and all claims arising from or relating to such employment relationships 
or contracts between the Contractor and third parties;  

 
6.1.3 The alleged negligent or tortious act of the Contractor in the provision of 

services under this Agreement.  
 
6.1.4 This indemnity shall not apply to any administrative or court proceeding 

arising from or out of any process in which the Subscriber has utilized or 
authorized other testing process(es). 

 
6.2 The Subscriber shall indemnify and hold harmless the Contractor, its officers, 

agents and employees from any and all cost, claim or liability arising from or out 
of the alleged negligent or tortious act of the Subscriber in the provision of 
services hereunder.   

 
7. Termination. This agreement is for an initial one-year term and will automatically 

renew annually unless either party provides a 60-day notice as described below.  
 

The Contractor and/or the Subscriber may also withdraw from this Agreement at any 
time for any reason with 60 days written notice, provided, however, that the 
provisions of paragraphs 1.3, 4, 5 and 6 shall remain in full force and effect following 
the termination of this Agreement with respect to, and continuing for so long as any 
applicant tested by the Contractor remains on the eligibility list of the Subscriber.  

 
  

Page 57 of 138



 

Subscriber Agreement          Page 6 of 7 Public Safety Testing, Inc. 

City of Port Orchard, WA 2023   2023.01.v1 Form 

8. Entire Agreement, Amendment. This is the entire Agreement between the parties.  
Any prior agreement, written or oral, shall be deemed merged with its provisions.  
This Agreement shall not be amended, except in writing, at the express written 
consent of the parties hereto.  
 
This Agreement is dated this ________ day of _________________, 2023.  

 
 

CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WA   PUBLIC SAFETY TESTING, INC. 
  
  
By:          By:            September 13, 2023 
 
Print:        Print: Jon F. Walters, Jr.    
 
Its:       Its: President     
 
Contact:        Jon Walters     
 
Address:        20818 – 44th Ave. W., Suite 160  
 
City/State/Zip:       Lynnwood, WA 98036   
 
Telephone:        425.776.9615    
 
Email:        jon@publicsafetytesting.com  

 

 

Invoicing Preference (select one): 
 US Postal Service Mail 
 Electronic via Email @ 

_____________________________ 
 
Subscriber’s Contact & Address for 
Billing: 
(Please complete if different from contact 
information above) 

Contact:       

Title:        

Agency:       

Address:       

City/State/Zip:      

Telephone:       

Email:       
 
 

Agency Recruiter: 

Name:       

Title:       

Email:       

 
Agency Hiring 
Representative/Supervisor: 

Name:       

Title:       

Email:       

 
Chief or Agency Director: 

Name:       

Title:       

Email:      

  

Page 58 of 138

mailto:jon@publicsafetytesting.com


 

Subscriber Agreement          Page 7 of 7 Public Safety Testing, Inc. 

City of Port Orchard, WA 2023   2023.01.v1 Form 

ATTACHMENT -A- 
 

 
 

PROFESSIONAL FEES 
 
 

SERVICE FEE NOTE 

 
PST Annual Agency Subscription: 
Law Enforcement Officer Testing 

 
 

$1,480 

 
Base annual subscription rate. 

Subscription rate will increase at 4% annually 
beginning January 1, 2025. 

 

 
Optional (select to request) 

 

 Recruiting at PST Written Exam 
Events 

(Department pays candidate’s fee to 
add department to their list of 

agencies) 
 

 
 

Current Rate 
Per candidate 

$11 
 

 
Includes those candidates that add agency to 
their candidate list following your recruitment 
effort at an in-person or virtual written exam 

session. For virtual exam events, Subscriber will 
submit a ~60-second video. 

 
Agency will be invoiced based on the rate for 

“New Agency Add-on Fee” listed in the current 
PST pricing chart.  

 

 
Optional (select to request) 

 

 Subscriber will pay candidate test 
fees which are pre-approved and 

agreed to by the Subscriber: 
 

Law Enforcement written exam & 
Physical Ability Test (PAT) events 

that do not occur on the same 
day as the PST in-person written 

exam 
 

 

 
 

Current Rates 
Per candidate 

 
 
 

$55 (written) 
$29 (PAT) 

 

 
Subscriber agrees to pay candidate testing fees 

under circumstances such as a verifiable financial 
hardship, subscriber-requested coupons to 

distribute, discounts offered by the Subscriber, 
etc. Each will be pre-approved and agreed to by 

the Subscriber. 
 

When the Subscriber pays for a candidate’s test 
fee, the Subscriber agency is removed from the 
candidate’s pricing matrix so that the Subscriber 
is not subsidizing the candidate testing for other 
non-Subscriber agencies. The candidate will pay 

if they choose to test for any other agency 
besides the Subscriber. Agency will be invoiced 
amount based on the testing fees for a single 
agency listed in the current PST pricing chart. 

 
 
 
 

Page 59 of 138

https://www.publicsafetytesting.com/information-center/pricing/
https://www.publicsafetytesting.com/information-center/pricing/
https://www.publicsafetytesting.com/information-center/pricing/


 

City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 

 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4G Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Road Closures for a Special Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 Event: 2023 Festival of Chimes and Lights  City Clerk 
        Atty Routing No: N/A  
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: Staff received a special event application for the Festival of Chimes and Lights, a festival 
scheduled for Saturday, December 2, 2023. The application states the following: 

 
EVENT: 2023 Festival of Chimes and Lights 
TYPE:  Festival   
DATE:  Saturday, December 2, 2023 

TIME: Setup starts at 2:45pm, open to public at 3:15pm until 7:30pm, cleanup to be completed 
by 8:00pm  

LOCATION: Port of Bremerton Parking Lot Water Street Boat Launch and Kitsap Bank Drive-Thru 
located next to Orchard Avenue, and SR166/Bay Street 

CLOSURE(S):  SR166/Bay Street: Kitsap Street to Sidney Avenue, Frederick Avenue, Robert Geiger, and 
Orchard Street 

 
The required notice, pursuant to POMC 5.94.050(3), allowing citizens to provide written comments 
regarding how allowing the special event will impact their property, business, or quality of life has been 
published and to-date, the City received no written comments addressing their concerns regarding this 
event taking place.  
 
Staff and outside agencies have reviewed the application and are working towards ensuring public safety 
measures and traffic control are in place.  
 
Pursuant to Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.050(4), staff shall bring forward the special event 
application to the City council for approval when the event requires a street or highway closure. 
 
Staff are in support of the road closures, as presented, and will continue to ensure the event meets the 
safety and traffic control standards outlined in City, State, and Federal codes. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
   
Recommendation: Staff recommends the approval of the road closures, as presented. 
 

Page 60 of 138



Consent Agenda 4G 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Motion for consideration: I move to approve the road closures for the 2023 Festival of Chimes and 
Lights, scheduled for Saturday, December 2, 2023, as presented. 
 
Fiscal Impact:  None. 
 
Alternatives: Deny the road closures and provide direction to staff. 
 
Attachments: Application, including maps and traffic flow maps, and comments. 
    

Page 61 of 138



R

Specral Evrrur Pe nurr Appu
(Ponr Oncunno Murrrrqpel Cooe 5.94 nruo 5.96)

sTANDARD PRocEssrNG ree: $s0.00

REVISED

Event Overview

Event Details

Name of event: 2023 Festival of chimes and Lights
Location of event: Port of Bremefton Parking Lot Water St Boat Launch, Kitsap Bank Drive-Thru

Type of Event: lr/ lrestivaf lklRun I lnaraOe endor Fair I lconcert

! Block Party tr Other:_
Event or Orga'nization Website:

Website: https://portorchardwa. gov/festival-of-chimes-and-lights/

Facebook: https ://www.facebook. com/profi le. ph p?id = 1 00083070324405

Description of event:

Annual kickoff to the holiday season. This will be a live, free event with choirs, marching band,
non-profits offering food and beverages, photos with Santa, lighted boats, tree decorating
contest, and coordination with local organizations with holiday lights and decorations.

Set Up Starts: Take Down Complete:

Start Day:

Saturday
Start Date:
121212023

Start Time
2:45pm

End Day:

Saturday
End Date:
121212023

L.nd ltme
8:00pm

Event Dates/Times: lndicate Dates/Times OPEN to attendees Expected Daily Attendance:
Participants Spectators volunteers/staff

Day:

Sat.
Date:

12t2t2023
Start Time

3:1Spm
End Time:

7:30pm 500 3,000 30

Day: Date: Start Time End Time:

Day: Date: Start Time hncl lrme:

Additional details: (attach additional pages as needed for additional days or details)

Please see attached page for more information.

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Paee3 of 12
Page 62 of 138



Qorf.ORCIIARD

Specrnl Everur Pe nur ApplrcRnoru
(Ponr Oncrnno Mururcrpnt Coou 5.94 nruo 5.96!

STANDARD PRocEssrNG rer: $5o.oo

Event Ov6rview

Event Details

Name of event: 2023 Festival of chimes and Lights
tocation of event: g St in front of Hall POB Waterfront Lot#2
Type of Event: Parade

nottr Block Party

estival k/Run dor Fair rt

Event or Organization Website:

Website : https ://portorcha rdwa. gov/festiva

FacebooK: https ://www,facebook,co

es-and-lights/

p?id=1 00083070324405

Description of event:

Annual kickoff to the holiday season. Th
non-profits offering food and beverages
contest, and coordination with local

ll be a live, free event with choirs, marching band,
s with Santa, lighted boats, tree decorating

nizations with holiday lights and decorations.

Set Up Sta Take Down Complete:

Start Day:

Saturdav
Start Date:
12t2t2023

Start Time:
2:45pm

End Day:

Saturday
End Date:

121212023
End Time:
8:00pm

Expected Dally Attendance:
Participants Spectators volunteers/staff

Event Dates/Times: lndicate OPEN to attendees

End Timer

7:30pm 500 5,500 30
Day:

Sat
Date:

1212120237
;start Time:

3:1Spm
Day Date Start Time: End Time:

Day: Date Start Time: End Time:

Please s hed page for more information
additional pages as needed for addltlonal days or details)

clty of Port Orchard I Special Event Appllcatlon
Revlsed ilfi/2023

Page 3 of 12

Page 63 of 138



Does your event require a paid fee for participants and/or spectators? Yes ,/ t'lo

Does your event require minimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators? JY"t /No
Admission/participation fee/ suggest donations amount(s)

N/A

REVISED

Admission Fees:

Organization lnformation *

*Pleqse note the orgqnizotion informotion provided moy be shored for inquires made on event detqils

Insuronce

The sponsoring organization must provide an insurance certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with the

City of Port Orchard shown as Additional Named lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

51,000,000 tiability; S1,000,000 Bodily tnjury

Special Event lnsurance for events held at city-owned facilities can be purchased at eventinsure,hubinternational.com/,

Porking Impacts

Have parking impacts been coordinated with neighbors (residential/business)? No Not Applicable

lf yes, how will parking be provided for participants and visitors (including handicapped parking)? You may submit a map to
show the available parking for this event in place of providing a written description below.

Parking is available in Lots 2,3,4 and 8 and on Sidney Avenue, Prospect Street, Kitsap Street

city of Port orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 4 ol t2

Name of Organization City of Port Orchard
Do you have an active City Business License? lt"t What is your UBI number?

Point of Contact Name: Brandy Wallace
Street Address:

216 Prospect Street

Mailing Address: (if different from street address)

N/A

citY: pod orchard State: 1ry4 Zip: 96366 City: State: zip:

Phone: g60.g76.44OT Alternate Phone E mai I : 

";ry6.t1@portorchardwa.gov

Page 64 of 138



lvesDoes your event require a paid fee for participants and/or spectators?

/NoY/Does your event require minimum or suggested donation for participants and/or spectators?

Admission/participation fee/ suggest donations amount(s)

N/A

Name of Organization: City of port Orchard

[.t is your UBI number?Do you have an active City Business License?

Point of Contact Name: Brandy WallaCe
/Mailing Address: (if different from street address)

N/A

Street Address:

216 Prospect Street

State: Zip:City:City: porl Orchard State: q14 Zlp:

E mail : 
";1r5"11@portorchardwa.gov

Phone: 360.876.4402 Alternate

Admission Fees:

Organization lnformation*

*Please note the orgonization lnformotion provided be shored lor lnquires mode on event detolls

lnsurance

The sponsoring organization must provide certificate, with endorsements, at least 30 days prior to the event with the

City of Port Orchard shown as Additional ed lnsured with minimum coverage to be as follows:

St,ooo,ooo Llabillty; Sl,ooo,ooo lnjury

Special Event lnsurance for events atcity.ownedfacllltlescanbepurchasedat@.

Parking lmpacts

Have parking impacts coordinated with neighbors (residentiaUbusiness)? rvoMrrrotnpplicable

lf yes, how will parking provided for participants and visitors (including handicapped parking)? You may submlt a map to
show the available for this event in place of providing a written description below.

Parking is ble in Lots 3, 4, I and on Sidney Avenue, Prospect Street, Kitsap Street

City of Port orchard I special Event Appllcation
Revlsed 1/70/2023

Page 4 of 72

Page 65 of 138



REVISED

Use of City Streets ond/or State Highway

STATE HIGHWAY:

Will this event require closure of a State Highway (most common is Bay Street/SR166)?

lTeaystreet/sR 166

E:

71v", [*

ZJ'", f*"

o

lf yes, which highway: Sedgwick Road Mile HillDrive

For Stste Highwoy Closures, the sponsoring orgonization must submit the application to the city ot least 720 calendar doys

before the event dote. Upon city approvol of the event, the sponsoring organization sholl seek permission from the Washington

Stqte Depdrtment of Tronsportotion (WSDOT) by completing qn online opplication, Once permission is gronted from WSDQT,

s copy of the Letter of Acknowledgment or on Agreement will need to be provided to the city 45 doys prior to the event,

WSDOT'; online opplicotion is locsted ot; https://www.wsdot.wa.sov/contact/events/special-events

CIW PROPERVSTREETS (Rieht-of-wavl: Port Orchard Municipal Code 5.94.020(7) states "Right-of-way (ROW)" means

any road, public parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in the city open as a matter of right to public travel and

shall include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, bicycle paths and pedestrian ways; including streets or portions thereof

which are designated as portions of the state highway system."

Will this event require closure of any of the below public property/ right-of-way?

lf yes, indicate what type of public property is requested to be closed and the location (select all that apply):

City Park(s):

Zee Park McCormick Turner
Park Park

Rockwell Park

ul Powers

rk

Parking Lot(s):

I Park ivens Park

Lot 1: between Orchard and Frederick streets on the north side of Bay Street

Lot 2: between Frederick Street and Sidney Avenue, north of Bay St.

Lot 3: five rows of parking west of Harrison Ave and east of and parallel to the library

Lot 4: all parking east of Lot 3 and Harrison Ave and west of the Marina Park

Lot 5: all parking on City Hall property in front of the Police department

Lot 6: abutting the landscaped area at the SW corner of the Bay St and Dekalb St intersection

Lot 7: all parking spaced located on the library property which is limited to library staff only

Lot 8: employee parking lot east of City Hall adjacent to Prospect Alley which is between Kitsap Street and Prospect
Street.

N/A
Sidewalk(s):

city of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 5 of 12
Page 66 of 138



Use of City Streets and/or State Highway

STATE HIGHWAY:

Will this event require closure of a state Highway (most common is Bay street/SR166)? |71v",

lf yes, which highway: Etrr Street/sR 165 Sedgwlck Road Mlle

For State Hlghwoy Closures, the sponsorlng orgonlzotlon must suhmft the applicotion to the Iedst 720 mlendar days

belore the event ddte. Upon clty opprovol ofthe event, the sponsorlng orgdnlzation shqll seek from the Washington

State Depa4ment of Tronsportotton (WSDOT) by compteting on online opplication. Once ls granted from WSDAT,

a copy of the Lettet of Acknowledgment or on Agreement will need to be provlded city 45 doys pilor to the event.

WSDOIs onllne oppllcotlon ls located ot:

CITY PROPERTY/SIREETS (Risht-of-wavX Port Orchard Municipal Code 7) states "Right-of-way (ROW)" means

any road, puplic parking lot, city street, highway, boulevard or place in

shall include arterials, neighborhood streets, alleys, blcycle paths and

open as a matter of right to public travel and

n ways; including streets or portions thereof

which are deslgnated as portions of the state highway system."

Wlll thls event requlre closure of any of the below public p right-of-way?

lf yes, lndlcate what type of public property ls requested to closed and the location (select all that apply):

City Park(sl:

Zl'", I'o

l_lp.rtuPark

Zee Park

Powers

Turner Rockwell Park

s Park

lot 1: between Orchard streets on the north slde of Bay Street

lot 2: between Frederick and Sldney Avenue, north of Bay St.

lot 3: flve rows of pa west of Harrlson Ave and east of and parallel to the llbtary

Lot 4: all parklng Lot 3 and Harrison Ave and west of the Marlna Park

Lot 5: all parklng City Hall property ln front of the Police department

Lot 5; abutting landscaped area at the SW corner of the Bay St and Dekalb St intersection

lot 8:

spaced located on the library property which is llmlted to library staff only

parklng lot east of City Hall adjacent to Prospect Alley which is between Kitsap Street end Prospect

Street,

N/A

Park

Parking Lot(s):

Lot 7: all pa

Sidewalk(sl:

{

clty of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Appllcatlon
Revtsed r/n/2023

Page 5 of 12

Page 67 of 138



street(s): Bay Street from Kitsap Street to Sidney Avenue, orchard Avenue, Frederick Ave

lf requestlng street or hlghway closure, flll out the "Detalls of Closure" sectlon below and provlde s tralflc control plon ol
the area lmpacted,

Traffic Control Plan:

A traffic control plan is required for all street and highway closuies and must be submltted wlth this appllcatlon.
See example Slte Plan. The followlng is required to be on the plan(s):

Detour route(s) and Elcycle routes how many, where, how long, etc.

How many, what kind of signs, were will they be located, who is putting them up, who will be taking them

down, etc,

Certified flaggers: how many willthere be, where willthey be stationed, what time willthey be there, what time will

they be gone, etc,

Should your event require traffic control and certified flaggers to manage the road closures, provide the following

informatlon:

Details of Closure(s):

Name of the Traffic Control company: Will be managed by pUbliC WOrkS

Point of Contact Namel
Public Works Director

Phoner

360.876.4991

Alternate Phone:

N/A

Email

pu blicworks@portorch a rdwa. gov

Street Namei Between
/rracc ctraafl

And
hrncc clraafl,

Start Datel Start Time; End Date: End Time:

Bay Street Kitsap Sidney Ave 121212023 3:00pm 12t212023 7:30pm

Orchard St Bay Street N/A 12t212023 3:00pm 121212023 7:30pm

Frederick Ave Bay Street N/A 121212023 3:00pm 12t2t2023 7:30pm
Additlonal details: (attach additional pages as needed for more streets and/or more details about use,)

See attached maps

Clty of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Appllcation
Revlsed 1/10/2023

Page 6 of 12

Page 68 of 138



Al cohol Sa I es/Se rvi ces

The sale, serulce and consumption of alcoholic beverages are subject to Washington State Liquor & Cannabis Board (WSLCB)

regulations, licensing, and permit requirements. WSLCB Special Occasion and other Licenses and related fees for alcohol

sales/service at events are not included in the City's Special Event Permit, Visit the WSLCB website, bllpEifllgb.,l[Aggl for

additlonal lnfgrmation and to apply for the appropriate license / Permlt.

M*oWill alcohol be sold or consumed at your event? tt

*lf yes, you must contdct the Washington State Liquor ond Cqnnabis Board for o speclol liquor llcense,

Food Sales/Service

You wlll need to reqch out to the Kltsap Publtc Heolth Dlstrlct os they moy requlre a tempordry food estdbllshment permlt.

Vlstt thetr webslte at https:/&ltsagouhllchealth.oro/FoodSafery/food vendorc,ohp or call (360) 728-2235 for lnlormqtion,

Will your event have any food service and/or lf yes, how many 4

Will your event have professional catering?

Will your event have food truck(s)?

satesrflves

fl"'
fl'u'

Zl'"
Zlu"

lf yes, how many

lf yes, how many:--
Washington State Fire Code section 105.6.30 Mobile food preparation vehicles is defined as:

An operotionat permit is required for mobile food preplrotion vehlcles equipped with oppllonces that
produce smoke or grease-loden vopors or utilize LP-gos systems or CNG systems. Contoct Community

Development.

. FoodTrucksafetyHandout

. Moblle Food Preoaratlon Vehlcle Permlt Apnlicatlon

Garhage, and Recycling

Collection Stations; How many bins are you providing as collection containers at your event?

e G
8 12

Will you manage your own recycling and garbage collection or wi

N/A

it be managed by a vendor?

Llst vendor/company, if applica ble:

Detall your plan for waste management within the event area and surrounding neighborhood:

City will provide this service as well as other businesses participating in the event.

Clty of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Applicatlon
Revlsed 1/10/2023

PaBe 7 of 12

Page 69 of 138



REVISED

Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be available to the public for you r event: 5 public restrooms and 13 portable toilets

Below is an example of the estimated amounts needed per the amount of users recommended in the FEMA Speciol Events

Contingency Plonning: Job Aids Monual.

No. of users (50% male and 50% female) Minimum number of portable toilets

Up to 240 3

250 to 499 4

500 to 900 6

1,000 to 1,999 12

2,000 to 2,999 25

3,000 to 3,999 38

4,000 to 4,999 50

Msster Multi-Vendor Event License

willyour event have vendors?fiv", l_lruo e
lf so, how many anticipated exhibitors/vendors will be at your event? -L 

-
lf so, will they be selling merchandise and/ or food? [Yes Eho - lf you indicated Yes, please see the Food section on Page

4 of this application.

POMC 5.96, if your event hos two or more vendors engaged in public property vending, you ore required to hove a Moster

Multi-Vendor Event License (MMVEL). The MMVEL fee is $t5.00 per doy or S2OO per month. POMC 5.96.020(3)(s) states the

sponsor ol the mqster event sholl provide a tist of porticipoting vendors, their business nomes, their oddresses snd their Stqte

Tax Revenue tdentilication Numbers to the city clerk within three working doys ofter the first day of the operotion,

. No public vending is allowed within twenty-five (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within

ten (10) feet of intersection sidewalks.
o Vending devices must be removed from vending sites daily between the hours of 10:00 p.m. and 6:00 a.m.

r Vending devices and vending sites must always be clean and orderly. The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsible for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed

each,day along with vending devices.
o Vendors may engage in public property vending only in the location specified in the public property license. The

location shall be deemed the vending site.

o Utility service connections are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the

adjacent property owner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the

sidewalk.
. No mechanical audio or noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed,
r A vinyl or canvas umbrella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-

half feet. Any part of the umbrella must have a minimum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area on which

the vending device stands,
. lndividual vendor advertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising

signs may be placed as approved by the city engineer; and
o No conduct shall be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

city of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 8 of 12

Page 70 of 138



Restrooms

Prove the number of restrooms that will be avallable to the public for you r even* 6 public

Below ls an example of the estlmated amounts needed per the amount of users reco

Contingency Plannlng: Job Aids Monuol.

Moster Multi-Vendor Event License

willyour event have vendors?ffiv"r [ruo 3
lf so, how many anticipated exhlbitors/vendors will be event?

Eho - f you indicated Yes, please see the Food section on Page

and 23 portable toilets

in the FEMA Special Events

POMC 5,96, lf your event hos two or more engaged ln public property vending, you are required to hqve q Moster

Multl-Vendor Event Llcense (MMVEL), The lee ls $75,00 per doy or $200 per month. POMC 5,96,020(3)(o) states the

sponsor ol the mqster event shall provide o llst panlclpotlng vendors, thelr buslness nomes, thelr dddresses and thelr State

Tax Revenue ldenttficotion Numbers to the clerk withln three worklng doys ofter the ftrst day of the operutlon.

o No public vending is allowed (25) feet of any municipal building, monument, or fountain, OR within
ten (10) feet of intersection lks.

r Vending devices must be from vending sites daily between the hours of 10:00 p,m. and 6:00 a.m

. Vending devices and must always be clean and orderly, The vendor must furnish a suitable refuse

container and is responsibl for the daily disposal of refuse deposited therein. Refuse containers must be removed

each day along with vend devices.

property vending only in the location specified in the public property license, The. Vendors may engage in p

lf so, will they be selling merchandise and/ or food?

4 of thls application.

locatlon shall be
r Utility servlce con

sidewalk.
r No mechanical

the vending site.
are not permitted, except electrical when provided with written permission from the

noisemaking devices are allowed, and no hawking is allowed.

adjacent property ner. Electrical lines are not allowed overhead or lying in the pedestrian portion of the

. A vinyl or canvas rella may be added to the vending device, but its open diameter may not exceed eight and one-

half feet. Any of the umbrella must have a mlnlmum of seven feet of vertical clearance to the area on whlch
stands.the vending

r lndlvldual dvertising signs may be placed only upon the vending device. Temporary master event advertising

signs may be aced as approved by the city engineer; and

be permitted which violates any other section of the Port Orchard Municipal Code.

Clty of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Application
Revlsed 1/10/2023

Page 8 of 12

Minimum nurD$er of portable toiletsNo, of users (50% male and 50% female)

3up to 240

4/250 to 499

6/500 to 900

t2/1,000 to 1,999

2,000 to 2,999 25/
3,000 to 3.999 3d

4,000 to 4,999 6o

. No conduct sh

Page 71 of 138



REVISED

Tents

Does your event'include a tent or membrane structure? Zlr", Applicable

lf yes, what is the tent size:
20x20

Does the tent have sides? E Yes ENo E ruot applicable

May be required to obtain d permit per POMC 20.200.016.Pp1eose contact Community Development (360) 874-5533,

Event Signage

Are you planning to put up temporary signs? EYes EIruo

POMC 20.732,290 "Temporary sign" (which may include special event sign) means any sign that is used temporarily and is

not permanently mounted, painted or otherwise affixed, excluding portable signs as defined by this chapter, including any
poster, banner, placard, stake sign or sign not placed in the ground with concrete or other means to provide permanent
support, stability and rot prevention. Temporary signs may only be made of nondurable materials including, but not limited
to, paper, corrugated board, flexible, bendable or foldable plastics, foamcore board, vinyl canvas or vinyl mesh products of
less than 20-ounce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products without polymeric plasticizers and signs painted or drawn
with water soluble paints or chalks. Signs made of any other materials shall be considered permanent and are subject to the
permanent sign regulations of this chapter. Please contact the Community Development Department at (360) 874-5533 if
you have questibns or if you need to apply for a sign permit.

Amplified Sound

Does your event have any amplified sound? Mt"r I*o

Noise levels generoted sholl not be in excess of ollowoble levels, consistent with POMC 9.24.050. For more inlormation
please contoct the Port Orchord Police Deportment (360) 876-1700,

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revised 1/10/2023

Page 9 of 12

lndicate dates/time of any amplified sound below

Day:

Saturday
Date:
December 2,2023

Start Time:
3:30pm

End Time:
7:30pm

Day: Date Start Time: End Time:

Day: Date Start Time: End Time:

Describe what sound will be amplified, and at what hours (e.9,, 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background music, etc.):

Christmas music from Gordon Sound from 3:30pm to 7:30pm. Announcements in POB parking lot
estimated around 5:00pm. Choirs singing POB parking lot estimated around 5:00pm.

Describe what equipment will be used for amplified sound, and at what locations (show in maps):

Sound system stage provided by Gordon Sound.
Describe schematics and direction of amplified sound (show in maps, attach supporting documents as needed

Sound coming from POB parking lot on Bay Street towards Bay Street, Dekalb, Prospect.

Page 72 of 138



Tents

Does your event include a tent or membrane structure? Zh",
20x20lf yes, what is the tent size:

Moy be required to obtoin a permit per POMC 20,200,O76.Ppleqse contoct Communlty

Event Signage

Are you planning to put up temporary slgns? EYes Elruo

POMC 20.732.290'Iemporcry slgn" (which may include special event sign)

Amplilied Sound

Does your event have any amplifled sound? Mvu,

Applicable

Does the tent have sides? E Yes E trtot appllcable

(360) 874-ss33,

any slgn that is used temporarlly and ls

clty of Port Orchard I Special Event Appllcatlon
Revlsed tn0/202i

PaSe 9 of 12

not permanently mounted, painted or otherwlse affixed, excluding slgns as deflned bythls chapter, lncludlng any
poster, banner, placard, stake slgn or slgn not placed ln the ground concrete or other means to provide permanent

support, stabillty and rot preventlon. Temporary slgns may only be
to, paper, corrugated board, llexible, bendable or foldable plastics,

of nondurable materials lncludlng, but not llmlted
board, vinyl canvas orvinyl mesh products of

less than zO-dunce fabric, vinyl canvas and vinyl mesh products polymeric plasticlzers and slgns palnted or drawn
wlth water soluble palnts or chalks. Slgns made of any other ls shall be consldered permanent and are subJect to the

munity Development Department at (360) 874-5533 ifpermanent slgn regulatlons of thls chapter. Please contact
you have questlons or lf you need to apply for a slgn permlt.

Nolse levels generated not be In excess ol allowoble levels, consistent with POMC 9,24.050. For more informatlon

lndicate dates/tlme of any ampllfied sound

Start Time:
3:30pm

End Time:
7:30pm

Day:
Saturday ,d3

Date:

December 2,
End Time:Day: Date:

/
Start Time;

End Time:Day: Date:

/
Start Tlme:

(e.g,, 7:00am announcements, 8:00am background music, etc'):

Sound from 3:30pm to 7:30pm. Announcements in front of City Hall
singing in front of Gity Hall estimated around 5:00pm.

and at at hours

estirnated around 5:00pm.

Describe what sound will be a

Christmas music from

for amplified sound, and at what locations (show in maps):

by Gordon Sound. Speakers, microphones, keyboard, and CD player.

Describe what equipment will

Sound system

(show in maps, attach supporting documents as needed

City Hall on Bay Street towards Bay Street and boat launch area.

of amplified

please contact the Port Pollce Department (360) 876-7700.

Page 73 of 138



Site Map
A site map is requlred to be submitted which includes the following:

Vendors:

Beer Garden:

Signage:

Tents:

Public entrances and exits:

Road closures and detours;

Traffic patterns:

Flre Lanes:

Garbage/Recycling:

Barricades:

First Aid;

Parking:

Restrooms:

Yes E*o
Yes M*"

Not applicable

Not appllcable

Not applicable

Not appllcable

Not applicable

Not applicable

Not appllcable

Not appllcable

Not applicable

Not appllcable

Not appllcable

Not appllcable

f,,",

Mr",
Mr",
Mr",
Mr",
[71,",

8,",
171,",

171,",

171,",

|-2,",

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No

No llruotappticaute

No

No

lf event is a run/walk, list start and stop locations and water/rest stations:

No l7lruot applicable

Release

I certify that the event for which this permit is to be used will not be in violation of any City of Port Orchard ordinance.

By applying for this special event permit, the organlzatlon or entlty obtaining such permit agrees to defend, indemnlfo, and hold

harmless the City, its offlcers, officials, employees and volunteers from all claims, injuries, damages, losses, or suits, includlng

attorney fees and costs, arislng out of or in conjunctlon with the activlties or operations performed by the applicant or on the

appllcant's behalf resulting from the lssuance of this permlt, except for injuries and damages caused by the sole negllgence of the

Clty.

The lnlormatlon on thls lorm ls consldered o publlc record ond ls subJect to publlc dlsclosure lqws in chopter 42,56 RCW,

l, as the President or Chalr of my organlzatlon, agree to the terms and condltlons llsted above.

Brandy Wallace r)

Yes

of Organlzatlon Print Name

City of Port Orchard I Special Event Appllcatlon
Revised 7fi0/2023

Page 10 of 12

Page 74 of 138



FOR CITY CTERKS OFFICE USE ONTY

Date Special Event Fee Paid (S50) Receipt

lnsurance Certificate(s) Received:

Does event require a Master Multl-Vendor License: X Ves E ruo

ff Yes: E $rslday tee E $zoOlmonthly fee

Number of days: Total Amount: _ Date paid: _ Receipt No.:_

Departme nt/Age ncy Routing:

E poltce ! public Works E Flnance ! Community Development D ritsap Transit E Clerk's Office E Health District

Public Notice Datesr

CouncllAction l\a+a.

clty of Port Orchard I Speclal Event Appllcation
Revlsed ilfi/2023

Page 11 of 12

Qotf,()RC}IARD

Page 75 of 138



Special Event Permit Aoplication Checklist

Please use this list to ensure you have included all supporting documentation with your special event

application.

lf your event coincides with another organizations event in the same location, please provide written approval

from the event organizer that indicates their approval of your event.

Reviewed Special Event Tool Kit

Written approvalfrom property owner lf location is on non-City owned property (if appllcable) (Page 2)

Speclal Event Fee (Check, Cash, Credit Card) (Page 3)

lnsurance Certiflcate, with endorsement, provided at least 30 days prior to event date (Page 4)

lfthere are road closures, have you attached a traffic control plan (Page 6)

Special Liquor [icense (if applicable) (PaCe 7)

Contact Department of Community Development for sign permit or food trucks (if applicable) (Page 7 and 9)

Master Multi-Vendor Event Llcense fee (if applicable) (Page 8)

Contact Department of Community Development for tent permit (if applicable) (PaCe 9)

Completed site map (Page 10)

Speclal Event Appllcatlon/Release is completed and signed by the President or Chair of organization (Page 10)

Upon event approval, use of State Highway Letter of Acknowledgment or an Agreement that is received

from the Department of Transportation if State Highway is requested to be closed (Page 5)

Tips for a event

t Contact the local media (Kitsap Sun, Port Orchard lndependent, etc.).

.3. Post information on your social media site.

{' Contact the Port Orchard Chamber of Commerce or Port Orchard Bay Street Association,

.1. Attend a Clty Council rneeting to speak during citizen comments letting councll and public know of your event.

clty of Port Orchard I Special Event Application
Revlsed 1/10/2023

Page 12 of x2

Page 76 of 138



REVISED

2023 Festival of Chimes and Lights

Additional details

The largest crowds are expected to be from 4:30pm to 5:00pm in the Port of Bremerton parking

lot and on Bay Street in front of City Hall. Expected crowd to be 3,000. This is during the tree
lighting cefemony, choirs, and public announcements.

Large crowds are expected to be from 5:45pm to 7:00pm near the Kitsap Bank drive-thru on

Orchard Avenue for photos with Santa. Expected crowd to be 500.

Large crowds are also expected to be viewing the lighted boats at the Port of Bremerton Marina
Expected, staggard crowds estimated around 1,000 to be from around 4pm to 7:30pm.

Porta potties will be located in the Port of Bremerton boat launch parking lot and in the Kitsap

Bank parking lot. There are 3 toilet stalls and one urinal at the Marina Park and 2 stalls at the
boat launch.

Santa meets up with the firetruck in the boat launch parking lot, then pulls out, The band

marches ahead of Santa. They will exit the POB parking lot by taking left on Bay Street to
Frederick Avenue, take a left on Frederick Avenue, then left into the Kitsap Bank Drive-Thru

location.

Due to construction, parking lots 1 and 5 will be closed and this event will not be utilizing those
location.

Page 77 of 138



2023 Festival of Chimes and Lights

Additional details

Due to construction downtown, including on City Hall which may utilize the parking lot in
front of the police department on Bay Street, we understand we may need to find an

alternative location for the choirs, stage and large tree.

The largest crowds are expected to be from 4:30pm to 6:00pm in front of City Hall on Bay

Street and in the Port of Bremerton parking lot, Expected crowd to be 3,500. This is during the
tree lighting ceremony, choirs, and public announcements.

Large crowds are expected to be from 5:45pm to 7:00pm in lot 2. Expected crowd to be 500.

This is for photos with Santa and Ms, Claus who will be located in the grassy area by the water
in lot 2.

Large crowds are also expected to be viewing the lighted boats at the Port of Bremerton Marina

Expected, staggard crowds estimated around 1,000 to be from around 4pm to 7:30pm.

Porta potties will be located in the Port of Bremerton boat launch parking lot and in the Kitsap

Bank parking lot. There are 3 toilet stalls and one urinal at the Marina Park and 2 stalls at the

boat launch,

Santa meets up with the firetruck in the boat launch parking lot, then pulls out. The band

marches ahead of Santa. They will go down Bay Street, turn left into Frederick and right into
parking lot 2.

Due to construction, parking lot 1 will be closed and this event will not be utilizing that location

Page 78 of 138



Chris Esguera, Foreman

December 2, 2023

Not To S€le

Dmwn By:

Scale:

/.i. Legend
r Barrier 12

: Closed off Area 1 1

I Closed off Area 2 I
O Detour Ahead Sign/DA 3

E Detour LefURight 1

n Detour Left 2

I Detour Right 2

@ No Left Turn I
st Pickup Truck 3

@ Road Closed 3

a Road Closed Ahead 4

-- Snow Plow Truck I

0 Special Event Ahead (SEA) 3

Chimes & Lights Festival2023

Downtown TCP

eotzt Est r'e

oB!HUL

Page 79 of 138



August 1, 2023

Not To Scale

Chris Esguerra, ForemanDrawn By:

Date:

Smle:

B Detour LefURight

E Detour Left

m Detour Right

il Pickup Truck

ra Road Closed
*- Snow Plow Truck

10

1

1

1

1

2

2

E

3

-*-S. Legend
Barrier

Cones

Chimes & Lights Festival 2023

Downtown TCP - Bay/Kitsap/Cline

Est. 1890

IIARD
"oRc

h +
.l\

"t_

tr"t ' '11' ;r1,il'
\'in

tr
rfi

\.:.
ll

,. '':
tt,/

I,l
I
I

-t

f
\t
11

..,F -,"

(

.i
t''+. f

l,t

k, ,-Tl ..-\-&.;r
i- Fr ,.'. I
' ti':*

|'
\|

';

effi
-:)u

-r\:-.-- o
.7,

\ 6:.! i i,

.n{}
{t

.'iP-d: ''r. L vi

rr
_1..l

\
t

i:;yjr.a I
I

I
I

i
!

L^

rt"" {::, .-)
q.

.a.-{t

E'

\.

f

i'
t
t(.

€ r:rF
t

t"-
('

:fr- I

Page 80 of 138



Chris Esguera, Foreman

August 1, 2023

Not To S€le

Drawn By:

Date:

Scale:

<+ Legend

C Cones

@ Detour Ahead Sign/DA
B Detour Left
B Detour Right

@ No Left Turn
ld!&J Road Closed

16

1

1

1

1

1

Chimes & Lights Festival 2023

Downtown TCP - Sidney/Bay

QOnt 
Est rseo

.ORCHARD

{!, ( (
tr

-'J'
(.''

(
(}- (r.,

I
{

I
I
i
il

{
i

I H-
tl
t,
H{_

T
"L-lJft*

n7
I i:-'r='
(,t :

fi.:

Ct*

/ .II

f

It
I
!

I
I

t'

:\ - r ,t
".'i'i

I
t'f(**:'

't
I

.,/r-'.
I

+
q{"\-'-\ ' :{

',]"... .-\ /
f-v

t"' lt 
-\, -,
\-t

.l
od.l

*B a
' tt

'',r'\
rli r;,. l

'ir _t I
i

r-, t,1:'1 |

16r ,,

. :) ' I''oi\ I I

i] ' tt I
'l' ' -l

JI
I

q'.1.

Hu
tli
n
ll
F

!
I

4

{
l

I
I
I

. ti
.:

r.. Ji(--- -\-
i,"--

,
?i'

I

, L:'.ii l
/

/
tl'
1

'r.al:,:

:+)

.'d

t . . !1.. _**^'.* . - J.

:

+:

!r-..
i-.,'r,

l'$-
tt

ir\

1

/,i! ... rii;qigi;jr$a.
\.1 lt'

ETOU

Page 81 of 138



rw
PORT OF BREMERTON
WATERF'RONT PARKS

APPLICATION

This is an application to conduct a Social Aotivity or Commercial Activity in one of the Port of
Brem erton's Waterfront Parks :

r Poft of Bremedon's Breakwater Park at Brenredon
r Port of Bremerton's Marina Park at Pott Orchard

o Gazcbo Arca
o Soroptirnist Overlook Pavilion
o Grandstand Area

r Poft of Brernerton's Water Street Boat Launch Park

PARK LOCATION: !n BREMERTON or m PORT ORCHARD

WATERFRONT pARK NAME: Port of Bremerton's Water Street Boat Launch Park

DATES OF EVENT: 1212/2023 TIME: 3:00pm to 7:30pm

EVENT NAME: Festival of Chimes and Lights

CONTACTNAME: Brandy Wallace PHONE: 360,876.7030

ORGANIZATION NAME (if applicable):

B-MAIL: bwatlace@podorchardwa.gov

City of Port Orchard

AREA REQUESTED: Porl of Bremerton's Water Street Boat Launch Park Parking Lot

FACILITIES NEEDED: RESTTOOMS

OTHER NEEDS (Electricity, awnings, etc,): N/A

DETAILED DESCRIPTION OF ACTIVITY/EVENT: ANNUAIhOIidAY KiCKOff' ThE

event would like the lot availabla for m

500
# OF PEOPI,E:

w s unteers

PROPOSED LOCATION OF ANY TEMPORARY STRUCTURES TO BE ERECTED:
N/A

I / We understand this application may require insurance coverage, cleaning deposit and/or a use

fee. Filling out this application is not a guarantee that the event has been approved until it has

been reviewed and signed by Marina Management. Applicant will be notified if there are any
tssr.l the application or if itional information or payment is required

stag

Iune29,2023

st( .IJRU
&L.

DATE

REVISED: 3/l/1730

Page 82 of 138



#W
PORT OF BREMERTON
WATERFRONT PARKS

IIOLD HARMLESS AGRENMENT

In consideration of the Port of Bremerton making available for use the undersigned,

the Port of Bremertonrs Water Street Boat Launch Park

looated at Bay Street
(Park Name)

across from City Hall

on Saturday, December 2, 2023

(Date)
City of Port Orchard agrees to indemnify and hold harmless

(User Name ol Gloup)
The Port, its offioers, employees and agents from any and all claims, suits or causes of

action arising from injury to persons or damage to property growing out of the use of the

said facility, including any expense of litigation.

Dated th 29th dayof- - -Iqt--.--,2023.

si fe

PORT USE ONLY:

Date Reoeived:

O $100.00 Refundable Cleaning Deposit Paid (we cannot accept cash deposits)

Cheok on File (Cheok #: or CC Hard Copy on File

O Provide proof of liability insurance (event insurance) of at least $1,000,000 and list the Port

of Bremerton as an additional insured on the policy.

n
Social Aotivity (No Feo)

o File paperwork at marina
o Add to Marina Park Reservations

CommercialActivity ($100.00) l-l Cash t-l Check n CC

r Set up AR agcount to take Payment
o File copy at marina
. Send original paperwork to MA

n

Manager Approved:

a

Date:

REVISED: 3ll/l7s,l

Page 83 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4H Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
 Approval of a Memorandum of  Prepared by: Debbie Lund 
 Understanding with Teamsters Local 589  HR Director 
 Representing Police Support Employees Re:     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0008 
 Closure of City Hall Atty Review Date: October 4, 2023 

 
Summary:  The COVID-19 pandemic brought teleworking to the forefront for many Port Orchard 
employees. Due to the sensitive nature of the information routinely accessed by members of the Police 
Support union, teleworking was not included as an option when the 2022-2025 collective bargaining 
agreement was negotiated with Teamster’s Local 589. Since that time, the Police Chief has worked to 
resolve the security and information concerns and has a solution that will meet the department’s 
security needs, not jeopardize the department’s accreditation status, and allow Police Support 
Employees to work remotely on occasion while still meeting the needs of the department and City.   
 
The City and the union worked on the proposed language as part of the newly formed Labor 
Management Committee. The language is similar to that for other groups at the City addressing both 
teleworking and compensation for those employees required to be on site in the event of a City Hall 
closure to the public due to weather or state of emergency.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the City Council authorize the Mayor to sign a Memorandum of 
Understanding (MOU) with the Teamsters Local No. 589 representing Police Support Employees to 
modify language in the collective bargaining agreement in Article 8.7 related to work during a closure 
of City Hall to the public for inclement weather or state of emergency.   
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to authorize the Mayor to sign an MOU with the Teamsters Local 
No. 589 representing Police Support Employees to modify language in Article 8.7 of the collective 
bargaining agreement.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: None. 
 
Alternatives: Do not approve the MOU and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments:  The MOU under consideration tonight is draft until approved by Council and signed by 
the parties. The draft MOU has been sent to Council by the City Attorney.  
 

Page 84 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Consent Agenda 4I Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Approval of Amendment No. 1 to Contract  Prepared by: Brandy Wallace, MMC 

 No. 004-23 with Kitsap County  City Clerk 
 Prosecuting Attorney for Prosecution of   
 Municipal Criminal Complaints and Civil     Atty Routing No.: N/A 
 Infractions Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary: The City has contracted with Kitsap County for legal services for prosecution of municipal 
criminal complaints and civil infractions. The current contract was approved on December 16, 2022, setting 
the base rates for 2023 services at $131,505.15. The amount is to be paid in equal monthly installments.  
 
The contract also indicates the rates for 2024 will be reviewed during the 2023 budget process and any 
changes in base salary will not exceed the percentage increase in the Consumer Price Index-Urban (CPI-U) 
for Seattle/Tacoma as published by the U.S. Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics.   
 
Upon their review, the base figure for 2024 services will be in the amount of $135,811.59, being paid in 
equal monthly installments.  
 
Recommendation:  Staff recommends the approval of the amended contract, as presented. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A. 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to approve the contract amendment and authorize the Mayor to sign 
the legal services agreement with Kitsap County Prosecuting Attorney for prosecution of municipal criminal 
complaints and civil infractions.” 
 
Fiscal Impact: The amended contract reflects a cost increase to the City effective January 1, 2024, which has 
been incorporated into the 2023/2024 Biennial budget. 
 
Alternatives: Not approve and provide direction to the Mayor. 
 
Attachments:  Cost allocation, amendment to contract, contact 004-23 

 

Page 85 of 138



 

DPA I, Step I 78,110.64$     
Q01 1,952.77$       2.50%

80,063.41$     
6,124.85$       Social Security at 7.65% 7.65%
8,318.59$       PERS at 10.39% 10.39%

997.63$          Workers Comp increase
15,070.00$     4% increase Medical Benefits

174.47$          WA Family Leave not included previo 0.2179%

110,574.48$   

Legal Assistant, Step 4 49,296.00$     
AB1 1,232.40$       2.50%

50,528.40$     
3,865.42$       Social Security at 7.65% 7.65%
5,249.90$       PERS at 10.25% 10.39%

997.63$          Workers Comp increase
15,070.00$     4% increase Medical Benefits

110.11$          WA Family Leave not included previo 0.2179%

75,711.36$     
25,237.12$     no change to allocation at 1/3

135,811.59$   

2024 FTE Cost

Page 86 of 138



KC-495-22-A 
COP 004-23 

 

AMENDMENT TO 
LEGAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 

Prosecution Services 
 

This AMENDMENT to the Legal Services Agreement – Prosecution Services is made 
and entered into between the City of Port Orchard (the “City) and the Kitsap County Prosecuting 
Attorney (the “Prosecutor”). 

 
In consideration of the mutual benefits and covenants contained herein, the parties agree 

that the Legal Services Agreement – Prosecution Services (Agreement), fully executed on 
January 23, 2022, and designated as Kitsap County contract number KC-495-22, shall be 
amended as follows: 

            1. Effective January 1, 2024, Section V COMPENSATION is amended, increasing 
the annual cost for services to $135,811.59 as described in Exhibit B – 
Compensation, “2024 Prosecution Contract – 2024 FTE Cost”, which Exhibit is 
incorporated into the Agreement. 

           2.  Except as expressly provided in this Amendment, all other terms and      
conditions of the original Agreement, and subsequent amendments, addenda or 
modifications thereto, remain in full force and effect.    

[Signatures appear on the next page] 

  

Page 87 of 138



DATED this ___ day of __________, 2023. 
                 
CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
 
 
_________________________________ 
 ROBERT PUTAANSUU, Mayor                          
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
CHARLOTTE A. ARCHER, City Attorney 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_____________________________________ 
BRANDY WALLACE, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
 
 
 

DATED this ___ day of __________, 2023.   
               
KITSAP COUNTY PROSECUTING 
ATTORNEY 
 
____________________________________ 
CHAD M. ENRIGHT, Prosecuting Attorney 
 
 
DATED this ___ day of __________, 2023.                 
 
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS 
KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
 
____________________________________ 
CHARLOTTE GARRIDO, Chair 
 
 
____________________________________ 
KATHERINE T. WALTERS, Commissioner 
 
 
____________________________________ 
CHRISTINE ROLFES, Commissioner 
 

ATTEST:  
 
 
_____________________________________ 
DANA DANIELS, Clerk of the Board 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 88 of 138



Page 89 of 138



Page 90 of 138



Page 91 of 138



Page 92 of 138



Page 93 of 138



Page 94 of 138



Page 95 of 138



Page 96 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
Council Meeting Minutes 
Work Study Session Meeting of September 19, 2023 
          
 

 
CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL 
 
Mayor Putaansuu called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 
 
Roll call was taken by the City Clerk as follows: 
 

Mayor Pro-Tem Trenary Present  
Councilmember Chang Present  

 Councilmember Clauson Present via Zoom 
Councilmember Cucciardi Present  
Councilmember Diener Present  
Councilmember Lucarelli Present 
Councilmember Rosapepe Present  

 Mayor Putaansuu  Present  
  
Staff present: Community Development Director Bond, City Clerk Wallace, and Deputy City Clerk 
Floyd. 
 
Staff present via Zoom: Finance Director Crocker 
 
The meeting also streamed live on YouTube. 
 
Pledge of Allegiance (Time Stamp 00:32) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu led the audience and Council in the Pledge of Allegiance 
 
Mayor Putaansuu noted Finance Director Crocker is attending a conference, so the 2nd item on the 
agenda will now be the 1st discussion item. 
 
1.  Limited Tax Exemption General Obligation (LTGO) Bond Delegation Ordinance (Time Stamp 

01:16) 
 
Finance Director Crocker explained Council adopted Resolution 059-23 on June 13, 2023, awarding 
a contract for construction improvements to the City Hall facility which included replacement of 
siding and windows, improvements to the HVAC system, minor interior renovations, and the 
acquisition and installation of solar power equipment and other related capital improvements and 
public amenities. 
 
Council adopted Resolution No. 065-23 on June 27th, declaring its intent to be reimbursed from a 
future borrowing for capital expenditures in connection with the City Hall Construction Project. 
Council also adopted Ordinance No. 018-23 on June 27th, amending the 2023-2024 biennial budget 

Page 97 of 138



Minutes of September 19, 2023 
 Page 2 of 3  

 
to provide funding for Contract No. 048-23 and to cashflow the City Hall Construction project until 
the future borrowing could be secured. 
 
The City Hall project is expected to be an $11 million dollar project and is currently under 
construction. He further explained the funding sources and amounts, debt proposal, fund allocation 
and annual payment range. 
 
Additionally, he explained how the proposed ordinance authorizes the Mayor and/or Finance 
Director to proceed with finalizing the bond issuance within certain parameters set out in the 
ordinance; the bonds will be “limited tax general obligation” bonds; the maximum amount that may 
be issued is not more than $11,120,000; the ordinance limits the borrowing cost; the maximum term 
of the financing will be 20 years; the ordinance assigns to the finance department certain 
administrative responsibilities; and schedule. This ordinance is scheduled to go before Council for 
adoption at the September 26th Council meeting. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding the bond delegation, and clarification on the bond. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
2. Multi-Family Tax Exemption (Time Stamp 17:50) 
 
Finance Director Crocker provided a presentation ‘2023 Multi-Family Tax Exemption Impact’ which 
included 2019-2023 multi-family tax exemptions history, 2019-2038 forgone property tax levy 
collections, revenues collected, future multi-family tax exemptions anticipated, and what is the 
impact to the property owners of Port Orchard. 
 
In response to Community Development Director Bond, Finance Director Crocker agreed it is partially 
a tax shift, but also partially a loss of revenue.  
 
Community Development Director Bond provided background on the program. Council adopted the 
Multi-Family Tax Exemption in 2016 and was revised in 2019 to make it a more targeted program. 3 
types of multi-family tax exemptions were created. Since 2016, the City has approved multi-family 
tax agreements for 442 residential apartments. Out of these, 97 units are reserved for affordable 
housing. In 2022, we finally saw rents go down for the first time. Housing supply is finally catching 
up with demand.  
 
He also spoke about the link between the housing supply and homelessness. 
 
Additionally, the City has been looking into this program for over a year trying to find a way to make 
the program work better, not cost as much or have better outcomes. We were waiting for the 
Housing Action Plan (HAP) to see the recommendations contained in that report. The Council should 
first decide whether it wants to continue with the program at all.  If the Council wishes to retain the 
program, a discussion should occur about the purpose of the program and the types of tax 
exemptions that should be available.  If certain exemptions are to continue, there needs to be a 
discussion of where the exemption should apply within the City.  
 

Page 98 of 138



Minutes of September 19, 2023 
 Page 3 of 3  

 
Discussion was held regarding the benefits and downsides of the program, costs related to city and 
citizens, different exemptions, and benefits to either pausing or repealing the program. 
 
Council Direction: Council directed staff to repeal the Multi-Family Tax Exemption program so they 
can investigate alternatives. Community Development Director Bond noted he could have the 
repealing ordinance available at the first meeting in October [October 10, 2023]. 
 
3. Council Policy Regarding Bond/Levy Endorsements (Time Stamp 1:16:54) 
 
The Council desires to adopt a policy to provide clarity for the public on the Council’s approach to 
endorsements or opposition of candidates/ballot measures.  
 
Mayor Putaansuu said the Cities of Bremerton and Poulsbo have ordinances that do not allow Council 
to take action in support or opposition of ballot measures.  
 
Council Direction: Council directed an ordinance be brought before them that prohibits action to be 
taken on a ballot measure or candidates. 
 
4. Orchard Street Plaza Concepts (Time Stamp 1:18:11) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu provided a presentation ‘Orchard Plaza-Preliminary Concept Design’ which 
included site context, plaza areas, private/public space, site circulation, site concept, pavement 
materials, bioretention and seating, seating and shade, parking lot and access, and small and large 
event layout examples. 
 
Additional discussion was held regarding an over the water structure, reshaping the shoreline, 
community events center, timelines, stormwater elements and funding. 
 
Council Direction: No direction was given to staff. 
 
GOOD OF THE ORDER (Time Stamp 1:33:09) 
 
Mayor Putaansuu reported last week was Senior Appreciation Week and he had lunch with former 
Councilmember Carolyn Powers.  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:04 p.m. No other action was taken. Audio/Visual was successful. 

 

 
          
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk   Robert Putaansuu, Mayor 

Page 99 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Public Hearing 6A Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Ordinance Approving the Diaz Meadows  Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 

 Development Agreement  DCD Director 
      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City has negotiated a development agreement establishing the terms and conditions for the 
development of a multi-family project by Diaz Meadows, LLC at the properties addressed as 1375, 1385, 
1391, 1395, 1405, and 1415 Old Clifton Road. The agreement encompasses water improvements, Capital 
Facility Charge (CFC) credits, and relief from certain design standards outlined in the Port Orchard Municipal 
Code (POMC). The project aims to provide 96 multifamily units within five buildings, along with necessary 
amenities and site improvements. 
 
As part of the Diaz Meadows development, the developer is required to construct approximately 25% of the 
total length of the 580 to 390 Water Transmission Main as identified in Table 7-2 of the City of Port Orchard 
Comprehensive Plan Utility Element.  The city expects to receive a water system improvement valued at 
$324,000 based on the project cost estimates contain in the city’s plans and will provide the developer with 
$182,250 in water CFC credit pursuant to the credit formulas contained in POMC 13.04.  The developer has 
asserted that the actual cost to construct this project is close to $1,500,000.  By either estimation, the value 
of the project to be constructed by the developer greatly exceeds the cost to the city in terms of the credit 
offered to the developer.  The City's Public Works Director confirms the eligibility of this project for Water 
Capacity Fee (CFC) credits per POMC 13.04.030, as outlined in Section 10 of the Agreement.  
 
The application for the development agreement was submitted in accordance with POMC 20.26 
(Development Agreements) on August 17, 2023. The proposed development agreement is related to, but has 
not been consolidated with, the Diaz Meadows Land Disturbing Activity Permit (PW22-054).  
 
This public hearing was noticed consistent with the requirements of POMC 20.25 on September 26, 2023. As 
of the date of this report, the Department of Community Development has not received comments regarding 
the Development Agreement. The City of Port Orchard SEPA Responsible Official issued a Mitigated 
Determination of Non-significance for the project on August 24, 2023. The SEPA Determination was not 
timely appealed. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The Development Agreement aligns with the Port Orchard 
Comprehensive Plan, specifically addressing water improvements. The Developer's proposal includes the 
construction of a portion of Capital Improvement Project #8 as outlined in table 7-2 of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

Page 100 of 138



Public Hearing 6A 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 

Recommendation: Staff recommends that the City Council hold a public hearing regarding a 
Development Agreement between the City of Port Orchard and Diaz Meadows, LLC. as presented. 

 
Fiscal Impact:  The City would receive a capital improvement worth at least $324,000 and potentially 
as much as $1,500,000 by providing a $182,250 water CFC credit.  The City will receive other revenues 
including sewer GFFs, impact fees, building permit fees, sales tax revenues, and other revenues if the 
project is constructed. 

 
Alternatives: Do not approve the Development Agreement; request changes to the Development 
Agreement. 

 
Attachments: All attachments associated with this public hearing may be found with the 
corresponding business item on the October 10, 2023 City Council meeting agenda. (Business Item 7A) 

     
 

Page 101 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7A Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Approving the Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 

 Diaz Meadows Development Agreement  DCD Director 
      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  The City has negotiated a development agreement establishing the terms and conditions for the 
development of a multi-family project by Diaz Meadows, LLC at the properties addressed as 1375, 1385, 
1391, 1395, 1405, and 1415 Old Clifton Road. The agreement encompasses water improvements, Capital 
Facility Charge (CFC) credits, and relief from certain design standards outlined in the Port Orchard Municipal 
Code (POMC). The project aims to provide 96 multifamily units within five buildings, along with necessary 
amenities and site improvements. 
 
As part of the Diaz Meadows development, the developer is required to construct approximately 25% of the 
total length of the 580 to 390 Water Transmission Main as identified in Table 7-2 of the City of Port Orchard 
Comprehensive Plan Utility Element.  The city expects to receive a water system improvement valued at 
$324,000 based on the project cost estimates contain in the city’s plans and will provide the developer with 
$182,250 in water CFC credit pursuant to the credit formulas contained in POMC 13.04.  The developer has 
asserted that the actual cost to construct this project is close to $1,500,000.  By either estimation, the value 
of the project to be constructed by the developer greatly exceeds the cost to the city in terms of the credit 
offered to the developer.  The City's Public Works Director confirms the eligibility of this project for Water 
Capacity Fee (CFC) credits per POMC 13.04.030, as outlined in Section 10 of the Agreement.  
 
The application for the development agreement was submitted in accordance with POMC 20.26 
(Development Agreements) on August 17, 2023. The proposed development agreement is related to, but has 
not been consolidated with, the Diaz Meadows Land Disturbing Activity Permit (PW22-054).  
 
This public hearing was noticed consistent with the requirements of POMC 20.25 on September 26, 2023. As 
of the date of this report, the Department of Community Development has not received comments regarding 
the Development Agreement. The City of Port Orchard SEPA Responsible Official issued a Mitigated 
Determination of Non-significance for the project on August 24, 2023. The SEPA Determination was not 
timely appealed. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: The Development Agreement aligns with the Port Orchard 
Comprehensive Plan, specifically addressing water improvements. The Developer's proposal includes the 
construction of a portion of Capital Improvement Project #8 as outlined in table 7-2 of the Comprehensive 
Plan. 

Page 102 of 138



Business Item 7A 
Page 2 of 2 

 

 2 

Recommendation:  Staff recommends approval of an ordinance authorizing the mayor to execute a 
Development Agreement between the City of Port Orchard and Diaz Meadows, LLC. as presented. 

 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an ordinance authorizing the Mayor to execute a 
Development Agreement with Diaz Meadows, LLC as presented.” 

 
Fiscal Impact:  The City would receive a capital improvement worth at least $324,000 and potentially 
as much as $1,500,000 by providing a $182,250 water CFC credit.  The City will receive other revenues 
including sewer GFFs, impact fees, building permit fees, sales tax revenues, and other revenues if the 
project is constructed. 

 
Alternatives: Do not approve the Development Agreement; request changes to the Development 
Agreement. 

 
Attachments: Ordinance, Diaz Meadows Development Agreement with Exhibits 

     
 

Page 103 of 138



ORDINANCE NO. ___ 
           

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
MAYOR TO EXECUTE A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH DIAZ MEADOWS, LLC FOR 
A MULTI-FAMILY DEVELOPMENT; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND 
CORRECTIONS; AND ESTABLISHING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to RCW 36.70B.170, the City Council has the authority to review and 

enter into development agreements that govern the development and use of real property within 
the City; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has adopted standards and procedures governing the City’s 

use of development agreements, codified at Chapter 20.26 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code 
(POMC); and  

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 20.26 POMC is consistent with State law; and 

WHEREAS, and Diaz Meadows, LLC, a Washington limited liability company organized 
under the law of the State of Washington (“Diaz Meadows”), applied for a Development 
Agreement under Chapter 20.26 POMC on August 17, 2023 and such Agreement has been 
processed consistently with the POMC and State law; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Development Agreement by and between the City of Port Orchard and 

Diaz Meadows relates primarily to the development of property owned by Diaz Meadows, which 
is located at: 1375, 1385, 1391, 1395, 1405, and 1415 Old Clifton Road (Kitsap County Tax Parcels 
032301-2-044-2009, 032301-2-043-2000, 032301-2-042-2001, 032301-2-025-2002); and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to facilitate the Diaz Meadows Project having superior design 

principles, some flexibility on applicable code provisions is appropriate and is off set by the public 
benefit of having buildings with superior design; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to construct at its expense, a portion of Capital 

Improvement Project #8 as shown in table 7-2 of the Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Project #8 as shown in Table 7-2 of the Comprehensive Plan is estimated to 

cost $1,325,000 and is shown as being 75% developer funded; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to build 27% of the total project watermain length 

but not build the planned project Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) station; and 
 
WHEREAS, under POMC 20.26.020, the City Council has the authority to modify 

development standards as they deem appropriate; and  
 

Page 104 of 138



  Ordinance No. ___ 
  Page 2 of 3 

     
 
 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the benefits conferred by this new Agreement, which 
reflect the current plans of both the City and Diaz Meadows, the Parties deem it in their best 
interests to enter into this Agreement; and 

 
WHEREAS, in consideration of the benefits conferred by this new Agreement, which 

reflect the current plans of both the City and Diaz Meadows and include capital facility charge 
credit calculation, the Parties deem it in their best interests to enter an Agreement and the City 
Council finds that approving the Agreement is in the public interest; and 

 
WHEREAS, on August 24, 2023, the City’s SEPA official issued a Mitigated Determination 

of Non-significance for the development and no appeals were filed in a timely manner; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on October 10, 2023 regarding this 

Agreement and (comments received/not received, etc); and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council, after careful consideration of the Development Agreement 

and all public comments and testimony, finds that the Development Agreement is consistent with 
the City’s Comprehensive Plan and development regulations, the Growth Management Act, 
Chapter 36.70A RCW, and that the Agreement in the best interests of the residents of the City; 
now, therefore,  

 
WHEREAS, after a public hearing, by Ordinance No. [xxx], the City Council authorized the 

Mayor to sign this Agreement with Diaz Meadows. 
 

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

SECTION 1.  Findings. The City Council adopts all of the “Whereas” sections of this 
ordinance and all “Whereas” sections of the Development Agreement as findings in support of 
this ordinance. 

 
SECTION 2.  Authorization. The City Council approves of and authorizes the Mayor to 

execute a Development Agreement with Diaz Meadows substantially as provided in “Exhibit A” 
of this Ordinance.  

 
SECTION 3.  Severability.  If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be invalid or unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity of constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. 
 

Page 105 of 138



  Ordinance No. ___ 
  Page 3 of 3 

     
 
 

SECTION 4.  Corrections.  Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 
code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this Ordinance 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, Ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 

 
SECTION 5.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be published in the official newspaper 

of the city and shall take full force and effect five (5) days after posting and publication as required 
by law.  A summary of this Ordinance may be published in lieu of publishing the entire Ordinance, 
as authorized by state law. 
 

PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor Pro-Tem 
and attested by the City Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 

 
 
 

                ____       
Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 

ATTEST: 
 
 
       _______  
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:       SPONSOR: 
 
 
                       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney    Scott Diener, Council Member 
 
PUBLISHED:   
EFFECTIVE DATE:   
 
 
EXHIBIT A:   DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 

AND DIAZ MEADOWS 
 
 

Page 106 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 1 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD AND DIAZ MEADOWS, LLC 

FOR THE DEVELOPMENT WATER IMPROVEMENTS, CFC CREDITS, AND 
RELIEF FROM DESIGN STANDARDS 

 
            THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is made and entered into this    day of 
 , 2023, by and between the City of Port Orchard, a non-charter, optional 
code Washington municipal corporation, hereinafter the “City,” and Diaz Meadows, LLC, a 
Washington limited liability company, hereinafter the “Developer” (individually, a “Party” and 
collectively, the “Parties”).  The Parties hereby agree as follows: 
 

RECITALS 
 

WHEREAS, the Washington State Legislature has authorized the execution of a 
development agreement between a local government and a person having ownership or control of 
real property within its jurisdiction (RCW 36.70B.170(1)); and 
 

WHEREAS, a development agreement must set forth the development standards and other 
provisions that shall apply to, govern, and vest the development, use and mitigation of the 
development of the real property for the duration specified in the agreement (RCW 
36.70B.170(1)); and 
 

WHEREAS, a development agreement must be consistent with the applicable 
development regulations adopted by a local government planning under chapter 36.70A RCW 
(RCW 36.70B.170(1)); and 

 
WHEREAS, Port Orchard adopted Chapter 20.26 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code 

(“POMC” or “Code”) which establishes the standards and procedures for Development 
Agreements in Port Orchard; and 

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 20.26 POMC is consistent with State law; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer has applied for a Development Agreement under Chapter 

20.26 POMC on August 17, 2023 and such Agreement has been processed consistently with the 
POMC and State law; and 
 

WHEREAS, this Development Agreement by and between the City of Port Orchard and 
the Developer (hereinafter the “Development Agreement” or “Agreement”), relates primarily to 
the development of property owned by Developer at 1375, 1385, 1391, 1395, 1405, and 1415 Old 
Clifton Road, Washington (Kitsap County Tax Parcels 032301-2-044-2009, 032301-2-043-2000, 
032301-2-042-2001, 032301-2-025-2002) (hereinafter, the “Property”); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to develop the Property with a multi-family 
development consisting of 96 multifamily units within five (5) buildings, required off-street 
vehicle parking, landscaping, outdoor amenity areas, and associated site improvements 

Page 107 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 2 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

(collectively, the “Development Project” or City Permit Nos. No. 22-894, 22-895, 22-896, 22-897, 
and 22-898); and  
 

WHEREAS, the City is undertaking review of the Development Project pursuant to the 
POMC and has undertaken State Environmental Policy Act (“SEPA”) review for the Development 
Proposal with the issuance of a Mitigated Determination of Non-significance issued on August 24, 
2023 (“MDNS”).  The MDNS for the Development Project was not timely appealed; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to construct at its expense, a portion of Capital 

Improvement Project #8 as shown in table 7-2 of the Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan; and 
 
WHEREAS, Project #8 as shown in Table 7-2 of the Comprehensive Plan is estimated to 

cost $1,325,000 and is shown as being 75% developer funded; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Developer proposes to build 27% of the total project watermain length 

but not build the planned project Pressure Reducing Valve (PRV) station; and 
 
 WHEREAS, POMC 13.04.030 provides a framework for a Water Capital Facility Charge 
Credit when a developer constructs an eligible project at their expense; and 
 

WHEREAS, POMC 20.32.100 requires a minimum ground floor elevation of two feet for 
all “Apartment” building types within the first 20 feet of a lot when measured from the right of 
way line and this standard will be difficult to meet due to the site topography; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties agree that, as proposed, the Development Project provides an 

equal or better ground floor privacy for residents and aesthetic screening than could be provided 
with strict adherence to the Code, therefore, the City has agreed that Developer may depart from 
the requirements of POMC 20.32.100 in the following manner: no minimum ground floor 
elevation shall be applied; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Port Orchard Design standards at POMC 20.127.210(2) require at least 

one building entrance needs to be visible and directly accessible from the street for each building 
and where the buildings are setback from the street, pedestrian connections are required from the 
sidewalk; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parties agree that, as proposed, the Development Project provides an 

equal or better design and access which will include two access walkways being added to the 
design near the leasing office and between Buildings 3 and 4 to give access to Old Clifton Road 
which is a more convenient connection for the residents; and 

 
WHEREAS, POMC 20.128.050(5) requires certain plant diversity be installed, POMC 

20.128.070 requires a three-foot minimum height for planters or walls within landscape areas with 
a maximum height of five-feet, requires landscaping strips to be a minimum of five-feet wide, and 
allows landscaped screening of large walls to be integrated into the plan to screen walls that are 
more than five-feet tall; and  

Page 108 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 3 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

 
WHEREAS, due to the site topography larger retaining walls are required and the Parties 

agree that, as proposed, the Development Project provides an equal or better configuration for 
landscaping and therefore a departure from strict compliance with this section is appropriate; and 

 
WHEREAS, except with regard to the water capital facility charge credit and the 

departures from POMC 20.32.100, 20.127.210(2), 20.128.050(5), and 20.128.070 as described 
herein, this Agreement does not establish or modify the standards or conditions for the underlying 
Development Project which is being undertaken in accordance with applicable code and 
regulations; and 
 

WHEREAS, in consideration of the benefits conferred by this new Agreement, which 
reflect the current plans of both the City and the Developer and include a water capital facility 
charge credit calculation, the Parties deem it in their best interests to enter into this Agreement; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City Council held a public hearing on October 10, 2023 regarding this 
Agreement; and 

 WHEREAS, after a public hearing, by Ordinance No. [xxx], the City Council authorized 
the Mayor to sign this Agreement with the Developer. 

AGREEMENT 
 

Section 1. The Property.  The Property comprises 1375, 1385, 1391, 1395, 1405, and 1415 
Old Clifton Road, Washington (Kitsap County Tax Parcels 032301-2-044-2009, 032301-2-043-
2000, 032301-2-042-2001, 032301-2-025-2002). The Property is described on Exhibit A which is 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full.  A map of the 
Property is shown Exhibit B on which is attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference 
as if set forth in full.  

 
Section 2.  Water Improvement Project. Developer shall construct a portion of the 580 

to 390 Zone Transmission Main Project, which is designated as Project #8 within table 7-2 of the 
Port Orchard Comprehensive Plan as amended most recently by Ordinance 012-23 and is also 
sometimes referred to as the “Old Clifton Road 580-390 Intertie.” For purposes of this Agreement, 
the 580 to 390 Transmission Main Project is defined herein as the “Water Improvement Project” 
and as further defined in Exhibit C.  The Water Improvement Project shall be constructed in 
conformance with Exhibit D. The Water Improvement Project shall serve the Diaz Meadows 
Property, amongst other properties the 580 and 390 water pressure zones, and shall provide 
connectivity and capacity for the City. The City’s Public Works Director has verified that the 
Water Improvement Project is eligible for Water CFC credits in accordance with POMC 13.04.030 
as provided in Section 10 of this Agreement. The credits authorized by this Agreement are only 
applicable to pending Building Permit Applications No. 22-894, 22-895, 22-896, 22-897, and 22-
898 for the properties identified on Exhibit B. 
 

Section 3. Definitions. As used in this Agreement, the following terms, phrases, and words 

Page 109 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 4 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

shall have the meanings and be interpreted as set forth in this Section. 
 

a) “Adopting Ordinance” means the Ordinance which approves this Agreement, as 
required by RCW 36.70B.200 and Chapter 20.26 POMC. 

 
b) “Council” or “City Council” means the duly elected legislative body governing the 

City of Port Orchard. 
 

c) “Development Project” means the development of the Property with approximately 96 
units of housing within 5 buildings, all required off-street vehicle parking, landscaping, outdoor 
amenity areas, and associated site improvements, as shown in Exhibit B and approved by the City 
under Permit PW22-054 and associated with Building Permit No. 22-894, 22-895, 22-896, 22-897, 
and 22-898.   
 

d) “Director” means the City’s Public Works Director. 
 
e) “Effective Date” means the effective date of the Adopting Ordinance. 

 
f) “Maximum credit” means the maximum amount of water CFC  credits to be provided 

by the City to the Developer for the Water Improvement Project.  
 

g) “Water Improvement Project” means the Water Improvement Project described above 
which serves both the Property and the greater community which partially completed by the 
developer. 
 

Section 4.   Exhibits.  Exhibits to this Agreement are as follows: 
 

a) Exhibit A – Legal Description of the Property. 
 
b) Exhibit B – Map of the Property and the Development Project and with permits 
listed in Section 2 identified. 
 
c) Exhibit C – Map of Water Improvement Project, including project components. 
 
d) Exhibit D – Standards for development of Water Improvement Project. 

 
e) Exhibit E – CFC Credit calculation estimation for this Development Project and 
Water Improvement Project. 

 
f) Exhibit F – Site Plan showing code departures as set forth in Section 12. 
 

Section 5.  Parties to Development Agreement.  The Parties to this Agreement are: 
 

a) The “City” is the City of Port Orchard, whose office is located at 216 Prospect Street, 
Port Orchard, WA 98366. 

Page 110 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 5 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

 
b) The “Developer” is a private enterprise which owns the Property in fee, and whose 

principal office is located at 144 Brick Kiln Road, Fox Island WA 98333-9708. 
 

Section 6. Water Improvement Project is a Private Undertaking. It is agreed among 
the Parties that the Water Improvement Project is a private improvement for which Water CFC 
credits are allowed pursuant to POMC 13.04.030 and that the City has no interest in the 
improvements until such time as the Water Project is completed, dedicated, and accepted by the 
City as provided in Section 9 of this Agreement. 

 
Section 7. Term of Agreement. This Agreement shall commence upon the Effective Date 

and shall continue in force for a period of five (5) years unless extended or terminated as provided 
herein. Following the expiration of the term or extension thereof, or if sooner terminated, this 
Agreement shall have no force and effect except for such sections which are specifically intended 
to survive expiration or termination. 

 
Section 8. Project Schedule. Subject to the City’s issuance of all necessary permits and 

approvals, Developer will commence construction of the Water Improvement Project on the 
following schedule: 

a) Developer has already submitted applications for the required approvals to develop 
the Water Improvement Project.   

b) The City shall undertake good faith efforts to promptly review and make final 
determinations on all necessary permits and approvals for construction of the Water Improvement 
Project (“Water Improvement Permits”), including but not limited to using the City’s third-party 
reviewer to provide for prompt review.  In the event that the City requires additional time beyond 
the 120-day window to review the Water Improvement Permits, or requests corrections of 
Developer, the timeline for Developer’s obligation to construct the Water Improvement Project is 
tolled until the date that the City makes its final determination on the Water Improvement Permits.   

c) Upon issuance of the Water Improvement Permits, the Developer shall commence 
construction of the Water Improvement Project within 120 days and proceed in a timely and 
workmanlike fashion, provided however, the Developer shall be solely responsible for the means 
and methods for construction sequencing and phasing.   

d) Developer understands that in accordance with POMC 13.04.030(8)(f)(iv) that the 
City will not issue any certificates of occupancy for the Development Project prior to substantial 
completion of the Water Improvement Project. Furthermore, the Developer shall fully complete 
the Water Improvement Project in accordance with POMC 13.04.030(8)(f)(v) and Section 9 below 
prior to the issuance of any Certificates of Occupancy, or sixty (60) calendar days prior to the 
Termination of this Agreement, whichever date occurs first.    

Section 9. Water Improvement Project Standards.  

Page 111 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 6 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

a) General. Developer will finance, design, and construct the Water Improvement 
Project to comply with City standards, including obtaining all necessary permits, not to be 
unreasonably withheld or conditioned by the City. The City will approve the plans before 
construction begins; and the City may accept responsibility for the operation of the Water 
Improvement Project in accordance with POMC 13.04.030 provided construction is completed, 
the Water Improvement Project has been accepted, any transfer property documents are completed, 
accepted, and recorded, and a two-year warranty and maintenance bond is in place, such 
acceptance not to be unreasonably conditioned, withheld or denied. The Project will be deemed 
completed when the requirements set forth in POMC 13.03.030(8)(f), have been completed.  

b) Water Improvement Project. The Water Improvement Project will include design, 
permitting, and construction, at Developer’s sole expense of a new Water Main (Project #8, 580 
to 390 Zone Transmission Project) that complies with the standards as set forth on Exhibits C and 
D which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. Any 
and all work within the right of way shall fully satisfy the requirements in POMC Chapter 12.04 
and the City’s right of way use permit process. In accordance with RCW 35.91.020, the Water 
Improvement Project shall be constructed according to plans and specification approved by the 
City. In addition, POMC 13.04.030.12 requires the materials used to comply with the requirements 
of the City. 

c) Bond Required. The Water Improvement Project construction work shall be 
secured by a Performance Bond at 150% of the estimated construction costs. Construction of the 
Water Improvement Project shall be inspected by the City, approval not to be unreasonably 
withheld. In addition to the requirements in Section 9(a) above, the City’s final approval of Water 
Improvement Project shall be conditioned upon receipt from Developer of three (3) copies of as-
builts, a copy of the DWG files for the Water Improvement Project, and a two (2) year Maintenance 
Bond at 20% of the construction costs, which shall be effective upon the City’s release of the 
Performance Bond. Upon acceptance of the Bill of Sale, the City shall release the Performance 
Bond and shall accept full responsibility for the Water Improvement Project, except for those 
maintenance obligations of Developer secured by the two-year Maintenance Bond. Upon City’s 
acceptance of the Water Improvement Project, Developer shall not be responsible for any further 
costs, maintenance, or liability for the Water Improvement Project except as provided in the 
maintenance bond. This provision survives the Termination of this Agreement.    

 
Section 10. CFC Credits for Water Improvement Project. 

a) Maximum Credit. In accordance with POMC 13.04.030(8), there is a maximum 
amount of the Water CFC credit for the Water Improvement Project to be built by Developer. 
There are three methods for calculating the credit as defined in POMC 13.04.030(8). The lowest 
of these three calculations shall serve as the Maximum Credit Amount for improvements. The 
three calculation methods are set forth on Exhibit E, which is attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by this reference as if set forth in full.  The three credit calculations are described as follows: 

1. Water Capital Facility Charge Method.  The Water Improvement Project was 
identified in the CFC rate study adopted by the City as a $1,325,000.00 project that 
is 75% funded by CFCs. The Developer is building twenty-seven percent (27%) of 

Page 112 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 7 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

the total project watermain length and not constructing the PRV Station. The PRV 
Station is estimated at $125,000 which is removed from the total project costs prior 
to the calculation below. The Water Improvement Project is designed to be 
oversized to meet the needs of future growth. The percentage of the facilities to be 
used by the proposed Development Project is 25%, meaning that 75% of the added 
capacity will be for other customers. Therefore, under the Water Facility Fee 
method of (a) project cost of the project as defined in the Water CFC and reduced 
by 25% because the project is 75% CFC funded multiplied by (b) the percentage of 
the project being constructed by the developer (27%) by (c) the percentage of the 
project that is excess capacity of the Water Improvement Project (75%), the 
Developer would be credited $182,250 (($1,325,000 - $125,000) x .75 *.27 *.75).  
The Parties agree with the accuracy and methodology of the Water Capital Facility 
Charge method formula in Section 10(a)(1).    

2. Certified Project Cost Method.  The Certified Project Cost method is determined 
by (a) identifying the certified construction costs of the Water Improvement Project 
multiplied by (b) percentage of ERUs for excess capacity of the Water 
Improvement Project, which as defined above, was 75% of the added capacity.   The 
Certified Project Cost method cannot be determined until the Parties certify the 
Water Improvement Project costs as provided in Section 10(d) of this Agreement.   
The Parties agree with the accuracy and methodology of the Certified Project Cost 
method formula in Section 10(a)(2).   

3. Total Water Capital Facility Charge owed by Developer Method. The Total 
Water Capital Facility Fee Method is determined by (a) identifying the current CFC 
at the time of the Agreement (currently $11,591) and multiplying by (b) number of 
ERUs for Developer needs of current Water Improvement Project. Based on the 
scope of the Development Project that is currently in development review, there are 
expected to be 5 new water connections serving 96 multifamily units and common 
areas. These connections are expected to use 25% of the Water Improvement 
Project capacity. Therefore, under the Total Water Capital Facility Charge Method, 
Developer would be required to pay a total of $1,112,736 in CFC charges. Because 
this total is higher than the Water Capital Facility Charge Method in Section 
10(a)(1), this option is unlikely to be used unless the Water CFC rate is reduced 
significantly at the time that the building permits for the project are issued.  The 
Parties agree with the accuracy and methodology of the Certified Project Cost 
method formula in Section 10(a)(3).   

The Code requires that the total CFC credit be the lowest of the three calculated methods as set 
forth above. Upon competition of the Certified Project Cost method as set forth in Section 10(d), 
the City shall confirm the potential CFC Credits for the Developer. The lowest of the three 
methodologies shall be the “Maximum Water CFC Credit” for the Developer, as authorized by 
Code. At this point, the Parties anticipate that the Water Capital Facility Charge Method will likely 
be the Maximum Water CFC Credit available to Developer, however, that is subject to 
confirmation and change based on the above stated methodology. Once the Maximum Water CFC 
Credit has been achieved through credits to Developer, Developer will be required to pay any 

Page 113 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 8 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

CFCs that exceed the Maximum Water CFC Credit and will be required to comply with Chapter 
13.04 POMC for any further development of the Property.   

b) Deferral of CFC for Development Project.  It is expected that Developer would owe 
a total Water CFC payment of $1,112,736 to the City for the Development but would receive 
Maximum Water CFC Credit of $182,250 (or alternative lesser amount as calculated by Section 
10(a)(2) and 10(d)). Thus, the remaining CFC balance which is anticipated to be due at the time 
of building permit issuance from the Developer to the City is $930,486. The Parties acknowledge 
that this amount could change if the CFC fees are increased prior to permit issuance. Exhibit E 
contains the estimated credit calculations for the CFC credit under the Code as applied to this 
Development Project.  

 The City and Developer agree that these credits are consistent with RCW 82.02.060(4) and 
that they are consistent with POMC 13.04.030.    

c) Payment of CFC; deferral. Unless the CFC rate changes or the Development Project 
scope changes between approval of this Agreement and issuance of building permits, the 
Developer will not be required to pay the full CFCs prior to building permit issuance.  

 The Developer shall pay the CFC charges as required as of the Effective Date of this 
Agreement, except as deferred herein. The amount of full CFC charge required may change if 
Developer changes the scope of the Development Project or if the timing of the building permits 
is such that the CFC is adjusted. The Parties anticipate that the Maximum Water CFC Credit for 
the Water Improvement Project as described in this Section and on Exhibit E will not cover more 
than $182,250 of the Water CFC charge amount. The City agrees to defer $182,250 of the Water 
CFC charge amount owing but will not issue certificates of occupancy until the certified projects 
costs are established and the maximum credit amount is confirmed as described in Section 10(d).  
If the maximum credit amount after establishing certified project costs is less than the deferred 
amount of $182,250, then the Developer shall pay the difference prior to being granted certificates 
of occupancy on the Project.  

d) Certification of Project Costs. Upon completion of the Water Improvement Project, 
Developer shall submit certified project costs to the City for review and acceptance by the City 
Engineer; provided however, City shall use its best efforts to review and reach a final determination 
within 30 calendar days of receipt, provided all information needed by the City to determine the 
correct certified costs is included in the submittal. Once these costs and the executed Bill of Sale 
are reviewed and accepted by the City Engineer, not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned, or 
delayed, the Maximum Water CFC Credit due to Developer will be established and will equal the 
Maximum Water Project Credit as so certified in accordance with this Section 10. Certificates of 
occupancy for the final residential structure in the Development Project will be withheld by the 
City until the construction costs are certified and accepted by the City and any remaining Water 
CFC fee balance has been paid; provided, however, the City shall use best available efforts to 
review and certify the credits applicable to the CFC balance within 30 days of receipt.  

Section 11. Permitted Design Modifications.  
 

Page 114 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 9 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

a) The Development Project is not subject to the minimum two-foot (2’) ground floor 
elevation requirement that is set forth in POMC 20.32.100 as applicable to all “Apartment” 
building types, regardless of site topography or other design considerations. The Development 
Project provides equal or better ground floor privacy for residents and aesthetic screening than 
could be provided with strict adherence to the Code, therefore, the City has agreed that Developer 
may depart from the requirements of POMC 20.32.100 in the following manner: no minimum 
ground floor elevation shall be applied. 

 
b) The Development Project may depart from strict compliance with to Port Orchard 

Design standards at POMC 20.127.210(2) which require at least one building entrance be visible 
and directly accessible from the street for each building and which require that where buildings 
are setback from the street, pedestrian connections are required from the sidewalk. The 
Development Project provides an equal or better design and access which will include two access 
walkways being added to the design near the leasing office and between Buildings 3 and 4 to give 
access to Old Clifton Road which is a more convenient connection for the residents. A Site Plan 
showing the departures as described in this subsection is attached hereto as Exhibit F and 
incorporated herein by this reference as if set forth in full. 

 
c) The Development Project may depart from strict compliance with POMC 

20.128.050(5) which requires certain plant diversity be installed, and POMC 20.128.070 which 
requires a three-foot minimum height for planters or walls within landscape areas with a maximum 
height of five-feet, requires landscaping strips to be a minimum of five-feet wide, and allows 
landscaped screening of large walls to be integrated into the plan to screen walls that are more than 
five-feet tall. Such departure is necessary due to the site topography which requires larger retaining 
walls. To make space available to meet parking requirements, large retaining walls up to 15-feet 
in height may be located along the northern property line along with a six-foot wall installed in a 
cut section along the southern property line. Adjacent properties on the north and south sides of 
the property are undeveloped with no access agreements from the property owners. In order to 
creatively screen the north wall for the neighbors without having to access their site, the 
Development Project by install a variety of native vines that will be planted at the top of the wall 
at the northernmost edge to make a primarily green wall which will be filled in within a three-to-
five-year period. The wall will be screened per code but will be done from the top rather than the 
bottom of the retaining wall. This will ensure that there is no encroachment of either plants or 
maintenance access on the neighbor’s property to the north. Additionally, diverse screening 
plantings per POMC 20.128.070 and POMC 20.128.050(5) along with a four-foot-high wrought 
iron fence shall be included in the planting area on top of the wall. This will provide a dense and 
varied, mostly native, screening of the site and from the site toward neighbors to the north. The 
southern property line is ten feet from the back of Building No.1 and the Leasing Office, up to six 
feet below the adjacent property elevation. This area for all practical purposes is blocked from the 
adjacent undeveloped property and proposed parking lot area. The Development Project shall 
meet, as close as feasible, the Type B landscape requirements near the dog park area and along the 
patio/playground area near the Leasing Office. These are visual areas that will benefit the project 
and provide screening from the adjacent property. As proposed, the landscaping departures for the 
Development Project provides an equal or better configuration for landscaping and therefore a 
departure from strict compliance with these sections is appropriate. A Site Plan showing the 
departures as described in this subsection is attached hereto as Exhibit F and incorporated herein 

Page 115 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 10 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

by this reference as if set forth in full.  
 

Section 12. Default. 
 

a) Subject to extensions of time by mutual consent in writing, failure, or delay by either 
Party to perform any term or provision of this Agreement shall constitute a default. In the event of 
alleged default or breach of any terms or conditions of this Agreement, the Party alleging such 
default or breach shall give the other Party not less than thirty (30) days’ notice in writing, 
specifying the nature of the alleged default and the manner in which said default may be cured. 
During this thirty (30) day period, the Party charged shall not be considered in default for purposes 
of termination or institution of legal proceedings. 
 

b) After notice and expiration of the thirty (30) day period, if such default has not been 
cured or is not being diligently cured in the manner set forth in the notice, the other Party to this 
Agreement may, at its option, institute legal proceedings pursuant to this Agreement. In addition, 
the City may decide to file an action to enforce the City’s Codes, and to obtain penalties and costs 
as provided in the POMC for violations of this Agreement and the Code. 
 

Section 13. Termination. This Agreement shall terminate five (5) years after Effective Date.  
Upon termination and upon the request of the Developer, the City shall record a notice of such 
termination in a form satisfactory to the Parties that the Agreement has been terminated.  

 
Section 14. Extension and Modification. Any request for extension or modification, if 

allowed under the City’s code, shall be subject to the provisions contained in POMC Chapter 20.26 
POMC. 
 

Section 15. Effect upon Termination on Developer.  Termination of this Agreement as to 
the Developer shall not affect any of the Developer’s respective obligations to comply with the 
City Comprehensive Plan and the terms and conditions or any applicable zoning code(s) or other 
land use entitlements approved with respect to the Property, or obligations to pay assessments, 
liens, fees, or taxes. Furthermore, if the Agreement expires without the Water Improvement Project 
costs being fully recovered by impact fee credit or mitigation funds, the Developer will no longer 
be eligible to receive such credits. 

 
Section 16. Effects upon Termination on City. Upon any termination of this Agreement as 

to the Property, or any portion thereof, the City will be under no obligation to provide any 
additional credits or reimbursement to Developer even if the Water Improvement Project costs 
have not been fully recovered at the time of expiration or termination. 

 
Section 17.  Assignment and Assumption.  The Developer shall have the right to sell, assign 

or transfer this Agreement with all rights, title, and interests therein to any person, firm, or 
corporation at any time during the term of this Agreement with a sale of the underlying property. 
Developer shall provide the City with written notice of any intent to sell, assign, or transfer all or 
a portion of the Property, at least 30 calendar days in advance of such action; provided; however, 
failure to strictly comply with the 30-calendar day notice provision shall not be considered a breach 

Page 116 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 11 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

of this Agreement.   
 
Section 18.  Binding on Successors; Covenants Running with the Land. The conditions and 

covenants set forth in this Agreement and incorporated herein by the Exhibits shall run with the 
land and the benefits and burdens shall bind and inure to the benefit of the Parties. The Developer 
and every purchaser, assignee or transferee of an interest in the Property, or any portion thereof, 
shall be obligated and bound by the terms and conditions of this Agreement, and shall be the 
beneficiary thereof and a Party thereto, but only with respect to the Property, or such portion 
thereof, sold, assigned or transferred to it. Any such purchaser, assignee or transferee shall observe 
and fully perform all of the duties and obligations of the Developer contained in this Agreement, 
as such duties and obligations pertain to the portion of the Property sold, assigned, or transferred 
to it. 

 
Section 19. Amendment to Agreement; Effect of Agreement on Future Actions. No 

waiver, alteration, or modification to any of the provisions of this Agreement shall be binding 
unless in writing, signed by the duly authorized representatives of the Parties, be consistent with 
Chapter 20.26 POMC, and, where considered substantive as determined by the Director, follow 
the same procedures set forth in Chapter 20.26 POMC. Nothing in this Agreement shall prevent 
the City Council from making any amendment to its Comprehensive Plan, Zoning Code, Official 
Zoning Map or development regulations after the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 
Section 20. General release. Developer may free itself from further obligations relating to the 

sold, assigned, or transferred property, provided that the buyer, assignee, or transferee expressly 
assumes the obligations under this Agreement as provided herein.    

 
Section 21.  Notices. Notices, demands, correspondence to the City and/or Developer (as 

applicable) shall be sufficiently given if dispatched by pre-paid first-class mail to the addresses of 
the Parties as designated in “Written Notice” Section 33 below. Notice to the City shall be to the 
attention of both the City Clerk and the City Attorney. Notices to successors-in-interest of the 
Developer shall be required to be given by the City only for those successors-in-interest who have 
given the City written notice of their address for such notice. The parties hereto may, from time to 
time, advise the other of new addresses for such notices, demands or correspondence. 

 
Section 22. Reimbursement for Agreement Expenses of the City. Developer agrees to 

reimburse the City for actual expenses incurred over and above fees paid by Developer as an 
applicant incurred by City directly relating to this Agreement, including recording fees, publishing 
fees, attorneys’ fees, and reasonable staff and consultant costs not otherwise included within 
application fees; provided however, the City shall provide written notice to Developer if the 
expenses to the City are anticipated to exceed Twenty-Five Thousand Dollars and No Cents 
($25,000.00) and the Parties shall meet and confer regarding the City’s anticipated costs. Upon 
payment of all expenses, the Developer may request written acknowledgement of all fees. Such 
payment of all fees shall be remitted to the City, at the latest, within thirty (30) days from the City’s 
presentation of a written statement of charges to the Developer. 

 

Page 117 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 12 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

Section 23. Applicable Law, Resolution of Disputes, and Attorneys’ Fees.  It is the Parties’ 
intent to work cooperatively and to resolve disputes in an efficient and cost-effective manner.  All 
disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement shall be resolved as follows:  
 

a) Settlement Meeting.  If any dispute arises between the Parties relating to this 
Agreement, then the Parties shall meet and seek to resolve the dispute, in good faith, within ten 
(10) working days after a Party’s request for such a meeting.  The City shall send the Mayor, 
Community Development Director, Public Works Director, and/or the Mayor’s designee and any 
persons with information relating to the dispute, and Developer shall send an owner’s 
representative and any consultant or other person with technical information or expertise related 
to the dispute. 

b) Court. If the Parties cannot resolve the matter in a settlement meeting, then 
jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap 
County, Washington, or the U.S. District Court for Western Washington, as applicable. This 
Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of 
Washington.  The non-prevailing Party in any action brought to enforce this Agreement shall pay 
the other Parties' expenses and reasonable attorney's fees. 

Section 24. No Third-Party Beneficiaries. Except as otherwise provided herein, this 
Agreement shall not create any rights enforceable by any party who is not a Party to this 
Agreement.  

 
Section 25. City’s right to breach. The Parties agree that the City may, without incurring any 

liability, engage in action that would otherwise be a breach if the City makes a determination on 
the record that the action is necessary to avoid a serious threat to public health and safety, or if the 
action is required by federal or state law. 

 
Section 26. Developer’s Compliance.  The City’s duties under the Agreement are expressly 

conditioned upon the Developer’s substantial compliance with each and every term, condition, 
provision, and/or covenant in this Agreement, including all applicable federal, state, and local laws 
and regulations and the Developer’s obligations as identified in any approval or project permit for 
the property identified in this Agreement. 

 
Section 27. Limitation on City’s Liability for Breach.  Any breach of this Agreement by the 

City shall give right only to damages under state contract law and shall not give rise to any liability 
under Chapter 64.40 RCW, the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments to the U.S. Constitution, 
including but not limited to 42 U.S.C. §1983, or similar state constitutional provisions. 

 
Section 28. Third Party Legal Challenge. In the event any legal action or special proceeding 

is commenced by any person or entity other than a Party to challenge this Agreement or any 
provision herein, the City may elect to tender the defense of such lawsuit or individual claims in 
the lawsuit to Developer. In such event, Developer shall hold the City harmless from and defend 
the City from all costs and expenses incurred in the defense of such lawsuit or individual claims 
in the lawsuit, including but not limited to, attorneys’ fees and expenses of litigation. The 
Developer shall not settle any lawsuit without the consent of the City. The City shall act in good 

Page 118 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 13 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

faith and shall not unreasonably withhold consent to settle. 
 
Section 29. Specific Performance. The Parties specifically agree that damages are not an 

adequate remedy for breach of this Agreement, and that the Parties are entitled to compel specific 
performance of all material terms of this Agreement by any Party in default hereof. 

 
Section 30. Recording. This Agreement shall be recorded against the Property with the real 

property records of the Kitsap County Auditor. During the term of the Agreement, it is binding 
upon the owners of the property and any successors in interest to such property.  

 
Section 31.  Severability.  This Agreement does not violate any federal or state statute, rule, 

regulation or common law known; but any provision which is found to be invalid or in violation 
of any statute, rule, regulation or common law shall be considered null and void, with the 
remaining provisions in the Agreement remaining viable and in effect. 
 

Section 32. Non-Waiver of Breach. The failure of a Party to insist upon strict performance of 
any of the covenants and agreements contained herein, or to exercise any option herein conferred 
in one or more instances shall not be construed to be a waiver or relinquishment of said covenants, 
agreements, or options, and the same shall be and remain in full force and effect. 

 
Section 33.  Written Notice. All written communications regarding enforcement or alleged 

breach of this Agreement shall be sent to the parties at the addresses listed below, unless notified 
to the contrary. Unless otherwise specified, any written notice hereunder shall become effective 
upon the date of both emailing and mailing by registered or certified mail, and shall be deemed 
sufficiently given if sent to the addressee at the address stated below: 

NAME OF DEVELOPER: CITY: 
Diaz Meadows, LLC 
Attn. Kimberly Diaz 
144 Brick Kiln Road 
Fox Island WA 98333-9708 
Email: mdiaz@windermere.com 

Mayor 
City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street 
Port Orchard WA 98366 
rputaansuu@portorchardwa.gov  
 
Copies shall also be transmitted to the 
City Clerk and City Attorney at the 
above address. 

Section 34. Time is of the essence. All time limits set forth herein are of the essence. The 
Parties agree to perform all obligations under this Agreement with due diligence. 

 
Section 35.  Covenant of Good Faith and Cooperation.  The Parties agree to take further 

actions and execute further documents, either jointly or within their respective power and 
authority, to implement the intent of this Agreement.  Each Party covenants to use its best efforts 
and work cooperatively in order to secure the benefits and rights under this Agreement. The Parties 
shall not unreasonably withhold approvals or consents provided for in this Agreement.  Each Party 
shall execute and deliver to the other all further documents as are reasonably necessary to carry 

Page 119 of 138

mailto:rputaansuu@


 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 14 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

out this Agreement, including the Water Improvement Project, the property dedications (if any), 
and Development Project, as may be necessary to provide a Party with a full and complete 
enjoyment of its rights and privileges under this Agreement.   

Section 36.  Interpretation.  This Agreement has been reviewed and revised by legal counsel 
for both Parties, and no presumption or rule construing ambiguity against the drafter of the 
document shall apply to the interpretation or enforcement of this Agreement.  

Section 37.  Counterparts.  The Agreement may be signed in two or more counterpart copies 
with the same effect as if the signature of each counterpart copy were on a single instrument.  Each 
counterparty shall be deemed as an original as to the Party whose signature it bears, and all such 
counterparts shall constitute one document.   

Section 38. Entire Agreement. The written provisions and terms of this Agreement, together 
with the Exhibits attached hereto, shall supersede all prior verbal statements of any officer or other 
representative of the Parties, and such statements shall not be effective or be construed as entering 
into or forming a part of or altering in any manner whatsoever, this Agreement. The entire 
agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereunder is contained in this 
Agreement and exhibits thereto. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Agreement on this        day of 
   , 2023. 
 
DIAZ MEADOWS, LLC    CITY OF PORT ORCHARD 
 
 
By:       By:       
      Kimberly Diaz           Rob Putaansuu 
Its:       Its: Mayor 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:   APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
              
Jacob Potak      Jennifer S. Robertson 
Attorney for Developer    Attorney for Port Orchard 
        

ATTEST: 
 
 
              
       Brandy Wallace, CMC 
       Port Orchard City Clerk 
 
EXHIBITS TO AGREEMENT: 
 

Page 120 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 15 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

Exhibit A   –  Legal Description of the Property being developed by Developer 
Exhibit B   –  Map of the Property and the Development Project and with permits listed in Section  

2 identified 
Exhibit C   –  Map of Water Improvement Project, including project components. 

 
Exhibit D –  Standards for development of Water Improvement Project. 

 
Exhibit E –  CFC Credit calculation estimation for this Development Project and Water 

Improvement Project. 
 
Exhibit F --  Site Plan showing Section 12 departures. 
 
  

Page 121 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 16 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

NOTARY BLOCK FOR PORT ORCHARD 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
)  ss. 

COUNTY OF KITSAP  ) 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Robert Putaansuu is the person 
who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he signed this instrument, on oath 
stated that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Mayor of Port 
Orchard to be the free and voluntary act of such Party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the 
instrument. 
 

Dated:     , 2023. 
  
       
 
       

(print or type name) 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
State of Washington, residing at: 

          
My Commission expires:   

  

Page 122 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows  
Page 17 of 16 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

NOTARY BLOCK FOR DIAZ MEADOWS, LLC 
 
 
 
 

STATE OF WASHINGTON  ) 
)  ss. 

COUNTY OF     ) 
 

I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that Kimberly Diaz is the person who 
appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that (he/she) signed this instrument, on oath 
stated that he was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the Managing 
Member of Diaz Meadows, LLC, a Washington limited liability company to be the free and 
voluntary act of such Party for the uses and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 

Dated:     , 2023. 
 
       
 
       

(print or type name) 
NOTARY PUBLIC in and for the  
State of Washington, residing at:  

        
 

My Commission expires:  

Page 123 of 138



EXHIBIT "A"

Legal Description

For APN/Parcel ID(s): 032301-2-104-2006, 032301-2-105-2005, 032301-2-106-2004,
032301-2-042-2001,

032301-2-043-2000, 032301-2-044-2009 and 032301-2-102-2008 Resultant Lots 2, 3
and 4 of Declaration of Partition recorded under Auditor's File No. 202301300063, in
Volume 97 of Surveys, Pages 146 and 147, records of Kitsap County, Washington,
being a portion of the Northwest quarter of the Northwest quarter , Section 3,
Township 23 North, Range 1 East, W.M., in Kitsap County, Washington.

LU23-Dev Agreement-03Page 124 of 138

jkrukoff
New Stamp



Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø Ø Ø
Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø
Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø Ø Ø
Ø

Ø

Ø
Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø

Ø
Ø

Ø

Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø Ø

CALL  TWO  WORKING  DAYS
BEFORE  YOU  DIG

811
UTILITIES UNDERGROUND LOCATION CENTER

REVISED 
JUL 24 2023 

PW22-054 / PW22-055

Page 125 of 138

AutoCAD SHX Text
N 30%%d33'50" E

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM EL=316.75 IE IN=308.75 IE OUT=308.52

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIM EL=306.80 IE IN=297.72 IE OUT=297.67

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY 100.0' TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREAM BUFFER  CRITICAL SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEASING OFFICE RECREATION BUILDING FF EL=312.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #2-(24 UNITS) FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION = 312.75

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING 3-(24 UNITS) FINISHED FLOOR  ELEVATION = 300.10

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #4-(24 UNITS) FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION = 295.30

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
DOG PARK#1

AutoCAD SHX Text
DP#2

AutoCAD SHX Text
PLAY AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PATIO

AutoCAD SHX Text
20'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=50'

AutoCAD SHX Text
(14) STD PKING

AutoCAD SHX Text
24'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=49'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
16'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BLACK ALUMINUM FENCE, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BLACK ALUMINUM   FENCE, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=30'

AutoCAD SHX Text
RIGHT OF WAY

AutoCAD SHX Text
TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
10'

AutoCAD SHX Text
4' BLACK  ALUMINUM FENCE, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=25'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SURVEYED TYPE F STREAM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROPERTY LINES TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
17' TOP OF SLOPE SETBACK SEE GEOTECHNICAL REPORT

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SLOPE

AutoCAD SHX Text
112.5' STREAM BUFFER

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' IMPERVIOUS SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROADWAY CENTERLINE

AutoCAD SHX Text
(3) DUEL PORT CHARGING STATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUEL PORT CHARGING STATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUEL PORT CHARGING STATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PROPERTY LINE THROUGH BLA, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PROPERTY LINE THROUGH BLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
REVISED PROPERTY LINE THROUGH BLA

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROLLED CURB, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXTRUDED CONC  CURB, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH  DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRENCH  DRAIN

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT PAVEMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
MATCH EXISTING PAVEMENT @ CL

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
R=100'

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SFR

AutoCAD SHX Text
SHED

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
SEPTIC

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDING #1-(24 UNITS) FINISHED FLOOR ELEVATION = 317.5

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH AREA, SEE ARCHITECTURAL DWGS

AutoCAD SHX Text
TRASH AREA PER ARCH  DWG

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPHALT THICKENED EDGE

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAVEL PATH TO DOG PARK #1

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
VERT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
PEDESTRIAN CURB, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
CURB CUT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ROCK WALL, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED WIRE WALL, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONC WALL, TYP

AutoCAD SHX Text
EXT CURB

AutoCAD SHX Text
(2) DUEL PORT CHARGING STATIONS

AutoCAD SHX Text
6'  PAINTED CONCRETE  CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' PAINTED CONCRETE CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' PAINTED

AutoCAD SHX Text
CONCRETE

AutoCAD SHX Text
CROSSWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
8.5' PAINTED CONCRETE  SIDEWALK

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH SPEED BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH SPEED BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH SPEED BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' PAINTED CROSSWALK W/ ASPH  SPEED BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
ASPH SPEED BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
6' PAINTED CONCRETE CROSSWALK W/ ASPH SPEED BUMP

AutoCAD SHX Text
WELDED WIRE WALL

AutoCAD SHX Text
17' TOP OF  SLOPE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
STREAM SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
TOP OF SLOPE SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
15' IMPERVIOUS SETBACK

AutoCAD SHX Text
5' SOFT TRAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
PORCH

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
V

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
31175

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
G

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
J.

AutoCAD SHX Text
F

AutoCAD SHX Text
E

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
W

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
REV

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NO.

AutoCAD SHX Text
Poulsbo, WA  98370

AutoCAD SHX Text
TEL: (360) 598-1501

AutoCAD SHX Text
23789 Brixton Place NW

AutoCAD SHX Text
ISSUE

AutoCAD SHX Text
DATE

AutoCAD SHX Text
EMAIL: BANNONENG1@COMCAST.NET

AutoCAD SHX Text
Bannon Engineering

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAZ MEADOWS APARTMENT

AutoCAD SHX Text
PARCELS: 032301-2-102-2008, 032301-2-042-2001

AutoCAD SHX Text
032301-2-043-2000, & 032301-2-044-2009

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
FIRST SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
9/30/22

AutoCAD SHX Text
COVER, DRAWING INDEX & VICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uLEGAL DESCRIPTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
TAX PARCEL 032301-2-043-2000: 03231E LOT C OF SHORT PLAT NO. 3616, AS RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 8411020145, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, BEING A PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 23 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, W.M., KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON. TAX PARCEL 032301-2-042-2001: 03231E LOT B OF SHORT PLAT NO. 3616, AS RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 8411020145, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, BEING A PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 23 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, W.M., KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON. TAX PARCEL 032301-2-102-2008: 03231E RESULTANT LOT 2 OF DECLARATION OF LOT PARTITION RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 202108040069, AND AS DEPICTED ON SURVEY RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 202108040070, IN VOLUME 93 OF SURVEYS, PAGES 237 AND 238, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, BEING A PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 23 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, W.M., IN KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON; TOGETHER WITH AND SUBJECT TO EASEMENTS OF RECORD. TAX PARCEL 032301-2-044-2009: 03231E LOT D OF SHORT PLAT NO. 3616, AS RECORDED UNDER AUDITOR'S FILE NO. 8411020145, RECORDS OF KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON, BEING A PORTION OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER OF THE NORTHWEST QUARTER, SECTION 3, TOWNSHIP 23 NORTH, RANGE 1 EAST, W.M., KITSAP COUNTY, WASHINGTON; SUBJECT TO AND TOGETHER WITH EASEMENTS OF RECORD.

AutoCAD SHX Text
N.T.S.

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%UVICINITY MAP

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%USITE - PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1"=40'

AutoCAD SHX Text
DIAZ MEADOWS APARTMENTS

AutoCAD SHX Text
S 03 T 23 R 1E

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
xx" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uAT DETAIL

AutoCAD SHX Text
DETAIL NUMBER

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
xx" = 1'-0"

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION LETTER

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER ON WHICH DETAIL APPEARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uAT SECTION

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uON PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING NUMBER ON WHICH SECTION APPEARS

AutoCAD SHX Text
%%uON PLAN

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECTION INDICATORS:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C2

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW OLD

AutoCAD SHX Text
(206) 200-7926

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET)

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =    feet

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT  AREA

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
HIGHWAY 16

AutoCAD SHX Text
CLIFTON RD

AutoCAD SHX Text
SINCLAIR INLET

AutoCAD SHX Text
ST W

AutoCAD SHX Text
TREMONT

AutoCAD SHX Text
7-21-23

AutoCAD SHX Text
SW OLD CLIFTON ROAD

AutoCAD SHX Text
BUILDINGS, PARKING & SETBACK CRITERIA

AutoCAD SHX Text
1. FOUR APARTMENT BUILDINGS, 24 UNITS IN EACH BUILDING (96 TOTAL ROOMS). 2. 179 TOTAL PARKING STALLS, 116 STANDARD STALLS @ 9'X20' & 63 COMPACT STALLS @ 9'X16' & 10 HANDICAP STALLS @ 8'X20'. DESIGN CRITERIA: 52 (1) BEDROOMS @ 1.75 PER BEDROOM AND 44 2 BEDROOMS @ 2 PER BEDROOM = 179; PARKING STALLS SHALL INCLUDE WHEEL STOPS. 3. HANDICAP STALLS = 10 TOTAL (8'X20'). 4. DUAL PORT CHARGING STATIONS = 18 TOTAL. 5. STREAM BUFFER = 112.5' W/ 15' IMPERVIOUS SETBACK (SEE HABITAT MANAGEMENT PLAN). 6. TOP OF SLOPE SETBACK = 17' PER GEOTECHNICAL REPORT. 7. BACK YARD SETBACK = 10'. 8. SIDE YARD SETBACK = 15' 9. EACH BUILDING ENTRANCE SHALL INCLUDE 4 BICYCLE PARKING SPACES LOCATED UNDER THE STAIRS FOR A TOTAL OF 24 PARKING SPACES. 10. OPEN SPACE REQUIRED: 100 SF PER 1 BR & 150 SF PER 2&3 BR: TOTAL=11,800 SF. OPEN SPACE PROVIDED: OS#1=3,945 SF, #2=2,026 SF, #3=3,681 SF, #4=1,190 SF & #5=4,297 SF WITH A TOTAL = 15,139 SF >11,800 SF.

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
-

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
C9

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C8

AutoCAD SHX Text
DRAWING LIST

AutoCAD SHX Text
C1  COVER, DRAWING INDEX & VICINITY MAP C1A FIRE TRUCK CIRCULATION PLAN C2  TOPOGRAPHICAL SITE PLAN (CSI SURVEY) C3  ABUTING PROPERTIES C4  TESCP NOTES  C5  TESCP PLAN & DETAILS  C6  OVERALL GRADING PLAN & PROFILE C6A BUILDING #1 WEST HANDICAP RAMP     PLAN, PROFILE & SECTIONS  C6B BUILDING #1 EAST HANDICAP RAMP     PLAN, PROFILE & SECTIONS C6C BUILDING #2 HANDICAP RAMP     PLAN, PROFILE & SECTIONS C6D BUILDING #3 HANDICAP RAMP     PLAN, PROFILE & SECTIONS C6E BUILDING #4 HANDICAP RAMP     PLAN, PROFILE & SECTIONS C7  PARTIAL GRADING PLANS  C8   SITE CROSS SECTIONS 1 OF 2 C9   SITE CROSS SECTIONS 2 OF 2 C10  OVERALL STORM DRAINAGE - PLAN C11  INFILTRATION TRENCH #1      STORM DRAINAGE PLAN & PROFILES C12  INFILTRATION TRENCH #2      STORM DRAINAGE PLAN & PROFILES C13  INFILTRATION TRENCH #3      STORM DRAINAGE PLAN & PROFILES C14  INFILTRATION TRENCH #4      STORM DRAINAGE PLAN & PROFILES C15  WATER & SANITARY SEWER - PLAN C16  ROAD SECTIONS 1 OF 2 C17  ROAD SECTIONS 2 OR 2 C18  GRADING DETAILS 1 OF 2 C19  GRADING DETAILS 2 OR 2 C20  STORM DRAINAGE DETAILS C20A STORM DRAINAGE WATER QUALITY DETAILS C20B CONTECH CHAMBER MAX HDPE INFILTRATOR      DETAILS C21  SEWER DETAILS C22  WATER DETAILS 1 OF 2 C23  WATER DETAILS 2 OF 2 C24  SOIL AMENDMENT NOTES L0   LANDSCAPE COVER L-1.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN L-2.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN A L-3.0 LANDSCAPE PLAN B L-4.0 SIGNIFICANT TREE PLAN L-5.0 LANDSCAPE NOTES L-6.0 LANDSCAPE DETAILS L-7.0 LANDSCAPE DETAILS L-8.0 LANDSCAPE DETAILS L-9.0 LANDSCAPE DETAILS L-10.0 IRRIGATION PLAN A L-11.0 IRRIGATION PLAN B L-12.0 IRRIGATION DETAILS A A01 DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE

AutoCAD SHX Text
SECOND SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
4/12/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
AQUIFER RECHARGE  PROTECTION AREA BIORETENTION CELL CENTERLINE CONCRETE CRUSHED SURFACING  TOP COURSE CRUSHED SURFACING  BASE COURSE EDGE OF PAVEMENT ELEVATION EXISTING FINISH GRADE FINISHED FLOOR FLOWLINE GRADE BREAK INVERT LINEAR FOOT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ARPA BRC C CONC CSTC CSBC EOP ELEV EXIST FG FF FL GB IE LT

AutoCAD SHX Text
ABBREVIATION

AutoCAD SHX Text
LEFT MINIMUM NORTH NATIVE VEGETATION AREA ORDINARY HIGH WATER POLYETHYLENE POINT RIGHT SOUTH STORM DRAIN STATION STRUCTURE TOP OF CONCRETE TEST PIT NUMBERS TYPICAL WITH WATER QUALITY 

AutoCAD SHX Text
LT MIN N NVA OHW PE PT RT S SD STA STR TOC TP TYP W/ WQ 

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
4

AutoCAD SHX Text
5

AutoCAD SHX Text
6

AutoCAD SHX Text
7

AutoCAD SHX Text
8

AutoCAD SHX Text
9

AutoCAD SHX Text
10

AutoCAD SHX Text
12

AutoCAD SHX Text
13

AutoCAD SHX Text
11

AutoCAD SHX Text
16

AutoCAD SHX Text
15

AutoCAD SHX Text
14

AutoCAD SHX Text
17

AutoCAD SHX Text
18

AutoCAD SHX Text
19

AutoCAD SHX Text
20

AutoCAD SHX Text
23

AutoCAD SHX Text
22

AutoCAD SHX Text
21

AutoCAD SHX Text
24

AutoCAD SHX Text
25

AutoCAD SHX Text
26

AutoCAD SHX Text
27

AutoCAD SHX Text
28

AutoCAD SHX Text
29

AutoCAD SHX Text
35

AutoCAD SHX Text
34

AutoCAD SHX Text
33

AutoCAD SHX Text
32

AutoCAD SHX Text
31

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
36

AutoCAD SHX Text
37

AutoCAD SHX Text
38

AutoCAD SHX Text
39

AutoCAD SHX Text
40

AutoCAD SHX Text
41

AutoCAD SHX Text
42

AutoCAD SHX Text
43

AutoCAD SHX Text
44

AutoCAD SHX Text
45

AutoCAD SHX Text
46

AutoCAD SHX Text
47

AutoCAD SHX Text
48

AutoCAD SHX Text
49

AutoCAD SHX Text
50

AutoCAD SHX Text
51

AutoCAD SHX Text
52

AutoCAD SHX Text
53

AutoCAD SHX Text
54

AutoCAD SHX Text
55

AutoCAD SHX Text
56

AutoCAD SHX Text
57

AutoCAD SHX Text
58

AutoCAD SHX Text
59

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
61

AutoCAD SHX Text
62

AutoCAD SHX Text
63

AutoCAD SHX Text
64

AutoCAD SHX Text
65

AutoCAD SHX Text
66

AutoCAD SHX Text
67

AutoCAD SHX Text
68

AutoCAD SHX Text
69

AutoCAD SHX Text
70

AutoCAD SHX Text
71

AutoCAD SHX Text
72

AutoCAD SHX Text
73

AutoCAD SHX Text
74

AutoCAD SHX Text
75

AutoCAD SHX Text
76

AutoCAD SHX Text
77

AutoCAD SHX Text
79

AutoCAD SHX Text
80

AutoCAD SHX Text
81

AutoCAD SHX Text
82

AutoCAD SHX Text
83

AutoCAD SHX Text
84

AutoCAD SHX Text
85

AutoCAD SHX Text
86

AutoCAD SHX Text
94

AutoCAD SHX Text
95

AutoCAD SHX Text
96

AutoCAD SHX Text
97

AutoCAD SHX Text
98

AutoCAD SHX Text
99

AutoCAD SHX Text
100

AutoCAD SHX Text
101

AutoCAD SHX Text
102

AutoCAD SHX Text
103

AutoCAD SHX Text
104

AutoCAD SHX Text
105

AutoCAD SHX Text
106

AutoCAD SHX Text
107

AutoCAD SHX Text
108

AutoCAD SHX Text
109

AutoCAD SHX Text
110

AutoCAD SHX Text
111

AutoCAD SHX Text
112

AutoCAD SHX Text
113

AutoCAD SHX Text
114

AutoCAD SHX Text
115

AutoCAD SHX Text
116

AutoCAD SHX Text
117

AutoCAD SHX Text
118

AutoCAD SHX Text
119

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
121

AutoCAD SHX Text
122

AutoCAD SHX Text
123

AutoCAD SHX Text
124

AutoCAD SHX Text
125

AutoCAD SHX Text
126

AutoCAD SHX Text
127

AutoCAD SHX Text
128

AutoCAD SHX Text
129

AutoCAD SHX Text
130

AutoCAD SHX Text
163

AutoCAD SHX Text
131

AutoCAD SHX Text
132

AutoCAD SHX Text
133

AutoCAD SHX Text
134

AutoCAD SHX Text
135

AutoCAD SHX Text
136

AutoCAD SHX Text
139

AutoCAD SHX Text
140

AutoCAD SHX Text
141

AutoCAD SHX Text
142

AutoCAD SHX Text
143

AutoCAD SHX Text
144

AutoCAD SHX Text
145

AutoCAD SHX Text
146

AutoCAD SHX Text
137

AutoCAD SHX Text
138

AutoCAD SHX Text
162

AutoCAD SHX Text
161

AutoCAD SHX Text
160

AutoCAD SHX Text
159

AutoCAD SHX Text
158

AutoCAD SHX Text
157

AutoCAD SHX Text
156

AutoCAD SHX Text
155

AutoCAD SHX Text
151

AutoCAD SHX Text
150

AutoCAD SHX Text
149

AutoCAD SHX Text
148

AutoCAD SHX Text
152

AutoCAD SHX Text
153

AutoCAD SHX Text
154

AutoCAD SHX Text
147

AutoCAD SHX Text
165

AutoCAD SHX Text
164

AutoCAD SHX Text
166

AutoCAD SHX Text
167

AutoCAD SHX Text
168

AutoCAD SHX Text
169

AutoCAD SHX Text
170

AutoCAD SHX Text
171

AutoCAD SHX Text
172

AutoCAD SHX Text
173

AutoCAD SHX Text
174

AutoCAD SHX Text
175

AutoCAD SHX Text
176

AutoCAD SHX Text
177

AutoCAD SHX Text
178

AutoCAD SHX Text
179

AutoCAD SHX Text
87

AutoCAD SHX Text
88

AutoCAD SHX Text
89

AutoCAD SHX Text
91

AutoCAD SHX Text
92

AutoCAD SHX Text
93

AutoCAD SHX Text
78

AutoCAD SHX Text
90

AutoCAD SHX Text
B

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
C7

AutoCAD SHX Text
3

AutoCAD SHX Text
THIRD SUBMITTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
7/21/23

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C19

AutoCAD SHX Text
1

AutoCAD SHX Text
C19



0 2,500 5,0001,250
Feet

")P

")P

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

W

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(

!(
")P

")P

W

W

!(R!(R

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³ ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

ÍÎ $³

SI
D

N
E

Y
 R

D
 S

W

SE CEDAR RD

SI
D

N
EY

 A
VE

SE SEDGWICK RD

TREMONT ST W

BE
TH

E
L 

R
D

 S
E

STATE
HW

Y
16

SW

BE
AC

H
DR

E

SE MILE HILL DR

UNNAMED

3R
D

AV
E

W

M
IT

CH
EL

L
AV

E

R
E

T S
IL

R
D

E

A
N

D
E

R
S

O
N

H
I L

L
R

D
S

W

W BELFAIR VALLEY RD

SW BERRY LAKE RD

H
A

R
R

IS
 R

D
 S

E

BAY ST

SOUTH ST

FEIG
LE

Y
RD

W

PO
TT

E
R

Y 
AV

E

LO
N

G
LA

K
E

R
D

S
E

H
AW

KS
TO

N
E

AV
E

S
W

KA
R

C
H

E
R

 R
D

 S
E

JA
C

K
S

O
N

AV
E

S
E

FI
R

C
R

E
S

T 
D

R
 S

E

SE NORTH ST

M
IT

C
H

E
LL

R
D

S
E

STATE H
WY 3 

SW

SE CONIFER PARKDR

LI
D

S
TR

O
M

 R
D

 S
E

O
LNEY

AVE
S

E

JE
FF E

R
S

O
N

AVE

SE

KITSAP ST

SE ORCHARD LN

C
LO

V
E

R
 V

A
LL

E
Y

 R
D

 S
E

SW
 B

AY
 S

T

M
CC

ORM
IC

K

WOODS DR

S
W

MADRONA DR SE

SE HORSTMAN RD

S
FL

O
W

E
R

AV
E

TR
AC

Y
AV

E
N

C
LI

N
E

 A
VE

B ST

M
AY

H
ILL

DR

SE

B
REE

D
R

S
W

W FRONE DR

SH
ER

M
A

N
 A

VE

ST ANDREWSDRSW

STATE HWY 3 RAMP W

DEKALB ST

B
E

TH
E

L
AV

E

PO
RT

O
R

CH
A

R
D

B
LV

D

VIRIDIAN AV
E

S
W

M
C

C
A

R
Y

R
D

S
W

SROUFE ST

W STATE HWY 16

MAY ST W

H
A

R
O

LD
 D

R
 S

E

SE SALMONBERRY RD

C
A

S
TLE

TO
N

RD

SW

SE FOSS RD

S
U

N
N

Y
S

L O
P

E
R

D
S

W

FR
O

N
T

AV
E

W

SE BIELMEIER RD

STATE HWY 3 W

NOVAK DRSW

ASPEN ST SE

SE LUND AVE

LU
N

D
AV

E
S

E

R
A

M
S

E
Y 

R
D

 S
E

C
H

A
NT

IN
GC

IR SW

C
O

N
V

E
R

S
E

AV
E

S
E

W PLEASANT ST
TREMONT ST

PH
IL

LI
P

S
 R

D
 S

E

AR
N

O
LD

AV
E

E

W
OLVESR

D

P
IN

E
TR

E
E

D
R

S
E

BARTOLATZ

RD W

KC
P

L
S

E

LI
N

C
O

LN
AV

E
S

E

RI
CH

AR
DS

AVE SE

W
E

S
T 

AV
E

H
U

LL
 A

VE

PO
ND

ER
O

SA
D

R
S

E

W SHERMAN HEIG
HTS

RD
K

E
N

T
AV

E
W

SW SEDGW
IC

K
RD

SW OLD CLIFTON RD

O
LN

E
Y

AV
E

E

MELCHER ST

SE BLUEBERRY RD

E COLLINS RD

S
EP

INE TREE DR

GLE
NW

OODRD SW

FA
RR

AG
UT

AV
E

N

D
IV

IS
IO

N
AV

E

W

G
A

R
R

I S
O

N
AV

E

DIVISION ST

LA
K

E
V

IE
W

D
R

S
E

D
O

G
W

O
O

D
 R

D
 S

E

SE BAKER RD

C
A

N
Y

O
N

C
T

SAGE

S
T

C
R

O
S

S
IN

G

PL SW

ST
AT

E
HW

Y
3

N
W

SW

44TH ST

M
A

R
LI

N
D

R

SE

VI
C

TO
R

Y 
D

R
 S

W

PE
RR

Y
AV

E
N

SW MILLER RD

BA
B

Y
 D

O
LL

 R
D

 E

V
IK

IN
G

S
T

W

M
A

R
Y

M
A

C
DR

SW

KI
LL

EE
N

PL
SW

BR
AS

C
H

 R
D

 S
E

S
IN

C
LA

IR
W

AY

C
A

R
R

 L
N

 S
E

LI
D

S
TR

O
M

R
D

E

SE VAN SKIVER RD

BA
B

Y
 D

O
LL

 R
D

 S
E

GLE
NEAGLE

AV
E

SW

C
R

E
E

K
V

IE
W

C
T

S
E

LIPPERT DR W

S
A

D
D

LE
CLU

BRD SE

LO
N

E
 B

E
A

R
 L

N
 S

W

SW TAFT BLVD

S
A

ND
D

O
LLA

R

RD
W

B
U

L M
A

N
R

D
S

E

SE LIDER RD

SW DOGWOOD RD

SW HARPER RD

SW COOK RD

W STATE HWY 16 RAMP

A
IK

E
N

R
D

S
E

G
E

I G
E

R
R

D
S

E

STATE HW
Y 16 SE

E
A

D
Y

P
L

E

R
E

T S
IL

R
D

SE

SW LIDER RD

M
AP

LE

AVE

P
E

R
U

A V
E

E

SE MELINE RD

SE ROSE RD

AI
R

P
O

R
T 

W
AY

 S
W

SW

DEPOT CT

CASECO

LN

TR
O

O
N

AV
E

SW

P
IO

N
E

E
R

LN
SE

CHARLESTON BLV
D

WEXFORD

AV
E

SW

M
UI

RK
IR

K
LN

S
W

SE DONATO
LN

SALM
ONBERRY

DR
S

E

FR
A

N
W

AY
LN

S
W

WEYERS LN
S

W

LIESEKE
LN

SW

ST
AT

E

HW
Y 304 RAMP

CA
M

PU
S 

PK
W

Y

SE
NA

TC
HE

ZCT

G
R

E
E

N
A

C
R

E
S

 P
L 

S
W

SEDEEPLAKE
RD

S
C

H
W

E
IT

ZE
R

P
L

S
W

LUMSDEN

RD

HASTINGS LN

SE

SE

CARL

PICKEL

DR

Blackjack Creek

Heins Creek

Bla
ckj

ack
Cr

eek

Coulter
Creek

Gorst Creek

Curley Cree k

He
ins

Cr
eek

Pa
rish

Cree
k

Blackjack Creek

Di
cke

rso
n C

ree
k

An
der

son
Cr

eek
Ruby Creek

Sal

monberry
Creek

Square Creek

Water System: City of Port Orchard.
Base data: Kitsap County.
Data sources supplied may not reflect current or actual conditions. This map
is a geographic representation based on information available.  It does not 
represent survey data.  No warranty is made concerning the accuracy, currency,
or completeness of data depicted on this map.
BHC Consultants LLC., assumes no responsibility for the validity of any
information presented herein, nor any responsibility for the use or misuse of the data.

P:\Mapping\Maps_Generated\Port_Orchard\projects\17-10527.00\002\maps\CIP\Fig 8-1 Capital Improvement Plan - 11x17.mxd  10/22/2020  ctolentino

COPYRIGHT © 2020 BHC CONSULTANTS LLC., ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

Figure

8-1
Capital Improvement Plan
Water System Plan Update
City of Port Orchard, Washington
October 2020#

LOW ZONE
(260 ZONE)

HIGH ZONE
(390 ZONE)

580 ZONE

660 ZONE
(PROPOSED

ZONE)

S i n c l a i r  I n l e t
S i n c l a i r  I n l e t

L o n gL o n g
L a k eL a k e

Legend
Capital Improvement
Plan

Proposed Water System

!(R Proposed Reservoir

W Proposed Well

")P Proposed Booster
Pump

Existing Water System

!( Reservoir/Tanks

W Wells

ÍÎ $³ PRVs

")P Pump Station

Water Mains

Pressure Zones

Low Zone (260 Zone)

High Zone (390 Zone)

580 Zone

660 Zone (Proposed
Zone)

Base Layers

Port Orchard Water
Service Area

City of Port Orchard

Roads/ROWs

Water Bodies

Rivers/Creeks

580 ZONE

580 ZONE

580 ZONE

HIGH ZONE
(390 ZONE)

HIGH ZONE
(390 ZONE)

LOW ZONE
(260 ZONE)

1

2A

2B2C

3 54

8

9

10

2C
2C

11A

12

14

15

16

25

24

13

2C

11B

11C

13

7

Page 126 of 138



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2021 8-7 BHC Consultants, LLC 

Construction of this transmission main, along with the new 580 Zone tank (CIP 1), Wells 11 and 
12 (CIP 3 and 9), and connection to the 390 Pressure Zone (CIP 8) are necessary to 
hydraulically separate the City’s water system from the City of Bremerton’s system.  

Project 5 - 390 Zone Storage  

❖ Estimated Cost: $3,000,000 

❖ Priority: High 

❖ Schedule: 2025 

Additional storage will be needed in the 390 Pressure Zone.  Timing will depend on the rate of 
growth in the Sidney/Sedgwick area. 

Project 6 - Telemetry Upgrades  

❖ Estimated Cost: $100,000 

❖ Priority: Medium 

❖ Schedule: 2028 

This project includes addition of telemetry equipment at various water system facilities and 
connection to newly upgraded central telemetry equipment. 

Project 7 - 390 to 580 Zone Booster Station (Old Clifton)  

❖ Estimated Cost: $750,000 

❖ Priority: High 

❖ Schedule: 2022 

This project would allow water to be pumped up from the 390 zone to the 580 zone through the 
COPO-McCormick Woods intertie as the systems become one.  This would allow for an 
alternate water supply in the event of a failure in the McCormick Woods system supply. 

Project 8 - 580 to 390 Zone Transmission Main (580/390 PRV to Old Clifton Tank) 

❖ Estimated Cost: $1,325,000 

❖ Priority: Medium 

❖ Schedule: 2024 

Connection of the 580 Zone to the 390 Zone through a transmission main along Old Clifton 
Road has been identified as a valuable addition to the long-term goal of interconnecting the 
McCormick and City systems.  Construction of this transmission main, along with the new 
580 Zone tank (CIP 1), Wells 11 and 12 (CIP 3 and 9), and connection to the 580 Pressure 
Zone (CIP 4) are necessary to hydraulically separate the City’s water system from the City of 
Bremerton’s system.  
 
CIP 8 includes construction of a 10- to 12‐inch transmission main along SW Old Clifton Rd 
between an existing 8-inch water main located near the intersection of SW Old Clifton Rd and 
Bantry Bay Loop SW and connecting to the Old Clifton 390 Pressure Zone tank.  In combination 
with CIP 4, this new transmission main will provide a fundamental link between the 580 and 390 
pressure zones through the McCormick Woods system.   
 

Page 127 of 138



City of Port Orchard 

2020 Water System Plan 

October 2021 8-8 BHC Consultants, LLC 

The 12-inch main will be approximately 6,000 feet in length. A 580 to 390 PRV station will be 
required at the boundary between the two pressure zones. 

Project 9 - Well 12 Development, Treatment, and Booster Pump Station 

❖ Estimated Cost: $7,000,000 

❖ Priority: High 

❖ Schedule: 2024 

Significant growth is expected in the McCormick Woods area, which is served by the 580 and 
future 660 Pressure Zones.  Improvements to the source supply are necessary to meet the 
growing water demand.  Well 12 will be located on City-owned property in the northwest corner 
of the City, referenced in this Plan as the Well 12 Water Campus.  An existing 450,000-gallon 
tank at the site currently provides storage for the 580 Zone.   
 
The Well 12 improvements include: 

▪ A new well with an approximate 1,000 gpm nominal capacity that is anticipated to be 
approximately 1,500 feet deep.  Also associated with the new well is a small well house, 
well pump, and piping to convey well water to the new on-site booster pump 
station/water treatment building. 

▪ Treatment systems will include: 

o Chlorination feed system 

o Filtration backwash system, if water quality analyses dictate  

o Provisions for backwash water disposal, if needed 

o Fluoridation feed system (possibly depending on citizen vote outcome) 

▪ The City currently maintains and operates an existing 450,000-gallon water storage tank 
at the Well 12 Campus, which will be sold to the City of Bremerton once Well 12, the 
new 0.97 MG 580 Zone tank (CIP 1) and connection piping is online.  A pipe connection 
from the booster pump station to the proposed 580 Zone tank and an emergency tie-in 
to the existing tank are proposed.  Stub outs to a proposed 580 Zone transmission 
pipeline (CIP 4) and to a proposed 580 to 660 Zone Booster Pump Station and storage 
(CIP 14) are required.  

▪ Site development including clearing, site grading, access roads, stormwater 
management, security, lighting, landscaping, sewer routing, fencing, and parking will be 
required. 

Project 10 - Melcher Street Pump Station Upgrade 

❖ Estimated Cost: $500,000 

❖ Priority: Medium to High 

❖ Schedule: 2022 

The Melcher Pump Station moves water, when required, from the 260 Zone to the 390 Zone.  
This project includes installing additional pumps and controls to accommodate added transfer of 
water from the 260 Zone to the 390 Zone.  This will extend the useful life of the pump station but 
due to the age of the facility, upgrades are needed to maintain it in a fully functioning condition. 

Page 128 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows 
Exhibit D 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

Exhibit D – Public Works Engineering Standards and Specifications 
 
 
The City of Port Orchard Engineering Standards and Specifications are on file with the City of 
Port Orchard City Clerk.  

Page 129 of 138



 
Development Agreement for Diaz Meadows 
Exhibit E 
10685543.6 - 366922 - 0051 

Exhibit E – CFC Credit calculation estimation for this Development Project and Water 
Improvement Project. 

 
1. Water Capital Facility Charge Method.  The Water Improvement Project was 

identified in the CFC rate study adopted by the City as a $1,325,000.00 project that 
is 75% funded by CFCs. The Developer is building twenty-seven percent (27%) of 
the total project watermain length and not constructing the PRV Station. The PRV 
Station is estimated at $125,000 which is removed from the total project costs prior 
to the calculation below. The Water Improvement Project is designed to be 
oversized to meet the needs of future growth. The percentage of the facilities to be 
used by the proposed Development Project is 25%, meaning that 75% of the added 
capacity will be for other customers. Therefore, under the Water Facility Fee 
method of (a) project cost of the project as defined in the Water CFC and reduced 
by 25% because the project is 75% CFC funded multiplied by (b) the percentage of 
the project being constructed by the developer (27%) by (c) the percentage of the 
project that is excess capacity of the Water Improvement Project (75%), the 
Developer would be credited $182,250 (($1,325,000 - $125,000) x .75 *.27 *.75).  
The Parties agree with the accuracy and methodology of the Water Capital Facility 
Charge method formula in Section 10(a)(1).    

2. Certified Project Cost Method.  The Certified Project Cost method is determined 
by (a) identifying the certified construction costs of the Water Improvement Project 
multiplied by (b) percentage of ERUs for excess capacity of the Water 
Improvement Project, which as defined above, was 75% of the added capacity.   The 
Certified Project Cost method cannot be determined until the Parties certify the 
Water Improvement Project costs as provided in Section 10(d) of this Agreement.   
The Parties agree with the accuracy and methodology of the Certified Project Cost 
method formula in Section 10(a)(2).   

3. Total Water Capital Facility Charge owed by Developer Method. The Total 
Water Capital Facility Fee Method is determined by (a) identifying the current CFC 
at the time of the Agreement (currently $11,591) and multiplying by (b) number of 
ERUs for Developer needs of current Water Improvement Project. Based on the 
scope of the Development Project that is currently in development review, there are 
expected to be 5 new water connections serving 96 multifamily units and common 
areas. These connections are expected to use 25% of the Water Improvement 
Project capacity. Therefore, under the Total Water Capital Facility Charge Method, 
Developer would be required to pay a total of $1,112,736 in CFC charges. Because 
this total is higher than the Water Capital Facility Charge Method in Section 
10(a)(1), this option is unlikely to be used unless the Water CFC rate is reduced 
significantly at the time that the building permits for the project are issued.  The 
Parties agree with the accuracy and methodology of the Certified Project Cost 
method formula in Section 10(a)(3).   

Page 130 of 138



Page 131 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7B Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Repealing POMC   Prepared by: Nicholas Bond 

 3.48 Concerning the City’s Multifamily Tax  DCD Director 
 Exemption Policy      Atty Routing No.: N/A 
  Atty Review Date: N/A 

 
Summary:  In 2016, the City adopted an ordinance to offer a multifamily tax incentive to developers of 
multifamily housing in Port Orchard. This ordinance was approved to encourage the construction of 
multifamily housing to address a lack of affordable housing supply.  Since adoption in 2016, the city has seen 
a substantial increase in the amount of multifamily housing being constructed in the city and rents have 
stabilized or decreased.  Some multifamily projects were built with this tax incentive while others were 
constructed without the incentive.  For the past 18 months, the City Council and the Land Use Committee 
have been evaluating the program and were considering changes to the program.  However, at the 
September 19, 2023, City Council Work Study meeting, the full City Council ultimately decided that the 
program should be paused and reevaluated in the coming years.  As such, an ordinance repealing POMC 3.48 
has been prepared for consideration.  The proposed repeal of POMC 3.48 does not affect previously 
approved MFTE applications. 
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: For the past 2 years, the City of Port Orchard has seen growth rates 
surpassing the growth targets outlined in the Comprehensive Plan and the new targets from the Kitsap 
Countywide Planning Policies that apply to the 2024 Comprehensive Plan update.  The City would need to 
grow at 2-3% annually to hit its 2044 growth target.  In 2022-2023, the City grew by more than 6%. Repealing 
this incentive may lower growth rates to me more in line with the city’s growth targets as included in the 
comprehensive plan. 
 
Recommendation:  In accordance with the direction provided to staff at the September 19, 2023, City Council 
Work Study meeting, staff recommend approval of an ordinance repealing POMC 3.48 as presented. 
 
Motion for consideration:  “I move to adopt an ordinance repealing POMC 3.48 concerning multifamily tax 
exemptions as presented.” 
 
Fiscal Impact:  Removing this incentive may negatively impact some revenues (sales tax, connection fees, 
impact fees, permit fees, REET) while ensuring that the city does not forgo property tax revenue. 
 
Alternatives:  Various, see the staff report from the September 19, 2023, City Council Work Study meeting. 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 

Page 132 of 138



 
ORDINANCE NO. ____ 

           
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, 
RELATING TO THE CITY’S MULTI-FAMILY TAX EXEMPTION; REPEALING 
CHAPTER 3.48 OF THE PORT ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CORRECTIONS, AND PUBLICATION; AND SETTING AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council original adopted the Multi-Family Tax Exemption in 2016 by 

passage of Ordinance No. 23-16 which was codified as Chapter 3.48 of the Port Orchard 
Municipal Code (“POMC”); and 

 
WHEREAS, at the time Ordinance No. 23-16 was adopted there were not enough multi-

family housing projects being built in Port Orchard and the City wanted to incentivize the 
development of this needed housing type; and  

 
WHEREAS, the City Council has twice amended Chapter 3.48 POMC via adoption of 

Ordinance Nos. 003-19 and 029-20; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has granted the Multi-Family Tax Exemption to several projects since 

it was initially adopted; and 
 
WHEREAS, for several years the City has been experiencing a development boom, 

including the development or planned development of 1,674 multi-family housing units; and 
 
WHEREAS, many of these units were developed or are proposed to be developed 

without using the Multi-Family Tax Exemption; and 
 
WHEREAS, given the level of housing being produced, many of which do not rely on the 

Multi-Family Tax Exemption for development, the City Council deems that offering this Tax 
Exemption is not necessary to incentivize the development of more multi-family housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, in order to serve the housing being produced, the City needs revenues to 

provide the infrastructure and City services in order to serve the new residents who will occupy 
this housing; and 

 
WHEREAS, this Ordinance is not intended to impact any previously approved and issued 

Multi-Family Tax Exemption applications, whether preliminarily approved or fully approved; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City Council deems it in the best interests of the residents of the City and 

further advance the public health, safety, and welfare to repeal the Multi-Family Tax Exemption 
Chapter; now, therefore, 

Page 133 of 138



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 3 

 
 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  Chapter 3.48 of the Port Orchard Municipal Code, entitled “Multi-Family 

Tax Exemption” is hereby repealed. 
 
SECTION 2.  Implementation. Any approved applications for use of the Multi-Family Tax 

Exemption under Chapter 3.48 POMC which are in process and/or have obtained preliminary or 
full approval as of the effective date of this Ordinance shall continue to be processed and may 
be finalized and approved. However, no new applications for use of the Multi-Family Tax 
Exemption shall be processed after the effective date of this Ordinance.  

 
SECTION 3.  Severability. If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 

should be held to be unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other 
section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   

 
SECTION 4.  Corrections. Upon the approval of the city attorney, the city clerk and/or 

code publisher is authorized to make any necessary technical corrections to this ordinance, 
including but not limited to the correction of scrivener’s/clerical errors, references, ordinance 
numbering, section/subsection numbers, and any reference thereto. 

 
SECTION 5.  Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 

consisting of the title.  
 

SECTION 6.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect five days after publication, as provided by law.    

 
 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor Pro-
Tem and attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 
 
 
              

Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST:      SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk                                 Jay Rosapepe, Councilmember 
 
 

Page 134 of 138



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 3 of 3 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 

Page 135 of 138



City of Port Orchard 
216 Prospect Street, Port Orchard, WA 98366 
(360) 876-4407 • FAX (360) 895-9029 
 
 

 

Agenda Staff Report 
 

Agenda Item No.: Business Item 7C Meeting Date: October 10, 2023 
Subject: Adoption of an Ordinance Adopting Prepared by: Charlotte Archer, Atty  

 POMC Section 2.04.235, Regarding     Atty Routing No.: 366922-0005 – Clerk 
 Endorsements by the City Council Atty Review Date: October 4, 2023 

 
Summary: Historically, prior City Councils have made collective statements to endorse certain ballot 
measures, including pending bonds or levies. RCW 42.17A.555 governs the ability of a legislative body 
to speak in favor of or opposition to a ballot measure or candidate and requires a duly noticed public 
hearing prior to the adoption of a resolution of support or opposition by the body (among other 
requirements). Recently, this City Council requested staff develop a policy to clarify that the Council will 
not speak on candidates/ballot measures, as doing so can interfere with the independent assessment 
of proposed candidates and legislation by the residents of Port Orchard. Staff reviewed similar policies 
utilized by neighboring jurisdictions and developed proposed language consistent with these concerns.  
To the extent the City Council desires to adopt such a policy, and as the City Council’s rules of procedure 
are codified at Port Orchard Municipal Code Chapter 2.04 so that these rules and associated policies 
are preserved for historical record, Staff recommends placing the proposed policy in Chapter 2.04 
POMC. 
 
Recommendation:  Staff takes no position as to the Council’s decision to adopt a policy pertaining to 
endorsements.  
 
Relationship to Comprehensive Plan: N/A 
 
Motion for consideration: “I move to adopt an Ordinance establishing Port Orchard Municipal Code 
Section 2.04.235, pertaining to endorsements by the City Council.”  
 
Fiscal Impact: None  
 
Alternatives: Do not approve and provide alternative guidance. 
 
Attachments:  Ordinance 

Page 136 of 138



 
ORDINANCE NO. _______ 

           
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, ADOPTING 
PORT ORCHARD MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 2.04.235 REGARDING COUNCIL 
ENDORSEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY AND PUBLICATION; AND 
SETTING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

WHEREAS, the Port Orchard City Council has adopted rules pertaining to the conduct of 
the Council, including the conduct of public meetings, codified at Port Orchard Municipal Code 
(“POMC”) Chapter 2.04; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to adopt a new rule to govern the City Council’s 
communications with the public on pending ballot measures; and 

WHEREAS, RCW 42.17A.555 limits the ability of a legislative body to speak in favor of or 
opposition to a ballot proposition as body, or to utilize their office or any public facilities for 
these purposes; and  

WHEREAS, the City Council finds that endorsing or opposing a ballot measure can 
undermine voter autonomy and the electoral process; and  

WHEREAS, accordingly, the City Council finds that it is in the best interests of 
transparency and the citizens of the City of Port Orchard to adopt new Section 2.04.235 POMC 
to state the Council does not endorse or otherwise collectively speak on pending ballot 
measures; now, therefore,  

 THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF PORT ORCHARD, WASHINGTON, DO ORDAIN AS 
FOLLOWS: 

SECTION 1.  Adoption. New Section 2.04.235 POMC, Endorsements, is hereby adopted 
to read as follows:  

 The City Council will not endorse or oppose a campaign for election of any person to any 
office or for the promotion of or opposition to any ballot proposition placed on a ballot for the 
vote of the people. Individual endorsement or opposition by individual Councilmembers shall 
only be made in compliance with RCW 42.17A.555, as amended, and shall be clearly identified 
as the statement of an individual citizen. 

 SECTION 2. Severability. Should any portion of this ordinance be held to be 
unconstitutional or unlawful by a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidity or 
unconstitutionality shall not affect the validity or constitutionality of any other section, 
sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance.   

SECTION 3.  Publication.  This Ordinance shall be published by an approved summary 
consisting of the title.  

Page 137 of 138



Ordinance No. _________ 
Page 2 of 2 

 
 

SECTION 4.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall take effect and be in full force and 
effect five days after publication, as provided by law.    

 PASSED by the City Council of the City of Port Orchard, APPROVED by the Mayor Pro-
Tem and attested by the Clerk in authentication of such passage this 10th day of October 2023. 
 
 
 
              

Mark Trenary, Mayor Pro-Tem 
 
ATTEST:      SPONSOR: 
 
 
              
Brandy Wallace, MMC, City Clerk                                 Jay Rosapepe, Councilmember 
 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM:     
 
 
       
Charlotte A. Archer, City Attorney 
 
PUBLISHED: 
EFFECTIVE DATE: 
 

Page 138 of 138


	4C 01 - SR Building Code Ordinance
	Agenda Staff Report

	4C 02 ORD_Bldg Code Update - AMENDMENT(10681990.1)(10748744.1)
	4C 03 015-23 - Ordinance - Amending 20.200 Building Code
	4C 04 013-23 Ordinance Adopting 2021 Building Code
	4D 01 Staff Report re MOA with POB for Waterfront Parking - 10_10_2023(10734718.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4D 02 RES- XX - Revised POB Parking MOU(10734764.1)
	4D 03 Port Orchard _ POB - MOA for Parking(10734716.1)
	1. RECITALS
	2. PURPOSE
	3. PREMISES
	4. EFFECTIVE DATE
	5. TERM
	6. AGREEMENT
	7. COMPENSATION
	7.1 Parking Enforcement:  The Port shall provide compensation and payment to the City each year by June 30th for Parking Enforcement services provided by the City for Lot 3 and Lot 4.
	7.2 Annual parking enforcement compensation shall be in the amount of $12,000 each year.
	7.3 The annual parking enforcement compensation may be increased each year beginning January 1, 2025.  The compensation shall increase annually per CPI-U (All Urban Consumers Index) (1982-1984=100), not seasonally adjusted, for the Seattle-Tacoma-Bell...
	7.4 In addition to the increase set out in Section 1.3 herein, the City shall be authorized to increase parking enforcement compensation upon six (6) months written notice to the Port if the City’s costs associated with parking enforcement increase du...
	7.5 Initial parking enforcement compensation shall be prorated based on the number of days remaining in 2023 upon commencement of parking enforcement at the direction of the Port (see Section 6.4).
	7.6 Compensation payment to the City shall be provided on or before June 30 of each year, with the initial prorated parking enforcement payment due to the City by December 31, 2023.
	7.7 Termination of Parking Enforcement Services:  Upon six (6) months of written notice, either party may terminate the agreement for parking enforcement.  Termination of parking enforcement shall not impact or affect other sections of this agreement.
	8. RESTRICTIONS ON USE
	9. EVENTS COORDINATION
	9.1 The Port of Bremerton and the City of Port Orchard agree to coordinate efforts related to community events occurring on the premises identified herein (for example, 4th of July, Cruz Car Show, Chimes & Lights), in relation to road closures, public...
	9.2 The Port and the City agree to work together on a case-by-case basis to assist with temporary event parking for marina tenants where needed, related to specific community events (for example, 4th of July, Cruz Car Show, Chimes & Lights).
	9.3 The Port of Bremerton and the City of Port Orchard agree to review and provide communication in relation to each other’s Event permits and applications that may impact spaces or needs related to the premises.
	9.4 For 2023, City event permits already approved by the City shall continue to be honored by the Port for 2023.
	10. RECIPROCAL INDEMNIFICATION
	11. DEFAULT
	12. NOTICE
	13. ENTIRE AGREEMENT

	4D 04 034-11 - Port of Bremerton - Contract
	4E 01 STAFF REPORT -PSE Easement(10748773.1) (002)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4E 02 RESOLUTION-PSE Easement (002)(10748998.1) (002)
	4E 03 PSE Offer Pkg_#15 City of Pt Orchard_342401-3-015-2004
	15_Offer Letter_rev9.6.23
	15_WorkSketch_9.6.23
	15_Voucher 9.6.23
	15_City of Port Orchard_PSE Easement

	4E 04 PSE Offer Pkg_#16 City of Pt Orchard_342401-3-035-2000
	16_Offer Letter_9.6.23
	C_WorkSketch 16
	16_Voucher 9.6.23
	16_City of Port Orchard_PSE Rev OH Easement 9.6.23

	4F 01 Staff Report Public Safety Testing
	Agenda Staff Report

	4F 02 Resolution Public Safety Testing
	4F 03 Exhibit A PST Subscriber Agreement
	4G 01 SR Road Closure-Chimes and Lights
	City of Port Orchard
	Agenda Staff Report


	4G 02 Chimes and Lights App
	4H 01 2023.10.10 Staff Report Police Support Contract Inclement Weather(10748556.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	4I 01 SR Prosecutor Contract
	Agenda Staff Report

	4I 02 2024 Municipal Prosecution Contract Rate
	4I 03 Amendment to KC-495-22 for year 2024 (09-13-2023)
	4I 04 004-23 - Kitsap County - Contract
	4J 01 20230919 Minutes
	6A 01 Staff Report Diaz Meadows DA Hearing
	Agenda Staff Report

	7A 01 00 - Staff Report Diaz Meadows DA Business
	Agenda Staff Report

	7A 02 01 - ORD - Diaz Meadows Development Agreement
	7A 03 - Development Agreement Diaz Meadows - 8-11-2023(10685543.6)
	DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
	RECITALS
	AGREEMENT
	Section 11. Permitted Design Modifications.
	a) The Development Project is not subject to the minimum two-foot (2’) ground floor elevation requirement that is set forth in POMC 20.32.100 as applicable to all “Apartment” building types, regardless of site topography or other design considerations...
	b) The Development Project may depart from strict compliance with to Port Orchard Design standards at POMC 20.127.210(2) which require at least one building entrance be visible and directly accessible from the street for each building and which requir...
	Section 12. Default.
	Section 23. Applicable Law, Resolution of Disputes, and Attorneys’ Fees.  It is the Parties’ intent to work cooperatively and to resolve disputes in an efficient and cost-effective manner.  All disputes arising out of or relating to this Agreement sha...
	a) Settlement Meeting.  If any dispute arises between the Parties relating to this Agreement, then the Parties shall meet and seek to resolve the dispute, in good faith, within ten (10) working days after a Party’s request for such a meeting.  The Cit...
	b) Court. If the Parties cannot resolve the matter in a settlement meeting, then jurisdiction of any resulting litigation shall be filed in Kitsap County Superior Court, Kitsap County, Washington, or the U.S. District Court for Western Washington, as ...
	Section 31.  Severability.  This Agreement does not violate any federal or state statute, rule, regulation or common law known; but any provision which is found to be invalid or in violation of any statute, rule, regulation or common law shall be cons...


	7A 04 Exhibit A - LegalDescription_LU23-Dev Agreement-03
	7A 05 Exhibit B - Map
	7A 06 Exhibit C - Map of Water Improvements Project
	7A 07 Exhibit D - Standards and Specifications
	7A 08 Exhibit E - Diaz Meadows CFC Calculation
	7A 09 Exhibit F - Site Plan with Departures
	7B 01 SR MFTE Repeal
	Agenda Staff Report

	7B 02 Ordinance - Repeal Ch. 3.48 POMC v2(10746676.1)
	7C 01 Staff Report re Ordinance on Bond_Levy Support_Opposition(10749353.1)
	Agenda Staff Report

	7C 02 Ordinance XXX-23 - Council Endorsements(10738450.1)
	ADP5F4B.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Denis Ryan
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:

	ADPE120.tmp
	...
	Mayor:
	Mark Trenary (Mayor Pro-Tempore)
	E/D & Tourism Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Transportation Committee
	KRCC-alt
	Shawn Cucciardi
	Finance Committee
	E/D & Tourism Committee
	Lodging Tax, Chair
	Fred Chang
	Economic Development & Tourism Committee
	Land Use Committee
	Transportation Committee
	Jay Rosapepe
	Finance Committee,
	KRCC, PSRC-alt, PSRC Transpol-alt, KRCC Transpol-alt, KRCC Planpol-alt,
	John Clauson
	Finance Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee
	Kitsap Public Health District-alt
	Cindy Lucarelli
	Festival of Chimes & Lights Committee, Chair
	Utilities/Sewer Advisory Committee, Chair
	Kitsap Economic Development Alliance
	Scott Diener
	Land Use Committee, Chair
	Transportation Committee
	Department Directors:
	Nicholas Bond, AICP
	Development Director
	Denis Ryan
	Public Works Director
	Tim Drury
	Municipal Court Judge
	Noah Crocker, M.B.A.
	Finance Director
	Matt Brown
	Police Chief
	Brandy Wallace, MMC, CPRO
	City Clerk
	Meeting Location:
	Contact us:


	Button1: 


